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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements contained in this report may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may
cause actual results to be materially different from those expressed or implied in such statements. You can identify these
forward-looking statements by words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“intend,” “plan” and other similar expressions. You should consider our forward-looking statements in light of the risks
discussed under the heading “Risk Factors,” as well as our consolidated financial statements, related notes, and the other
financial information appearing elsewhere in this report and our other filings with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission. The forward-looking statements contained in this report are made as of the date hereof and the Company assumes
no obligation to update or supplement any forward-looking statements.
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Fiscal Year End

We have a 52/53 week fiscal year ending on the Sunday nearest to December 31 of each year. For convenience, in this
annual report on Form 10-K, we refer to all fiscal years as ending on December 31 and all interim fiscal quarters as ending on
March 31, June 30 and September 30 of the respective fiscal year. There were 52 calendar weeks in our 2016 fiscal year that
ended on January 1, 2017, 53 calendar weeks in our 2015 fiscal year that ended January 3, 2016 and 52 calendar weeks in our
2014 fiscal year that ended on December 28, 2014.



PART I

Item 1. Business
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DineEquity, Inc., together with its subsidiaries (referred to as the “Company,” “DineEquity,” “we,” “our” and “us”), owns
and franchises the Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar®™ (“Applebee's™) concept in the bar and grill segment within the casual
dining category of the restaurant industry, and owns, franchises and operates the International House of Pancakes™ (“THOP”)
concept in the family dining category of the restaurant industry. References herein to Applebee's” and IHOP® restaurants are to
these two restaurant concepts, whether operated by franchisees, area licensees and their sub-licensees or by us. As of
December 31, 2016, all but 10 of our 3,749 restaurants across both brands were franchised. We believe this highly franchised
business model requires less capital investment and general and administrative overhead, generates higher gross profit margins
and reduces the volatility of adjusted free cash flow performance, as compared to owning a significant number of company-
operated restaurants.

We generate revenue from four operating segments. As of December 31, 2016 they are comprised of:

*  Franchise operations - primarily royalties, fees and other income from 2,016 Applebee’s franchised restaurants
and 1,723 THOP franchised and area licensed restaurants;

*  Rental operations - primarily rental income derived from lease or sublease agreements covering 691 IHOP
franchised restaurants and one Applebee’s franchised restaurant;

+  Company restaurant operations - retail sales from 10 IHOP company-operated restaurants; and

+  Financing operations - primarily interest income from approximately $88 million of receivables for equipment
leases and franchise fee notes generally associated with IHOP franchised restaurants developed before 2003.

Most of our revenue is derived from domestic sources within these four operating segments, with approximately 96% of
our total 2016 revenues being generated from our franchise and rental operations. Revenue derived from all international
operations comprised less than 3% of total consolidated revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016. At December 31, 2016,
there were no long-lived assets located outside of the United States. See Note 18, Segment Reporting, of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report for additional segment information.

This report should be read in conjunction with the cautionary statements under “Item 7. Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

Our Key Strategies

We are focused on generating strong adjusted free cash flow and returning a substantial portion of it to stockholders. Since
announcing in 2013 the capital allocation strategy to return the majority of adjusted free cash flow to our stockholders, we have
returned over $420 million, through a combination of quarterly cash dividends and stock repurchases, over the last four years.

To build value, we seek to maximize our business by focusing on the following key strategic priorities:

*  Evolve strong brands and drive same-restaurant sales growth;
»  Facilitate franchisee restaurant development; and
*  Maintain strong financial discipline.

Our fundamental approach to brand building centers on a strategic combination of initiatives to continually innovate and
evolve both brands. These initiatives include menu innovation, effective maximization of advertising and media, expanding our
digital and social marketing presence, maintaining a consistent level of operational excellence, and creating new prototypes,
remodels and restaurant designs. Our shared services operating platform allows our senior management to focus on key factors
that drive both our brands while leveraging the resources and expertise of our scalable, centralized support structure. In 2016,
we completed the process of consolidating core Applebee's brand and franchisee support functions that had been based in
Kansas City, Missouri into our Glendale, California headquarters. The consolidation has enabled cross-brand collaboration that
we believe provides for faster innovation and effective implementation to the benefit of domestic and international franchisees
of both brands.

Our History

The first IHOP restaurant opened in 1958 in Toluca Lake, California. Since that time, the Company and its predecessors
have engaged in the development, franchising and operation of IHOP restaurants. Prior to 2003, new IHOP restaurants were
generally developed by us, and we were involved in all aspects of the construction and financing of the restaurants. We
typically identified and leased or purchased the restaurant sites for new company-developed IHOP restaurants, built and
equipped the restaurants and then franchised them to franchisees. In addition, we typically financed as much as 80% of the
franchise fee for periods ranging from five to eight years and leased the restaurant and equipment to the franchisee over a 25-
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year period. We refer to this as our “Previous IHOP Business Model,” which accounts for most of the activity in our rental and
financing operations.

For most IHOP restaurants opened after 2003, the franchisee is primarily responsible for the development and financing of
the restaurant. In general, we no longer provide any financing with respect to the franchise fee, restaurant site or equipment.
The franchisee uses its own capital and financial resources along with third-party financial sources obtained by the franchisee to
purchase or lease a restaurant site, build and equip the business and fund its working capital needs. We refer to this as our
“Current IHOP Business Model.”

The first restaurant in what became the Applebee’s chain opened in 1980 in Decatur, Georgia. In November 2007, we
completed the acquisition of Applebee's International, Inc., which comprised 1,455 franchised restaurants and 510 company-
operated restaurants at the time of the acquisition. Since the acquisition, we have refranchised all of the Applebee's company-
operated restaurants and the Applebee's system became 100% franchised in July 2015.

Restaurant Concepts
Applebee's

We franchise Applebee’s restaurants in the bar and grill segment within the casual dining category of the restaurant
industry. Each Applebee's restaurant offers a lively, casual dining, table service experience combining simple American fare
with flair, classic drinks and local drafts - all for a moderate price. All Applebee's restaurants are owned and operated by
entrepreneurs dedicated to serving their communities and offering quality food and drinks with genuine, neighborly service.

Our menu features a selection of craveable grill and bar fare, such as appetizers, bar snacks, burgers, classic entrees and
lighter fare, as well as cocktails, beers and desserts. Our signature value menu “2 for $20,” first introduced in 2009, sets the
standard within the industry and continues to resonate with our guests. Our commitment to industry-leading innovation is
evident behind such products as our Build Your Sampler platters or one of our original Burgers, featuring flavorful toppings
seared directly into 100% fresh, never frozen, ground beef. For guests looking for wholesome ingredients, satisfying portions,
loaded with flavors and not calories, our Lighter Fare options include meals under 600 calories like the Shrimp Wonton Stir Fry
or Pepper-Crusted Sirloin & Whole Grains. No matter what is ordered, our guests know that Applebee’s is committed to serving
delicious food - just the way they like it, every day.

As of December 31, 2016, 60 franchise groups operated 2,016 Applebee’s franchise restaurants. These restaurants were
located in 50 states within the United States, in two United States territories and in 15 countries outside of the United States.
Applebee's was the largest casual dining concept in the United States in terms of 2015 system-wide sales™.

IHOP

We franchise, own and operate restaurants in the family dining category of the restaurant industry under the names ITHOP
and International House of Pancakes. IHOP restaurants feature full table service and high quality, moderately priced food and
beverage offerings in an attractive and comfortable family atmosphere. Although the restaurants are best known for their award-
winning pancakes, omelets and other breakfast specialties, IHOP restaurants also offer a variety of lunch, dinner and snack
items. IHOP restaurants are open throughout the day and evening hours. Over half of our IHOP restaurants operate 24 hours a
day, seven days a week, with 229 additional restaurants operating 24 hours a day for some portion of the week. After
announcing the most comprehensive remodel program in our brand’s 58-year history in late 2015, our franchisees remodeled
300 of their restaurants in 2016, representing more than 17% of the total IHOP system. We also launched an all-new advertising
campaign which highlights the unique emotional connection our guests share with our brand and in-restaurant experience, while
giving equal focus to our expertise in breakfast and beyond. This culinary advantage was showcased throughout 2016 with
innovative product offerings such as Apple Ring Pancakes, Red Velvet Crepes and a Denver Omelette Burger.

As of December 31, 2016, 331 franchise groups operated 1,723 IHOP franchise and area license restaurants. These
restaurants were located in all 50 states within the United States, in the District of Columbia, in three United States territories
and in 10 countries outside of the United States. We operated 10 restaurants in the Cincinnati, Ohio area, and we may also
operate, on a temporary basis until refranchised, IHOP restaurants that we re-acquire for a variety of reasons from ITHOP
franchisees. IHOP was the largest family dining concept in the United States in terms of 2015 system-wide sales™".

See Item 2, Properties, for the geographic location of all Applebee’s and IHOP restaurants.

M Source: Nation's Restaurant News, "Special Report: Top 100," June 20, 2016.



Franchising

Franchisee Relationships

We highly value good relationships with our IHOP and Applebee's franchisees and strive to maintain positive working
relationships with them. For several years, [IHOP and Applebee’s franchisees have participated in Company-sponsored advisory
groups. These groups provide a forum for franchisees to share demonstrated best practices, offer counsel and review successful
strategies, while working side-by-side with management of the Applebee's and IHOP brands. Applebee’s sponsors its Franchise
Brand Council (“FBC”), which consists of eight franchisee representatives. One franchisee representative, the founder of
Applebee's, is a member for life, while the other franchisee representatives are elected by our franchisees. IHOP sponsors its
Franchise Leadership Council (“FLC”), an elected and appointed body of 12 IHOP franchisees. The Applebee's FBC and the
IHOP FLC assist Applebee's and IHOP senior management in key areas of the business, including restaurant development,
franchise marketing, menu design, information technology, operations and innovation.

Franchise Agreements and Fees

Generally, franchise arrangements for Applebee's restaurants consist of a development agreement and a separate franchise
agreement for each restaurant. Development agreements grant to the franchisee the exclusive right to develop Applebee's
restaurants within a designated geographical area over a specified period of time. The term of a domestic development
agreement is generally 20 years. The development agreements typically provide for initial development periods of one to five
years as agreed upon by the Company and the franchisee. At or shortly prior to the completion of the initial development
schedule or any subsequent supplemental development schedule, the Company and the franchisee generally execute
supplemental development schedules providing for the development of additional Applebee's restaurants in the franchisee's
exclusive territory.

Prior to the opening of each new Applebee's restaurant, the franchisee and the Company enter into a separate franchise
agreement for that restaurant. Our current standard domestic Applebee's franchise agreement provides for an initial term of
20 years and permits four successive terms, in five-year increments, for up to an additional 20 years, upon payment of an
additional franchise fee. Our current standard domestic Applebee's franchise arrangement calls for a development fee equal to
$10,000 for each Applebee's restaurant that the franchisee contracts to develop and an initial franchisee fee of $35,000 for each
restaurant developed (against which the $10,000 development fee will be credited) and a royalty fee equal to 4% of the
restaurant's monthly gross sales. We have agreements with most of our franchisees for Applebee's restaurants opened before
January 1, 2000, which provide for a royalty rate of 4%. The terms, royalty rate and advertising fees under a limited number of
franchise agreements and other franchise fees under older development agreements vary from the currently offered
arrangements.

Under the Current IHOP Business Model, a potential franchisee first enters into either a single-restaurant franchise
agreement or a multi-restaurant development agreement with us and, upon completion of a prescribed approval procedure, is
primarily responsible for the development and financing of one or more new IHOP franchised restaurants. Our current standard
domestic IHOP franchise agreement typically provides for an initial term of 20 years and permits one renewal for a term of 10
years, upon payment of a renewal fee of $10,000.

The revenues we receive from a typical franchise development arrangement under the Current IHOP Business Model
include (a) a development fee equal to $20,000 for each IHOP restaurant that the franchisee contracts to develop upon
execution of a multi-restaurant development agreement; (b) an initial franchise fee equal to (i) $50,000 for a restaurant
developed under a single-restaurant development agreement or (ii) $40,000 (against which the $20,000 development fee will be
credited) for each restaurant developed under a multi-restaurant development agreement, in each case paid upon execution of
the franchise agreement; (c) franchise royalties equal to 4.5% of weekly gross sales; (d) revenue from the sale of pancake and
waffle dry-mixes; and (e) franchise advertising fees.

The principal terms of the franchise arrangements entered into under the Previous IHOP Business Model and the Current
IHOP Business Model, including the franchise royalties and the franchise advertising fees, are substantially the same except
with respect to the terms relating to the franchise fee, lease or sublease rents for the restaurant property and building, and
interest income from any franchise fee notes and equipment leases.

Development of Applebee’s and IHOP restaurants outside of the United States has historically been conducted through a
separate development agreement and franchise agreement. More recently, certain franchisees have entered into a multi-unit
franchise agreement that governs the rights and obligations to develop a territory, in addition to terms of operating each
restaurant opened in the territory. The term of a franchisee’s exclusive right to develop a territory ends when the agreement’s
development schedule is completed. The term to operate the restaurant is typically 20 years, subject to applicable renewals.



In limited instances, we have agreed to accept reduced royalties and/or lease payments from franchisees or have provided
other accommodations to franchisees for specified periods of time in order to assist them in either establishing or reinvigorating
their businesses. We have the contractual right, subject to applicable law, to terminate a franchise agreement for a variety of reasons,
including, but not limited to, a franchisee’s failure to make required payments when due or failure to adhere to specified Company
policies and standards.

Advertising Fees

We currently require domestic franchisees of Applebee's restaurants to contribute 3.25% of their gross sales to a national
advertising fund, which funds the development of national promotions, television and radio commercials and print advertising
materials. Applebee's franchisees are also required to spend at least 0.5% of their gross sales on local marketing and
promotional activities. Under the current Applebee's franchise agreements, we have the ability to increase the amount of the
required combined contribution to the national advertising fund and the amount required to be spent on local marketing and
promotional activities to a maximum of 5% of gross sales.

IHOP franchisees and company-operated restaurants allocate a percentage of their sales to local advertising cooperatives
and a national advertising fund (the “IHOP NAF”). The IHOP franchise agreements generally provide for advertising fees
comprised of (i) a local advertising fee generally equal to 2.0% of weekly gross sales under the franchise agreement, which is
typically used to cover the cost of local media purchases and other local advertising expenses incurred by a local advertising
cooperative, and (ii) a national advertising fee equal to 1.0% of weekly gross sales under the franchise agreement. Area
licensees are generally required to pay lesser amounts toward advertising.

The local IHOP advertising cooperatives have historically used advertising fees for various local marketing programs. The
IHOP NAF is primarily used for buying media and national advertising and also for the production of advertising. The [IHOP
NAF is also used to defray certain expenses associated with our marketing and advertising functions. Beginning in 2005, and
every year thereafter, we and the IHOP franchisees agreed to reallocate portions of the local advertising fees to purchase
national broadcast, syndication and cable television time in order to reach our target audience more frequently and more cost
effectively.

In 2014, we and franchisees whose restaurants contribute a large majority of total annual contributions to the IHOP NAF
entered into an amendment to their franchise agreements that increased the advertising contribution percentage of those
restaurants' gross sales. Pursuant to the amendment, for the period from June 30, 2014 to December 31, 2014, 2.74% of each
participating restaurant's gross sales was contributed to the IHOP NAF and 0.76% was contributed to local advertising
cooperatives. For the period from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017, 3.50% of each participating restaurant's gross sales
will be contributed to the IHOP NAF with no significant contribution to local advertising cooperatives required. The amended
advertising contribution percentage is also applicable to all new franchise agreements and to IHOP company-operated
restaurants. In 2016, we and franchisees whose restaurants contribute a large majority of total annual contributions to the IHOP
NAF extended this additional contribution through 2022.

Franchise advertising fees designated for the IHOP NAF and local marketing and advertising cooperatives are recognized
as revenue and expense of franchise operations. However, because we have less contractual control over Applebee's advertising
expenditures, Applebee’s national advertising fund activity is not recognized as franchise revenue and expense.

IHOP Area License Agreements

We have entered into two long-term area license agreements for IHOP restaurants covering the state of Florida and certain
counties in the state of Georgia, and the province of British Columbia, Canada. The area license agreements provide the
licensees with the right to develop and franchise new IHOP restaurants in their respective territories and provide for royalties
ranging from 1.0% to 2.0% of gross sales and advertising fees ranging from 0.25% to approximately 2.0% of gross sales.
During 2014, the advertising fee contribution provisions of the Florida area license agreement were amended for the period
through December 31, 2017 on substantially similar terms as the franchise agreement amendment described above. We also
derive revenues from the sale of proprietary products to these area licensees and, in certain instances, to their sub-franchisees.
Revenues from our area licensees are included in franchise operations revenues.

As of December 31, 2016, the area licensee for the state of Florida and certain counties in Georgia operated or sub-
franchised a total of 154 IHOP restaurants. The area licensee for the province of British Columbia, Canada operated or sub-
franchised a total of 13 IHOP restaurants. The area license for British Columbia expires in 2026. The area license for Florida
and Georgia expires in 2118.



Other Franchise-related Revenues and Fees

Approximately 87% of franchise segment revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016 consisted of Applebee's and
IHOP royalties and advertising revenue from domestic IHOP restaurants and international restaurants of both brands. Most of
the remaining 13% consisted of sales of proprietary products (primarily IHOP pancake and waffle dry-mixes), initial franchise
and renewal fees and software maintenance and support fees. Depending on circumstances, we may seek to recover a portion of
any royalties and fees lost due to early termination of a franchise agreement; however, not all franchise restaurant closures
necessarily result in our receipt of such fees.

International Franchising

We continue to pursue international franchising of the Applebee's and the IHOP concepts. To this end, we seek qualified
franchisees that possess the resources needed to open multiple restaurants in each territory and are familiar with the specific
local business environment in which they propose to develop and operate our restaurants. We work closely with our
international franchisees to develop and implement the Applebee's and IHOP systems outside the United States, recognizing
commercial, cultural and dietary diversity. Differences in tastes and cultural norms and standards require that we be flexible and
pragmatic regarding many elements of the Applebee's and IHOP systems, including menu, restaurant design, restaurant
operations, training, marketing, purchasing and financing.

The success of further international expansion will depend on, among other things, local acceptance of the Applebee's and
IHOP concepts and menu offerings and our ability to attract qualified franchisees and operating personnel. Our franchisees
must comply with the regulatory requirements of the local jurisdictions.

Domestic and International Franchise Restaurant Development

Each franchisee is responsible for selecting the site for each new restaurant. We may consult with franchisees when they
are selecting appropriate sites, and any selection made by a franchisee is subject to our approval. We also conduct a physical
inspection, review any proposed lease or purchase agreement for compliance with our requirements and may make available to
franchisees demographic and other studies. We make the design specifications for a typical restaurant available to franchisees,
and we retain the right to prohibit or modify the use of any set of plans.

As of December 31, 2016, the Applebee’s development agreements in place call for the opening of 62 domestic
restaurants, including 44 past-due development obligations, over the next three years, and 38 international restaurants over the
next seven years. As of December 31, 2016, we had signed commitments from IHOP franchisees to build 336 IHOP restaurants
over the next 17 years, comprised of eight restaurants under single restaurant or non-traditional development agreements, 190
restaurants under domestic multi-restaurant development agreements and 138 restaurants under international development
agreements. The signed agreements include options to build an additional 50 restaurants over the next 14 years, primarily under
domestic multi-restaurant development agreements.

Franchise Operations

We continuously monitor franchise restaurant operations. Company and third-party representatives make both scheduled
and unannounced inspections of franchised restaurants to ensure that only approved products are in use and that our prescribed
operations practices and procedures are being followed. We have the right to terminate a franchise agreement if a franchisee
does not operate and maintain a restaurant in accordance with our requirements. Due to cultural and regulatory differences, we
may have different requirements for restaurants opened outside of the United States. We also monitor the financial health of our
franchisees through business and financial reviews.

Composition of Franchise Systems

As of December 31, 2016, there were 34 Applebee’s franchisees that owned a total of 1,858 domestic Applebee's franchise
restaurants. The number of domestic restaurants held by an individual franchisee ranged from one restaurant to 485 restaurants.
As of December 31, 2016, there were 26 franchisees that owned a total of 158 international Applebee's franchise restaurants.
The number of international restaurants held by an individual franchisee ranged from one restaurant to 20 restaurants. Our five
largest Applebee’s franchisees owned 50% of the total 2,016 Applebee's franchise restaurants.

As of December 31, 2016, there were 314 franchisees that owned a total of 1,627 domestic IHOP franchise restaurants,
including 132 franchisees that each own one franchise restaurant. The largest individual IHOP franchisee owned 294 domestic
restaurants. As of December 31, 2016, there were 17 franchisees that owned a total of 96 international IHOP franchise
restaurants. The number of international restaurants held by an individual franchisee ranged from one restaurant to 16
restaurants. Our five largest IHOP franchisees owned 28% of the total 1,723 IHOP franchise restaurants.



Company-Operated Restaurants

As of December 31, 2016, we operated 10 IHOP restaurants located in the Cincinnati, Ohio market area and we did not
operate any Applebee's restaurants. Additionally, from time to time, we have reacquired IHOP restaurants from franchisees for a
variety of reasons. In most cases, we have been able to quickly refranchise these restaurants to new franchisees. When
reacquired restaurants are not quickly refranchised, we typically operate the reacquired restaurants until they can be
refranchised. These temporarily reacquired restaurants may require investments in remodeling and rehabilitation before they
can be refranchised. As a result, our reacquired restaurants may incur operating losses for some period of time. At
December 31, 2016, we operated no such reacquired IHOP restaurants.

Supply Chain

In February 2009, Centralized Supply Chain Services, LLC (“CSCS” or the “Co-op”), an independent cooperative entity,
was formed by us and franchisees of Applebee's and IHOP domestic restaurants. CSCS has been appointed as the sole
authorized purchasing organization and purchasing agent for goods, equipment and distribution services for Applebee's and
THOP restaurants in the United States. We (as operator of 10 company restaurants as of December 31, 2016) are a member of
CSCS and have committed to purchase substantially all goods, equipment and distribution services for company-operated
restaurants through the CSCS supply chain program. As of December 31, 2016, 100% of Applebee's domestic franchise
restaurants and 99% of IHOP domestic franchise restaurants were members of CSCS.

CSCS combines the purchasing volume for goods, equipment and distribution services within and across the Applebee's
and IHOP concepts. Its mission is to achieve for its members the benefit of continuously available goods, higher quality
equipment and distribution services in adequate quantities at the lowest possible sustainable prices. We do not control CSCS,
but do have contractual rights associated with supplier certification, quality assurance and protection of our intellectual
property. The operations of CSCS are funded by a separately stated administrative fee added to one or more products purchased
by operators.

We believe the larger scale provided by combining the supply chain requirements of both brands provides continuing cost
savings and efficiencies while helping to ensure compliance with our quality and safety standards.

Industry Overview and Competition

Applebee's and ITHOP are among the numerous restaurant chains and independent restaurants competing in the restaurant
industry in the United States. The restaurant industry is generally categorized into segments by price point ranges, the types of
food and beverages offered and the types of service available to customers. These segments include, among others, fast food or
quick service restaurants (“QSR”), fast-casual dining, family dining, casual dining and fine dining. Casual dining restaurants
offer full table service and typically have bars or serve liquor, wine and beer, while family dining restaurants offer full table
service, typically do not have bars or serve liquor, and usually offer breakfast in addition to lunch and dinner items.

Applebee's competes in the casual dining segment against national and multi-state restaurant chains such as Olive Garden,
Chili's, Buffalo Wild Wings, Outback Steakhouse and Red Lobster, among others, as well as fast-casual restaurant chains. In
addition, there are many independent restaurants across the country in the casual dining segment. Amongst our competitors,
Applebee's is the largest casual dining concept in the United States in terms of 2015 system-wide sales™.

IHOP competes in the family dining segment against national and multi-state restaurant chains such as Cracker Barrel Old
Country Store, Denny's, Golden Corral, Waffle House and Bob Evans Restaurants. IHOP also faces competition from QSR
restaurant chains and fast-casual restaurant chains that serve breakfast. In addition, there are many independent restaurants and
diners across the country in the family dining segment. Amongst our competitors, IHOP is the largest family dining concept in
the United States in terms of 2015 system-wide sales®.

The restaurant and related food-service industries are highly competitive and are affected by, among other things, economic
conditions, price levels, on-going changes in eating habits and food preferences, population trends and traffic patterns. The
principal bases of competition in the industry are the type, quality and price of the food products served. Restaurant location,
quality and speed of service, advertising, name identification and attractiveness of facilities are important. Additionally, changes
in the price of groceries may influence the attractiveness of dining at home versus dining out.

The market for high quality commercial real estate is also very competitive. We and our franchisees compete with other
restaurant chains and retail businesses for suitable sites for the development of new restaurants. We also compete against other
franchisors both within and outside the restaurant industry for new franchisees. For further information regarding competition,
see Item 1A, Risk Factors.

' Source: Nation's Restaurant News, "Special Report: Top 100," June 20, 2016.
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Trademarks and Service Marks

We and our affiliates have registered certain trademarks and service marks with the United States Patent and Trademark
Office and various international jurisdictions, including “DineEquity™” and “Great Franchisees. Great Brands.®” We own
trademarks and service marks used in the Applebee's system, including various logos and the trademarks “Applebee's®,”
“Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar®” and variations of each. In addition, we own trademarks and service marks used in the

IHOP system, including various logos and the trademarks “IHOP®,” “International House of Pancakes"” and variations of each.

We consider our trademarks and service marks important to the identification of our company and our restaurants and
believe they are of material importance to the conduct of our business. Depending upon the jurisdiction, trademarks and service
marks generally are valid as long as they are used and/or registered. We generally intend to renew our trademarks and service
marks as they come up for renewal. We own or have rights to all trademarks we believe are material to our restaurant
operations. In addition, we have registered various domain names on the Internet that incorporate certain of our trademarks and
service marks, and believe these domain name registrations are an integral part of our identity. From time to time, we may take
appropriate legal action to defend and protect the use of our intellectual property.

Information Technology

We utilize third-party point of sale systems, kitchen data systems, and back-of-the house systems for accounting, labor and
inventory management in our company restaurants. In addition, we have several consumer-facing technology initiatives
focused on improving our customers' experience. Sales and product mix information is transmitted to our restaurant support
centers on a daily basis and this information supports our operations and marketing initiatives. We mitigate the potential impact
from operational interruption of our information technology systems through a disaster recovery plan that is updated on a
regular basis. We believe that technology is and will continue to be a key component of our long-term plans and are committed
to providing system stability and targeted innovation. Our use of technology, particularly in terms of managing electronic
payments and confidential information, also represents security and operational risks that we must manage and may result in
additional costs incurred.

We accept credit cards, third party gift cards, and branded gift cards as payment in our restaurants. We submit our systems
to regular audit and review, as required by Payment Card Industry Standards, including periodic scanning of our networks to
check for vulnerability. In addition, we participate in annual audits of our financial and human resources systems to verify that
measures are in place to protect our employees' personally identifiable information. As a franchisor, we are not responsible for
ensuring that our franchisees maintain compliance; however, we regularly encourage them to take similar steps to maintain
compliance and to mitigate risk. For further information regarding Information Technology, see Item 1A, Risk Factors.

Research and Development

We do not engage in any material amount of research and development activity from a financial accounting perspective.
We do engage in ongoing culinary development and testing, in addition to consumer research into customers’ preferences and
opinions as well as overall industry trends.

Seasonality

We do not consider our operations to be seasonal to any material degree. We do experience a slight increase in system-wide
sales in the first quarter due to redemptions of gift cards sold during the December holiday season. Over the past five years, 26%
of our annual system-wide sales (retail sales reported to us by our franchisees plus sales at our company-operated restaurants)
occurred in the first quarter of the fiscal year. Sales at restaurants owned by franchisees are not attributable to the Company.

Government Regulation

We are subject to Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) regulation and a number of state laws which regulate the offer and
sale of franchises. We also are subject to a number of state laws which regulate substantive aspects of the franchisor-franchisee
relationship. The FTC's Trade Regulation Rule on Franchising, as amended (the “FTC Rule”), requires us to furnish to
prospective domestic franchisees a Franchise Disclosure Document containing information prescribed by the FTC Rule.

State laws that regulate the offer and sale of franchises and the franchisor-franchisee relationship presently exist in a
number of states and some of these laws require registration of the franchise offering with the state authorities. Those states that
regulate the franchise relationship generally require that the franchisor deal with its franchisees in good faith, prohibit
interference with the right of free association among franchisees, limit the imposition of unreasonable standards of performance
on a franchisee and regulate discrimination against franchisees with respect to charges, royalty fees or other fees. Although such
laws may restrict a franchisor in the termination and/or non-renewal of a franchise agreement by, for example, requiring "good
cause" to exist as a basis for the termination and/or non-renewal, advance notice to the franchisee of the termination or non-
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renewal, an opportunity to cure a default and a repurchase of inventory or other compensation upon termination, these
provisions have not historically had a significant effect on our franchise operations.

Each restaurant is subject to licensing and regulation by a number of governmental authorities, which may include liquor
license authorities (primarily in the case of Applebee's restaurants), health, sanitation, safety, fire, building and other agencies in
the state or municipality in which the restaurant is located. We are also subject to new laws and regulations, which may vary
from jurisdiction to jurisdiction, relating to nutritional content and menu labeling.

More stringent and varied requirements of local governmental bodies with respect to zoning, land use and environmental
factors could delay or prevent the development of new restaurants in particular areas.

Various federal and state labor laws govern our relationship with employees and our franchisees' relationship with their
own employees. These include such matters as minimum wage requirements, overtime and other working conditions.
Significant additional government-imposed increases in minimum wages, paid leaves of absence, mandated health benefits or
increased tax reporting and tax payment requirements with respect to employees who receive gratuities could be detrimental to
the economic viability of our and our franchisees' restaurants.

We are subject to a number of privacy and data protection laws and regulations globally. The legislative and regulatory
landscape for privacy and data protection continues to evolve, and there has been an increase in attention given to privacy and
data protection issues with the potential to affect directly our business, including recently enacted laws and regulations in the
United States and internationally requiring notification to individuals and government authorities of security breaches involving
certain categories of personal information.

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the Health Care and Education Affordability Reconciliation Act of
2010 are far-reaching and are intended to expand access to health insurance coverage over time by adjusting the eligibility
thresholds for most state Medicaid programs and providing certain other individuals and small businesses with tax credits to
subsidize a portion of the cost of health insurance coverage. The laws include a requirement that most individuals obtain health
insurance coverage and a requirement that certain large employers offer coverage to their employees or pay a financial penalty.
The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act has increased our franchisees' employee costs in some respects and may
continue to impact our franchisees' employee costs.

In recent years, there has been an increased legislative, regulatory and consumer focus at the federal, state and municipal
levels on the food industry including nutrition and advertising practices. Restaurants operating in the quick-service and fast-
casual segments have been a particular focus. In addition to the United States Food and Drug Administration’s recently adopted
menu labeling requirements for restaurants, a number of other jurisdictions around the United States have adopted regulations
requiring that chain restaurants include calorie information on their menus or make other nutritional information available.
Initiatives in the area of nutrition disclosure or advertising, such as requirements to provide information about the nutritional
content of our food, may result in increased costs of compliance with the requirements and may also change customer buying
habits in a way that adversely impacts our sales. For further information regarding governmental regulation, see Item 1A, Risk
Factors.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to federal and state environmental regulations, but historically these have not had a material effect on our
operations. We are not aware of any federal, state or local environmental laws or regulations that are likely to materially impact
our revenues, cash flow or competitive position, or result in any material capital expenditure. However, we cannot predict the
effect of possible future environmental legislation or regulations.

Employees

At December 31, 2016, we had approximately 960 employees, of whom approximately 500 were full-time, non-restaurant,
corporate personnel. Our employees are not presently represented by any collective bargaining agreements and we have never
experienced a work stoppage. We believe our relations with employees are good. Our franchisees are independent business
owners and their employees are not our employees. Therefore, their employees are not included in our employee count.
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Corporate Information

We were incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware in 1976 with the name IHOP Corp. In November 2007, we
completed the acquisition of Applebee’s, which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Effective June 2, 2008, we
changed our name to DineEquity, Inc. Our principal executive offices are located at 450 North Brand Boulevard, Glendale,
California 91203-2306 and our telephone number is (818) 240-6055. Our Internet address is www.dineequity.com. Our common
stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) and trades under the ticker symbol “DIN.”

Available Information

Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, proxy statements and
amendments to those reports filed with or furnished to the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”)
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available free of charge through our
website as soon as reasonably practicable after electronically filing such material with the SEC. The SEC maintains an Internet
site that contains periodic reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding our filings at
www.sec.gov. In addition, the public may read and copy the materials we file with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference
Room at 100 F. Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549. Information regarding the operation of the Public Reference Room may
be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The above references to our website and the SEC’s website do not
constitute incorporation by reference of the information contained on those websites and should not be considered part of this
document.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

This Item 1A includes forward-looking statements. You should refer to our discussion of the qualifications and limitations
on forward-looking statements included in Item 7.

The occurrence of any of the events discussed in the following risk factors may materially adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations, which may materially adversely affect the value of our common stock. It is not
possible to identify or predict all risk factors. There may be risks and uncertainties that are not currently known or that are
currently deemed by us to be immaterial. These other risks and uncertainties may also impact our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Our business is affected by general economic conditions that are largely out of our control. Our business is dependent
to a significant extent on national, regional and local economic conditions, and, to a lesser extent, on global economic
conditions, particularly those conditions affecting the demographics of the guests that frequently patronize Applebee's or IHOP
restaurants. If our customers' disposable income available for discretionary spending is reduced (because of circumstances such
as job losses, credit constraints, higher housing costs, increased tax rates, energy costs, interest rates or other costs) or if the
perceived wealth of customers decreases (because of circumstances such as lower residential real estate values, increased
foreclosure rates, increased tax rates or other economic disruptions), our business could experience a decline in sales and/or
customer traffic as potential customers choose lower-cost alternatives (such as quick-service restaurants) or other alternatives to
dining out. Additionally, negative trends in the availability of credit and in expenses such as interest rates and the cost of
construction materials could affect our ability or our franchisees' ability to maintain and remodel existing restaurants. Any
decreases in customer traffic or average customer check due to these or other reasons could reduce gross sales at franchise
restaurants, resulting in lower royalty and other payments from franchisees. This could reduce the profitability of franchise
restaurants, potentially impacting the ability of franchisees to make royalty payments owed to us when due and negatively
impacting franchisees’ ability to develop new restaurants as may be required in their respective development agreements.

Our level of indebtedness could adversely affect our financial health and prevent us from fulfilling our obligations
under our debt. As of December 31, 2016, certain of our indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries had approximately $1.3 billion
of long-term debt. In addition, we had approximately $0.1 billion in financing and capital lease obligations as of December 31,
2016. Our level of indebtedness could have important consequences to our financial health. For example, it could:

* make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our debt or refinance any of our debt on attractive
terms, commercially reasonable terms, or at all;

* increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions or a downturn in our business;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to debt service, thereby reducing the
availability of our cash flow to pay dividends to our stockholders, repurchase shares of our common stock, fund
working capital, capital expenditures and other general corporate purposes;

* limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we operate;
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* place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that are not as highly leveraged;

+ limit, along with the financial and other restrictive covenants in our indebtedness, among other things, our ability to
borrow additional funds; and

+ result in an event of default if we fail to satisfy our obligations under our debt or fail to comply with the financial and
other restrictive covenants contained in our debt documents, which event of default could result in all of our debt
becoming immediately due and payable and could permit certain of our lenders to foreclose on our assets securing such
debt.

In addition, we may incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. If new debt is added to our current debt levels,
the related risks that we now face could intensify.

The terms of the securitized debt issued by certain of our indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries have restrictive terms and
the failure to comply with such restrictive terms could put us in default, which would have an adverse effect on our business
and prospects. Unless and until we repay all outstanding borrowings under our securitized debt, we will remain subject to the
restrictive terms of the securitized debt issued by certain of our indirect, wholly-owned subsidiaries. For example, the
indenture entered into by such subsidiaries in connection with the securitized debt contains covenants that limit the ability of
certain of our wholly-owned subsidiaries to, among other things: sell assets; alter the business conducted by such subsidiaries;
engage in mergers or acquisitions; declare dividends or redeem or purchase certain equity interests; incur, assume or permit to
exist additional indebtedness or guarantees; make loans and investments; incur liens; and enter into transactions with affiliates
other than on an arms-length basis. These covenants are applicable only to the securitization subsidiaries and do not apply to
any of DineEquity, Inc., International House of Pancakes, LLC or Applebee’s International, Inc. as these entities are not a party
to the indenture. A breach of a covenant could result in a rapid amortization event or default under the securitized debt.

Further, the securitized debt also includes limitations on our ability to incur additional indebtedness and contains a number
of financial performance measures that must be met to avoid a possible rapid amortization event or event of default. The most
significant of these measures include a minimum debt service coverage ratio and minimum domestic franchise system sales.
The ability to meet these financial performance measures can be affected by events beyond our control and there can be no
assurance that we will satisfy these financial measures.

If amounts owed under the securitized debt are accelerated because of a default and we are unable to pay such amounts, the
investors may have the right to assume control of substantially all of the securitized assets, which consist of substantially all of
our domestic revenue-generating assets and domestic intellectual property.

During the seven-year term following issuance, the outstanding fixed-rate senior notes will accrue interest at a rate of
4.277% per year. Additionally, the fixed-rate senior notes have scheduled quarterly principal amortization payments of $3.25
million. If we maintain a leverage ratio of less than or equal to 5.25x total debt to adjusted EBITDA (See Exhibit 12.1), we may
elect to not make the scheduled principal payments. If we are unable to refinance or repay amounts under the securitized debt
prior to the expiration of the seven-year term, our cash flow would be directed to the repayment of the securitized debt and,
other than a weekly management fee sufficient to cover minimal selling, general and administrative expenses, would not be
available for operating our business.

In the event that a rapid amortization event occurs under the indenture (including, without limitation, upon an event of
default under the indenture or the failure to repay the securitized debt at the end of the seven-year term), the funds available to
us would be reduced or eliminated, which would in turn reduce our ability to operate or grow our business.

No assurance can be given that any refinancing or additional financing will be possible when needed or that we will be
able to negotiate acceptable terms. In addition, our access to capital is affected by prevailing conditions in the financial and
capital markets and other factors beyond our control. There can be no assurance that market conditions will be favorable at the
times that we require new or additional financing.

We are heavily dependent on information technology and any material failure of that technology could impair our
ability to effectively and efficiently operate our business. We rely heavily on information technology systems across our
operations, including point-of-sale processing in our and our franchisees' restaurants, management of our supply chain,
collection of cash, payment of obligations and various other processes and procedures. Our ability to effectively and efficiently
manage our business depends significantly on the reliability and capacity of these systems. The failure of these systems to
operate effectively, problems with maintenance, upgrades or transitions to replacement systems, inaccurate or fraudulent
manipulation of sales reporting from our restaurants resulting in loss of sales and royalty payments, or a breach in security of
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these systems could be harmful and cause delays in customer service, reduce efficiency in our operations and negatively impact
our business. Significant capital investment might be required to remediate any problems.

In addition, we outsource certain essential technology-based business processes to third party vendors that subjects us to
risks, including disruptions in business, increased costs and exposure to data breaches or privacy law compliance issues of our
third party vendors.

The occurrence of cyber incidents, or a deficiency in our cybersecurity, could negatively impact our business by causing
a disruption to our operations, a compromise or corruption of our confidential information, and/or damage to our employee
and business relationships, all of which could subject us to loss and harm our brands. A cyber incident is considered to be
any adverse event that threatens the confidentiality, integrity, or availability of our information resources. More specifically, a
cyber incident is an intentional attack or an unintentional event that can include gaining unauthorized access to systems to
disrupt operations, corrupt data, or steal confidential information about our customers, franchisees, vendors and employees. As
our reliance on technology has increased, so have the risks posed to our systems, both internal and those that we have
outsourced. Primary adverse events that could directly result from the occurrence of a cyber incident include (i) exposure of
confidential data about our customers, franchisees, vendors and employees, (ii) damage to the reputation of our brands (iii)
damage to our relationship with our franchisees and (iv) interruption of our business.

As a merchant and service provider of point of sale related services, we are subject to the Payment Card Industry Data
Security Standard (“PCI DSS”), issued by the Payment Card Industry Council. PCI DSS contains compliance guidelines and
standards with regard to our security surrounding the physical and electronic storage, processing and transmission of individual
cardholder data. Despite our information security measures and our efforts to comply with PCI DSS guidelines, we cannot be
certain that all of our information technology systems are able to prevent, contain or detect any cyber-attacks or security
breaches from known malware or malware that may be developed in the future.

Our use of personally identifiable information is regulated by international, federal and state laws, as well as by certain
third-party agreements. If our security and information systems are compromised or if our employees or franchisees fail to
comply with these laws and regulations, and this information is obtained by unauthorized persons or used inappropriately, it
could adversely affect our reputation and could disrupt our operations and result in costly litigation, judgments, or penalties
resulting from violation of federal and state laws and payment card industry regulations. As privacy and information security
laws and regulations change, we may incur additional costs to ensure that we remain in compliance with those laws and
regulations.

Restaurant development plans under development agreements may not be implemented effectively and developed
restaurants may not achieve desired results. We rely on franchisees to develop Applebee's and IHOP restaurants. From time to
time, our franchisees have failed to fulfill their commitments to build new restaurants in the numbers and within the timeframes
required by their development agreements, and we expect that this will continue to varying degrees in the future. Restaurant
development and the success of restaurants opened by our franchisees involve substantial risks, including the following:

* the demand for Applebee’s and IHOP restaurants and the selection of appropriate franchisee candidates;

* costs of construction, permit issuance and regulatory compliance;

+ the availability of suitable locations and terms for potential development sites, including lease or purchase terms for
new locations;

+ the availability of financing, at acceptable rates and terms, to both franchisees and third-party landlords, for restaurant
development and/or implementation of our business strategy through new remodel programs and other operational
changes;

* delays in obtaining construction permits and in completion of construction;

* competition for suitable development sites;

+ changes in governmental rules, regulations, and interpretations (including interpretations of the requirements of the
Americans with Disabilities Act); and

+ general economic and business conditions.

Additionally, developed restaurants may not achieve desired revenue or cash flow levels once opened. This could result in
restaurant closures, which may be significant in number, and may cause our royalty revenues and financial performance to
decline. The inability to open new restaurants that achieve and sustain acceptable sales volumes and/or the closure of existing
restaurants that do not achieve or sustain acceptable sales volumes, which if significant in number, may have a material adverse
effect on our business and financial condition.
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Approximately 99% of our restaurants are owned and operated by our franchisees and, as a result, we are highly
dependent upon our franchisees. All Applebee’s and nearly all IHOP restaurants are owned and operated by our franchisees.
Our dependence on franchisees could adversely affect us, our brands, and our business, financial condition and results of
operations. Our financial results are significantly contingent upon the performance of our franchise restaurants because we
derive a substantial portion of our revenues from royalties. Worsening economic conditions and declining trends in sales, traffic
and/or average check could impact the performance of our franchise restaurants, resulting in lower royalty, advertising fund and
other payments from franchisees. If declining conditions persist, franchisee profitability and financial health may worsen and
franchisees may suffer from financial, personal or other difficulties, including insolvency. Franchisees may also experience
financial risks unrelated to the operation of restaurants under our brands, such as a decline in performance of other brands or
businesses held by franchisees. Additionally, lenders to our franchisees may be less likely to provide current or prospective
franchisees necessary financing on favorable terms, or at all, due to market conditions and our or our franchisees’ operating
results. These and other factors could impact franchisees’ ability to make royalty and other payments owed to us when due and
franchisees could default on their financial obligations to us. A decrease in franchisee profitability as well as other reasons
could also cause franchisees’ failure or inability to meet new restaurant development obligations and other obligations such as
maintenance or remodel requirements and rent obligations for certain leases on which we retain contingent liability.

Additionally, our franchise agreements have expiration dates. Upon expiration, franchisees are required to enter into new
franchise agreements in order to extend the franchise relationship. We or the franchisee may or may not elect to enter into these
successor franchise agreements based on a number of factors, including a failure to meet our criteria, lack of interest by either
party and/or the inability of franchisees to enter into successor franchise agreements. It is expected that, in the ordinary course
of business, some franchise agreements will expire without successor franchise agreements. However, a substantial number of
franchise agreements are set to expire in 2020 and 2021 for Applebee’s and 2024 through 2028 for IHOP, and we cannot ensure
that we and/or our franchisees will enter into successor franchise agreements once current terms expire. This may result in
reduced royalties and other payments due to a decrease in the number of restaurants operating under our brands.

As independent third parties, franchisees own, operate and oversee the daily operations of their restaurants and their
employees are not our employees. Accordingly, we do not control their actions. While our franchise agreements are designed
to maintain brand consistency, the significant percentage of franchise operated restaurants may expose us to risks not otherwise
encountered if we maintained ownership and control of the restaurants. Franchisees may breach the terms of their franchise
agreements in a manner that adversely affects our brands, such as failing to operate restaurants in accordance with our required
standards, and we may be limited in our ability to enforce franchise obligations. Franchisees are required to conform to
specified product quality standards and other requirements pursuant to their franchise agreements in order to protect our brands
and to optimize restaurant performance. If franchisees do not successfully operate their restaurants in a manner consistent with
our standards, or customers have negative experiences due to issues with food quality or operational execution, our reputation
and brands could suffer, which could result in a material adverse effect on our business. The quality of franchisees’ operations
may also be diminished by factors beyond our control, including a lack of investment in enhancing or maintaining acceptable
standards for restaurant operations due to financial and other constraints. Franchisees may also fail or be unable to hire or
retain qualified managers and other personnel and training of managers and other personnel may be inadequate. These and
other such negative factors could reduce franchisees' restaurant revenues, impact payments to us under the franchise
agreements and could have a material adverse effect on us.

Various other risks associated with the operation of a highly franchised business model that may have a material adverse
effect on our business or financial condition include:

* inability or unwillingness of franchisees to participate in implementing changes or to participate in business strategy
changes;

* inability or unwillingness of franchisees to support our marketing programs and strategic initiatives;

* inability to participate in business strategy changes due to financial constraints;

 failure of franchisees to report sales information accurately;

+ greater proportional impact of general and administrative expenses on our business and financial condition; and

* inability to retain franchisees in the future, both in terms of number and quality, and inability to attract, retain and
motivate sufficient numbers of franchisees of the same caliber, including top performing franchisees.

While we try to maintain positive working relationships with our franchisees, the nature of the franchisor-franchisee
relationship inherently subjects us to potential disagreements with our franchisees on matters pertaining to the business and/or
our brands. From time to time, we have experienced, and we may continue to experience, poor franchise relations caused by
the efforts of one or more large franchisees or an organized franchise association.
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Concentration of Applebee's franchised restaurants in a limited number of franchisees subjects us to greater risk. As of
December 31, 2016, Applebee's franchisees operated 1,858 Applebee's restaurants in the United States, representing 100% of
the Applebee's restaurants in the United States. Of those restaurants, the ten largest Applebee's franchisees owned 1,335
restaurants, representing 72% of all franchised Applebee's restaurants in the United States. The largest Applebee's franchisee
owned 485 restaurants, representing 26% of all franchised Applebee's restaurants in the United States. The concentration of
franchised restaurants in a limited number of franchisees subjects us to a potentially higher level of risk with respect to such
franchisees because their obligations to us, including financial obligations, are greater as compared to those franchisees with
fewer restaurants. The risk associated with these franchisees is also greater where franchisees are the sole or dominant
franchisee for a particular region of the United States, as is the case for most domestic Applebee's franchised territories. In
particular, if any of these franchisees experiences financial or other difficulties, the franchisee may default on its obligations
under multiple franchise agreements including payments to us and the maintenance and improvement of its restaurants. Any
franchisee that is experiencing financial difficulties may also be unable to participate in implementing changes to our business
strategy. Any franchisee that owns and operates a significant number of Applebee's restaurants and fails to comply with its
other obligations under the franchise agreement, such as those relating to the quality and preparation of food and maintenance
of restaurants, could cause significant harm to the Applebee's brand and subject us to claims by consumers even if we are not
legally liable for the franchisee's actions or failure to act. Development rights for Applebee's restaurants are also concentrated
among a limited number of existing franchisees. If any of these existing franchisees experience financial difficulties, future
development of Applebee's restaurants may be materially adversely affected.

We are subject to credit risk from our IHOP franchisees operating under our Previous IHOP Business Model, and a
default by these franchisees may negatively affect our cash flows. Of the 1,473 IHOP restaurants subject to domestic
franchise agreements as of December 31, 2016, slightly less than half operate under the Previous IHOP Business Model. The
Company was involved in all aspects of the development and financing of the [HOP restaurants established prior to 2003.
Under the Previous IHOP Business Model, the Company typically identified and leased or purchased the restaurant sites, built
and equipped the restaurants and then franchised them to franchisees. In addition, IHOP typically financed as much as 80% of
the franchise fee for periods ranging from five to eight years and leased the restaurant and equipment to the franchisee over a
25-year period. Therefore, in addition to franchise fees and royalties, the revenues received from an IHOP franchisee operating
under the Previous IHOP Business Model include, among other things, lease or sublease rents for the restaurant property
building, rent under an equipment lease and interest income from the financing arrangements for the unpaid portion of the
franchise fee under the franchise notes. If any of these IHOP franchisees were to default on their payment obligations to us, we
may be unable to collect the amounts owed under the building property lease/sublease agreement and our notes and equipment
contract receivables, as well as outstanding franchise royalties. The additional amounts owed to us by each of these IHOP
franchisees subject us to greater credit risk and defaults by IHOP franchisees operating under our Previous IHOP Business
Model and may negatively affect our cash flows.

Franchisees are subject to potential losses that are not covered by insurance that may negatively impact their ability to
make payments to us and perform other obligations under franchise agreements. Franchisees may have insufficient
insurance coverage to cover all of the potential risks associated with the ownership and operation of their restaurants. A
franchisee may have insufficient funds to cover future unanticipated increases in insurance premiums or losses that are not
covered by insurance. Certain extraordinary hazards may not be insurable and insurance may not be available (or may be
available only at prohibitively expensive rates) with respect to many other risks. Moreover, there is no assurance that any loss
incurred will not exceed the limits on the policies obtained, or that claim payments on such policies will be received on a timely
basis, or even if obtained on a timely basis, that such payments will prevent losses to such franchisee or enable timely franchise
payments. Accordingly, in cases in which a franchisee experiences increased insurance premiums or must pay claims out-of-
pocket, the franchisee may not have the funds necessary to make franchise and other payments to us.

An insolvency or bankruptcy proceeding involving a franchisee could prevent the collection of payments or the exercise
of rights under the related franchise agreement. An insolvency proceeding involving a franchisee could prevent us from
collecting payments or exercising any of our other rights under the related franchise agreement. If a franchisee is subject to
bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings, a bankruptcy court may prevent the termination of the related franchise and
development agreement. In particular, the protection of the statutory automatic stay that arises under Section 362 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code upon the commencement of a bankruptcy proceeding by or against a franchisee would prohibit us from
terminating a franchise agreement previously entered into with a franchisee. Furthermore, a franchisee that is subject to
bankruptcy proceedings may reject the franchise agreement in which case we would be limited to a general unsecured claim
against the franchisee's bankruptcy estate on account of breach-of-contract damages arising from the rejection. Payments
previously made to us by a franchisee that is subject to a bankruptcy proceeding also may be recoverable from us on behalf of
the franchisee as a preferential transfer under the United States Bankruptcy Code.
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If franchisees and other licensees do not observe the required quality and trademark usage standards, our brands may
suffer reputational damage, which could in turn adversely affect our business. We license our intellectual property to our
franchisees, product suppliers, manufacturers, distributors, advertisers and other third parties. The franchise agreements and
other license agreements require that each franchisee or other licensee use our intellectual property in accordance with
established or approved quality control guidelines. However, there can be no assurance that the franchisees or other licensees
will use the intellectual property assets in accordance with such guidelines. Franchisee and licensee noncompliance with the
terms and conditions of the governing franchise agreement or other license agreement may reduce the overall goodwill
associated with our brands. Franchisees and other licensees may refer to our intellectual property improperly in
communications, resulting in the weakening of the distinctiveness of our intellectual property. There can be no assurance that
the franchisees or other licensees will not take actions that could have a material adverse effect on the Applebee's or [HOP
intellectual property.

In addition, even if the licensee product suppliers, manufacturers, distributors, or advertisers observe and maintain the
quality and integrity of our intellectual property assets in accordance with the relevant license agreement, any product
manufactured by such suppliers may be subject to regulatory sanctions and other actions by third parties which can, in turn,
negatively impact the perceived quality of our restaurants and the overall goodwill of our brands, regardless of the nature and
type of product involved. Any such sanctions or actions could reduce restaurant revenues and corresponding franchise
payments to us.

Our performance is subject to risks associated with the restaurant industry, including the highly competitive nature of
the industry. We derive a substantial portion of our revenues in the form of royalties based on a percentage of the gross sales
of our franchised restaurants. Sales and profitability of these restaurants and, in turn, payments we receive from our
franchisees may be negatively impacted by a number of factors associated with operating in the restaurant industry, some of
which are outside of our control. These factors include:

» changes in consumer behavior driven by macro-level shifts in technology, media, e-commerce, global safety and

demography which may impact where, when, whether and how often customers visit full-service restaurants;

* declines in comparable-restaurant sales growth rates due to: (i) failure to meet or adequately adapt to changing
customer expectations for food quality and taste, or to innovate and develop new menu items to retain existing
customers and attract new customers; (i) competitive intrusions in our markets, including competitive pricing
initiatives; (iii) opening new restaurants that cannibalize the sales of existing restaurants; (iv) failure of national or local
marketing to be effective; and (v) natural or man-made disasters or adverse weather conditions;

* negative trends in operating expenses such as: (i) increases in food and other commodity costs; (ii) increases in labor
costs due to minimum wage and other employment laws or regulations, immigration reform, the potential impact of
union organizing efforts, tight labor market conditions and the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act; and
(iii) increases in other operating costs including advertising, utilities, lease-related expenses and credit card processing
fees;

* the highly competitive nature of the restaurant and related industries with respect to, among other things: (i) price,
service, location, personnel and the type and quality of food; (ii) the trend toward convergence in grocery, deli, retail
and restaurant services, as well as the continued expansion of restaurants into the breakfast daypart; (iii) the entry of
major market players in non-competing industries into the food services market; (iv) the decline in the price of
groceries which may increase the attractiveness of dining at home versus dining out; and (v) the emergence of new or
improved technologies such as table top devices and mobile or online ordering and consumer behavior facilitated by
such technology;

« the inability to increase menu pricing to offset increased operating expenses; and

 failure to effectively manage further penetration into mature markets.

Factors outside our control may harm our brands' reputations. The success of our business is largely dependent upon
brand recognition and the strength of our franchise systems. Our and our franchisees’ continued success is directly dependent
upon maintaining a favorable public view of the Applebee's and IHOP brands. Negative publicity (e.g., crime, scandal,
litigation, on-site accidents and injuries or other harm to customers and food-borne illness) at a single Applebee's or IHOP
location can have a substantial negative impact on all restaurants within the Applebee's or IHOP system. Multi-unit food
service businesses such as ours can be materially and adversely affected by widespread negative publicity of any type, but
particularly regarding food quality, food-borne illness, food tampering or preparation, obesity, injury or other health concerns
with respect to certain foods, regardless of whether such claim is accurate or valid.

The risk of food-borne illness or food tampering cannot be completely eliminated. Any outbreak of food-borne illness or
other food-related incidents attributed to Applebee's or IHOP restaurants or within the food service industry or any widespread
negative publicity regarding the Applebee's or IHOP brands or the restaurant industry in general could harm our reputation.
Even where such food-related incidents occur solely at restaurants of our competitors or within the industry, our business could
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be adversely affected as a result of negative publicity about the restaurant industry generally. Franchisees may produce or
receive through the supply chain sub-standard or non-compliant food or beverage products. Failure of franchisees to comply
with food quality and preparation requirements may subject us to potential losses even when we are not legally liable for a
franchisee's actions or failure to act. Although the Company maintains liability insurance, and each franchisee is required to
maintain liability insurance pursuant to its franchise agreements, a liability claim could injure the reputation of all Applebee's or
IHOP restaurants, whether or not it is ultimately successful.

Declines in our financial performance could result in impairment charges in future periods. United States generally
accepted accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”) require annual (or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
warrant) impairment tests of goodwill, intangible assets and other long-lived assets. Generally speaking, if the carrying value of
the asset is in excess of the estimated fair value of the asset, the carrying value will be adjusted to fair value through an
impairment charge. Fair values of goodwill and intangible assets are primarily estimated using discounted cash flows based on
five-year forecasts of financial results that incorporate assumptions including, among other things, same-restaurant sales trends,
future development plans, brand-enhancing initiatives, restaurant closures and an appropriate discount rate. Fair values of long-
lived tangible assets are primarily estimated using discounted cash flows over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Significant underachievement of forecasted results or changes in the discount rate assumption could reduce the estimated fair
value of these assets below the carrying value, requiring non-cash impairment charges to reduce the carrying value of the asset.
As of December 31, 2016, our total stockholders' equity was $252.8 million. A significant impairment write-down of goodwill,
intangible assets or long-lived assets in the future could result in a deficit balance in stockholders' equity. While such a deficit
balance would not create an event of default in any of our contractual agreements, the negative perception of such a deficit
could have an adverse effect on our stock price and could impair our ability to obtain new financing, or refinance existing
indebtedness on commercially reasonable terms or at all.

Many factors, including those over which we have no control, affect the trading volatility and price of our stock. Many
factors, in addition to our operating results, may have an impact on the trading volatility and price of our common stock. These
factors include general economic and market conditions, publicity regarding us, our competitors, or the restaurant industry
generally, changes in financial estimates by securities analysts, changes in financial or tax reporting and accounting principles
or practices, trading activity in our common stock, and the impact of our capital allocation initiatives, including any future
stock repurchase programs or dividend declarations. A number of these factors are outside of our control, and any failure to
meet market expectations whether for sales growth, earnings per share or other metrics could cause our share price to decline.

Our actual operating and financial results in any given period may differ from guidance we provide to the public,
including our most recent public guidance. From time to time, in press releases, SEC filings, public conference calls and
other contexts, we have provided guidance to the public regarding current business conditions and our expectations for our
future financial results. We expect that we will provide guidance periodically in the future. Our guidance is based upon a
number of assumptions, expectations and estimates that are inherently subject to significant business, economic and
competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. In providing our guidance, we also make
various assumptions with respect to our future business decisions, some of which will change. Our actual financial results,
therefore, may vary from our guidance due to our inability to meet the assumptions upon which our guidance is based and the
impact on our business of the various risks and uncertainties described in these risk factors and in our public filings with the
SEC. Variances between our actual results and our guidance may be material. To the extent that our actual financial results do
not meet or exceed our guidance, the trading prices of our securities may be materially adversely affected.

Our business strategy may not achieve anticipated results. We expect to continue to apply a business strategy that
includes: (i) operation of a 99% franchised restaurant system; (ii) the maintenance of a purchasing cooperative that procures
products and services for our Applebee's and IHOP restaurants; (iii) the possible introduction or acquisition of new restaurant
concepts; and (iv) the continued implementation of a shared service model across our brands for various functions, including
legal, human resources, communications, quality assurance, information technology, finance and centers of excellence in
consumer insights/business analytics, development and operations support. There can be no assurance that the business
strategy we apply to one franchise system will be suitable or will achieve results similar to the application of such business
strategy to the other franchise system. In addition, our operational improvement, purchasing and other strategic initiatives may
not be successful or achieve the desired results. In particular, there can be no assurance that the existing franchisees or
prospective new franchisees will respond favorably to such initiatives.
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A lack of availability of suitable locations for new restaurants or a decline in the quality of the locations of our current
restaurants may adversely affect our sales and results of operations. The success of our restaurants depends in large part on
their locations. As demographic and economic patterns change, current locations may not continue to be attractive or profitable.
Potential declines in neighborhoods where our restaurants are located or adverse economic conditions in areas surrounding
those neighborhoods could result in reduced sales in those locations. In addition, desirable locations for new restaurant
openings or for the relocation of existing restaurants may not be available at an acceptable cost when we identify a particular
opportunity for a new restaurant or relocation. Additionally, restaurant revitalization initiatives may not be completed as and
when projected and may not produce the results we expect. We may also be unable to operate effectively in new and/or highly
competitive geographic regions or local markets in which our franchisees have limited operating experience.

We may experience shortages or interruptions in the supply or delivery of food and other products from third parties or
in the availability of utilities. Our franchised and company-operated restaurants are dependent on frequent deliveries of fresh
produce, food, beverages and other products. Shortages or interruptions in food and beverage supplies may result from a variety
of causes, including shortages due to adverse weather, labor unrest, political unrest, terrorism, outbreaks of food-borne illness,
disruption of operation of production facilities, financial difficulties (including bankruptcy) of our suppliers or other unforeseen
circumstances. Such shortages could adversely affect our revenue and profits. The inability to secure adequate and reliable
supplies or distribution of food and beverage products could limit our ability to make changes to our core menus or offer
promotional "limited time only" menu items, which may limit our ability to implement our business strategies. Our restaurants
bear risks associated with the timeliness of deliveries by suppliers and distributors as well as the solvency, reputation, labor
relationships, freight rates, prices of raw materials and health and safety standards of each supplier and distributor. Other
significant risks associated with our suppliers and distributors include improper handling of food and beverage products and/or
the adulteration or contamination of such food and beverage products. Disruptions in our relationships with suppliers and
distributors may reduce the payments we receive from our franchisees or our pancake and waffle dry mix distributors or the
profits generated by our company-operated restaurants. In addition, interruptions to the availability of gas, electric, water or
other utilities may adversely affect our operations.

Any inability to effectively manage or forecast appropriate inventory levels may adversely affect our business. Effective
management of inventory levels depends, in part, on our ability to anticipate and respond in a timely manner to changing
consumer demand and preferences. From time to time, we may carry excessive inventory resulting from menu events that vary
from forecasted demand which may result in financial loss to us and/or to our franchisees. Conversely, if we underestimate
demand, we may experience inventory shortages which may result in lost revenues.

A failure to develop and implement innovative marketing and guest relationship initiatives, ineffective or improper use
of social media or other marketing initiatives and increased advertising and marketing costs could adversely affect our
business results. 1f our competitors increase their spending on advertising and promotions, if our advertising, media or
marketing expenses increase, or if our advertising and promotions become less effective than those of our competitors, we
could experience a material adverse effect on our business results. A failure to sufficiently innovate, develop guest relationship
initiatives, or maintain adequate and effective advertising could inhibit our ability to maintain brand relevance and drive
increased sales.

As part of our marketing efforts, we rely on search engine marketing and social media platforms to attract and retain
guests. These efforts may not be successful, resulting in expenses incurred without the benefit of higher revenues or increased
employee engagement. In addition, a variety of risks are associated with the use of social media, including the improper
disclosure of proprietary information, posting of negative comments about our brands, exposure of personally identifiable
information, fraud, and use of outdated information. The inappropriate or otherwise harmful use of social media vehicles by our
franchisees and their employees, guests, our employees or others in the general public could increase our costs, lead to
litigation or result in negative publicity that could damage our reputation.

Changing health or dietary preferences may cause consumers to avoid Applebee's and IHOP restaurants in favor of
alternative options. The food service industry as a whole rests on consumer preferences and demographic trends at the local,
regional, national and international levels, and the impact on consumer eating habits of new information regarding diet,
nutrition and health. Our franchise development and system-wide sales depend on the sustained demand for our products,
which may be affected by factors we do not control. Various factors such as: (i) the Food and Drug Administration’s menu
labeling rules, (ii) nutritional guidelines issued by the United States Department of Agriculture and issuance of similar
guidelines or statistical information by state or local municipalities, or (iii) academic studies, may impact consumer choice and
cause consumers to select foods other than those that are offered by Applebee's or IHOP restaurants. We may not be able to
adequately adapt Applebee's or IHOP restaurants' menu offerings to keep pace with developments in consumer preferences,
which may result in reductions to the franchise payments we receive from franchisees and the revenues generated by our
company-operated restaurants.
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We face a variety of risks associated with doing business in international markets. Our expansion into international
markets could create risks to our brands and reputation. There is no assurance that our international operations will be
profitable or that international growth will continue. Our international operations are subject to all of the same risks associated
with our domestic operations, as well as a number of additional risks. These include, among other things, international
economic and political conditions, international currency fluctuations, terrorism, global travel risks and differing cultures and
consumer preferences.

We also are subject to governmental regulations throughout the world that impact the way we do business with our
international franchisees and vendors. These include antitrust and tax requirements, import/export/customs regulations, anti-
boycott regulations, other international trade regulations, the USA Patriot Act and the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act. Failure to
comply with any such legal requirements could subject us to monetary liabilities and other sanctions, which could harm our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may be subject to litigation and other legal proceedings that could be time consuming, require significant amounts
of management time and result in the diversion of significant operational resources. We are involved in lawsuits, claims and
proceedings incident to the ordinary course of our business. Litigation is inherently unpredictable. Any claims against us,
whether meritorious or not, could be time consuming, result in costly litigation, require significant amounts of management
time and result in the diversion of significant operational resources. There have been a growing number of lawsuits in recent
years. There has also been a rise in employment-related lawsuits. From time to time, we have been subject to these types of
lawsuits. The cost of defending claims against us or the ultimate resolution of such claims may harm our business and operating
results. In addition, the increasingly regulated business environment may result in a greater number of enforcement actions and
private litigation. This could subject us to increased exposure to stockholder lawsuits.

We and our franchisees are subject to complaints or litigation from guests alleging illness, injury or other food quality,
food safety, health or operational concerns. We and our franchisees are also subject to "dram shop" laws in some states pursuant
to which we and our franchisees may be subject to liability in connection with personal injuries or property damages incurred
in connection with wrongfully serving alcoholic beverages to an intoxicated person. Although our franchise agreements require
our franchisees to defend and indemnify us, we may be named as a defendant and sustain liability in legal proceedings against
franchisees under the doctrines of vicarious liability, agency, negligence or otherwise. We may also initiate legal proceedings
against franchisees for breach of the terms of their franchise agreements, including underreporting of sales, failure to operate
restaurants according to standard operating procedures and payment defaults. Such claims may reduce the ability of our
franchisees to make payments to us and the profits generated by our company-operated restaurants. These claims may also
reduce the ability of franchisees to enter into new franchise agreements with us.

Third-party claims with respect to intellectual property assets, if decided against us, may result in competing uses or
require adoption of new, non-infringing intellectual property, which may in turn adversely affect sales and revenues. We
regard our service marks and trademarks related to our restaurant businesses as having significant value and being important to
our marketing efforts. To protect our restaurants and services from infringement, we rely on contracts, copyrights, patents,
trademarks, service marks and other common law rights, such as trade secret and unfair competition laws. We have registered
certain trademarks and service marks in the United States and international jurisdictions; however, effective intellectual
property protection may not be available in every country in which we have or intend to open or franchise a restaurant.
Although we believe we have taken appropriate measures to protect our intellectual property, there can be no assurance that
these protections will be adequate.

In addition, there can be no assurance that third parties will not assert infringement or misappropriation claims against us,
or assert claims that our rights in our trademarks, service marks and other intellectual property assets are invalid or
unenforceable. Any such claims could have a material adverse effect on us or our franchisees if such claims were to be decided
against us. If our rights in any intellectual property were invalidated or deemed unenforceable, it could permit competing uses
of intellectual property which, in turn, could lead to a decline in restaurant revenues and sales of other branded products and
services (if any). If the intellectual property became subject to third-party infringement, misappropriation or other claims, and
such claims were decided against us, we may be forced to pay damages, be required to develop or adopt non-infringing
intellectual property or be obligated to acquire a license to the intellectual property that is the subject of the asserted claim.
There could be significant expenses associated with the defense of any infringement, misappropriation, or other third-party
claims.
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Our failure or the failure of our franchisees to comply with federal, state and local governmental regulations may
subject us to losses and harm our brands. We are subject to the Fair Labor Standards Act (which governs such matters as
minimum wages, overtime and other working conditions), along with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Immigration
Reform and Control Act of 1986, various family leave mandates and a variety of other laws enacted, or rules and regulations
promulgated by federal, state and local governmental authorities that govern these and other employment matters, including tip
credits, working conditions, safety standards and immigration status. There have been several complaints alleging franchisors
to be joint employers with franchisees. Although we do not consider ourselves to be joint employers with our franchisees, there
can be no assurance that other franchisors will not receive similar complaints in the future which may result in legal
proceedings based on the actions of its franchisees. We expect increases in payroll expenses as a result of federal and state
mandated increases in the minimum wage, and although such increases are not expected to be material, we cannot assure you
that there will not be material increases in the future. Enactment and enforcement of various federal, state and local laws, rules
and regulations on immigration and labor organizations may adversely impact the availability and costs of labor for our
restaurants in a particular area or across the United States. Other labor shortages or increased team member turnover could also
increase labor costs. In addition, our vendors may be affected by higher minimum wage standards or availability of labor,
which may increase the price of goods and services they supply to us. The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act has
increased our franchisees’ employee costs in some respects and may continue to impact our franchisees’ employee costs. There
are no assurances that a combination of cost management and price increases can accommodate all of the costs associated with
compliance.

We are subject to extensive federal, state and local governmental regulations, including those relating to the food safety
and inspection and the preparation and sale of food and alcoholic beverages. Disruptions within any government agencies
could impact the U.S. food industry which may have an adverse effect on our business. We are also subject to laws and
regulations relating to building and zoning requirements. Each of our and our franchisees' restaurants is also subject to licensing
and regulation by alcoholic beverage control, health, sanitation, safety and fire agencies in the state, county and/or municipality
where the restaurant is located. We generally have not encountered any material difficulties or failures in obtaining and
maintaining the required licenses and approvals that could impact the continuing operations of an existing restaurant, or delay
or prevent the opening of a new restaurant. Although we do not, at this time, anticipate any occurring in the future, we cannot
assure you that we or our franchisees will not experience material difficulties or failures that could impact the continuing
operations of an existing restaurant, or delay the opening of restaurants in the future.

In addition, we are subject to laws and regulations, which vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction, relating to nutritional
content and menu labeling. Compliance with these laws and regulations may lead to increased costs and operational complexity
and may increase our exposure to governmental investigations or litigation. In connection with the continued operation or
remodeling of certain restaurants, we or our franchisees may be required to expend funds to meet federal, state, local and
international regulations. The inability to obtain or maintain such licenses or publicity resulting from actual or alleged
violations of such laws could have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

We are subject to federal regulation and certain state laws which govern the offer and sale of franchises. Many state
franchise laws contain provisions that supersede the terms of franchise agreements, including provisions concerning the
termination or non-renewal of a franchise. Some state franchise laws require that certain materials be registered before
franchises can be offered or sold in that state. The failure to obtain or retain licenses or approvals to sell franchises could
adversely affect us and the franchisees. Changes in, and the cost of compliance with, government regulations could have a
material effect on operations.

Finally, regulatory changes or actions under the new U.S. political administration may impact the laws or regulations
described above. We cannot predict whether or when any of these potential changes in law might become effective in any
jurisdiction nor the impact, if any, of these changes to our business.

We are subject to risks associated with self-insurance for medical, dental and vision benefits. As of January 2017, we
now self-insure all of our employee medical, dental and vision benefits. We maintain individual stop loss coverage but do not
maintain coverage at an aggregate level. Our reserves are based on historical loss trends that may not correlate to actual loss
experience in the future. If we experience an unexpectedly large number of claims that result in costs or liabilities in excess of
our projections, our reserves may prove to be insufficient and we may be exposed to significant and unexpected losses. For
these and other reasons, including our inability to renew stop loss coverage at competitive rates, we are subject to risks
associated with self-insurance that may have an adverse effect on the Corporation’s financial condition and operating results.

In addition, access to personal medical information is regulated by federal, state and/or local laws as well as by certain
third-party agreements. If our security and information systems or the systems of our third party vendors are compromised, we
could be subject to costly litigation or penalties and our reputation and operations could be adversely affected.
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Any inability or failure to execute on a comprehensive business continuity plan following a major natural disaster such
as an earthquake, tornado, flood or man-made disaster, including terrorism or a cyber incident, at our corporate facilities
could materially adversely impact our business. Our corporate systems and processes and corporate support for our restaurant
operations are handled primarily at our restaurant support center. We have disaster recovery procedures and business continuity
plans in place to address most events of a crisis nature, including earthquakes, tornadoes, floods and other natural or man-made
disasters, and back up and off-site locations for recovery of electronic and other forms of data and information. However, if we
are unable to fully implement our disaster recovery plans, we may experience delays in recovery of data, inability to perform
vital corporate functions, tardiness in required reporting and compliance, failures to adequately support field operations and
other breakdowns in normal communication and operating procedures that could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operation and exposure to administrative and other legal claims.

Our business depends on our ability to attract and retain talented employees. Our business is based on successfully
attracting and retaining talented employees. The market for highly skilled employees and leaders in our industry is extremely
competitive. If we are less successful in our recruiting efforts, or if we are unable to retain key employees, our ability to
develop and deliver successful products and services may be adversely affected. Effective succession planning is also important
to our long-term success. Failure to ensure effective transfer of knowledge and smooth transitions involving key employees
could hinder our strategic planning and execution.

Development initiatives outside our core business could negatively impact our brands. Our business expansion into non-
traditional restaurant formats, including restaurants with a smaller footprint, restaurants located in non-traditional locations and
retail product licensing for the IHOP brand could create new risks to our brand and reputation.

Failure of our internal controls over financial reporting and future changes in accounting standards may cause
adverse unexpected operating results, affect our reported results of operations or otherwise harm our business and financial
results. Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls over financial reporting.
Internal controls over financial reporting is a process to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Because of its
inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting is not intended to provide absolute assurance that we would
prevent or detect a misstatement of our financial statements or fraud. Any failure to maintain an effective system of internal
control over financial reporting could limit our ability to report our financial results accurately and timely or to detect and
prevent fraud. A significant financial reporting failure or material weakness in internal control over financial reporting could
cause a loss of investor confidence and decline in the market price of our common stock.

A change in accounting standards can have a significant effect on our reported results and may affect our reporting of
transactions before the change is effective. New pronouncements and varying interpretations of pronouncements have occurred
and may occur in the future. Changes to existing accounting rules or the questioning of current accounting practices may
adversely affect our reported financial results. Additionally, our assumptions, estimates and judgments related to complex
accounting matters could significantly affect our financial results. Generally accepted accounting principles and related
accounting pronouncements, implementation guidelines and interpretations are highly complex and involve many subjective
assumptions, estimates and judgments by us. Changes in these rules or their interpretation or changes in underlying
assumptions, estimates or judgments by us could significantly change our reported or expected financial performance.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.
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Item 2. Properties.

The table below shows the location and ownership type of Applebee's and IHOP restaurants as of December 31, 2016:

Applebee's (a) THOP (a)
Franchise Company Total Franchise Company Area License Total

United States

Alabama.........ccceevvevrennnn. 30 — 30 21 — — 21
Alaska .......ccoeeevveeiieniene, 1 — 1 4 — — 4
AriZONa......ccovveereeereiereenne. 28 — 28 41 — — 41
Arkansas..........cccoeeveeeueennnn. 10 — 10 16 — — 16
California .......c..ccoveeveennen. 121 — 121 231 — — 231
Colorado......ccccccceuveeecuneenns 26 — 26 35 — — 35
Connecticut ........ccccceuveeenes 6 — 6 9 — — 9
Delaware ...........cccveeenen.. 12 — 12 7 — — 7
District of Columbia .......... — — — 2 — — 2
Florida.......cccooeveevienrene. 110 — 110 — — 149 () 149
Georgia....coceveeneeeeneeene 71 — 71 75 — 5 80
Hawaii....c..cooeeerveeerereenne. 1 — 1 6 — — 6
Idaho ....ooovveeeieieieeen 12 — 12 8 — — 8
THENOIS o 47 — 47 52 — — 52
Indiana..........cccooeeieiinnnn. 64 — 64 24 — — 24
TOWa..cceieeeeceeeeeeee e 26 — 26 10 — — 10
Kansas.........ccoovvveeeineeennan. 33 — 33 23 — — 23
Kentucky .....ccoooveveeienenee. 34 — 34 8 1 — 9
Louisiana............ccccoeeeuneen. 16 — 16 31 — — 31
Maine ......cccoeeeveeeeciieeeneene, 12 — 12 2 — — 2
Maryland.........cccceeereennnnne. 25 — 25 44 — — 44
Massachusetts .................... 29 — 29 18 — — 18
Michigan ..........ccecevereenee. 88 — 88 24 — — 24
Minnesota...........cceveeenneenn. 58 — 58 9 — — 9
MiSSISSIPPL veevveveeneereeeneene 22 — 22 15 — — 15
MiSSOUTT ...voveeevieeeiieeee, 56 — 56 30 — — 30
Montana .........c.c.cceveeenenn. 8 — 8 5 — — 5
Nebraska ........ccoveeeneeenneen. 19 — 19 7 — — 7
Nevada.....ocoooeeeveeeeieeeenen. 14 — 14 24 — — 24
New Hampshire ................. 14 — 14 6 — — 6
New Jersey...cccevvereveereeennne. 60 — 60 44 — — 44
New MexiCO....ccoueevvvenenne.. 21 — 21 21 — — 21
New York.....ooooovvveevreennennnn. 114 — 114 54 — — 54
North Carolina ................... 56 — 56 54 — — 54
North Dakota...................... 12 — 12 2 — — 2
OhiO....ooiciieiieiiecieeee 89 — 89 26 9 — 35
Oklahoma...........cccoeeuveennen. 20 — 20 33 — — 33
Oregon.....coecveeveeerieenreeneens 21 — 21 7 — — 7
Pennsylvania....................... 81 — 81 23 — — 23
Rhode Island ...................... 8 — 8 4 — — 4
South Carolina ................... 39 — 39 31 — — 31
South Dakota..........c........... 6 — 6 3 — — 3
Tennessee.......cccevveeevveeennns 39 — 39 40 — — 40
TeXaS .uvivuiiereeeiieereeereenee, 107 — 107 203 — — 203
Utah...ooeeeieceieeececeee 12 — 12 19 — — 19
Vermont.........cc..coeeevvveeeeenn. 3 — 3 1 — — 1
Virginia ......ccocceeeeeveveennnnne. 72 — 72 63 — — 63
Washington ..........cccccceuee. 42 — 42 32 — — 32
West Virginia...........ccc....... 17 — 17 9 — — 9
WisSConSin.......cccecevuveeennenn. 41 — 41 14 — — 14
Wyoming........ccccevvveennnnne. 5 — 5 3 — — 3
Total Domestic................... 1,858 — 1,858 1,473 10 154 1,637
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Applebee's (a) THOP (a)

Franchise Company Total Franchise Company Area License Total
International
Bahrain........c..ccoeevveennennn. — — — 2 — — 2
Brazil......ccccooooeeveeiiieen. 12 — 12 — — — —
Canada.......cccovvveeveeeneennn. 16 — 16 12 — 13 (b 25
Chile.....covveeereeeiieeieeieene, 4 — 4 — — — —
CostaRica.....ccceeevveeveennenn. 3 — 3 — — — —
Dominican Republic .......... 2 — 2 — —
Egypt.cceeieiieieieeeeee 1 — 1 — — — —
Guam........ocoeeveieeiieeeiieeens 1 — 1 2 — — 2
Guatemala ...........c..ccueene.. 5 — 5 3 — — 3
Indonesia........cc.coveeveennenn. 2 — 2 — — — —
Jordan.........ccoeeveeiieennennn. 1 — 1 — — — —
Kuwait......ocooeeviieeiiiiinn, 8 — 8 5 — — 5
MEXICO vcvvevveereeereeereene 59 — 59 35 — — 35
Northern Mariana Islands .. — — — 1 — — 1
Panama...............oeeenie. — — — 2 — — 2
Philippines ........ccccceevvennenne. 2 — 2 7 — — 7
Puerto Rico......cceevreneennen. 5 — 5 5 — — 5
Qatar......cceeeeerieeieeieeeene 7 — 7 1 — — 1
Saudi Arabia..........c........... 20 — 20 2 — — 2
United Arab Emirates......... 10 — 10 6 — — 6
Total International......... 158 — 158 83 — 13 96
TotalS.....coveeveerenen. 2,016 — 2,016 1,556 10 167 1,733

(a) The properties identified in this table generate revenue in our franchise, rental, company and financing operating segments.
(b) Of these restaurants, 44 in Florida, two in Georgia and 10 in Canada have been sub-licensed by the area licensee.

As of December 31, 2016, we operated 10 IHOP restaurants in the Cincinnati, Ohio market area. Of these restaurants, we
owned the building and leased the land for five sites and leased the land and building for five sites. From time to time, we have
reacquired IHOP restaurants from franchisees for a variety of reasons. At December 31, 2016, we were not operating any
reacquired IHOP restaurants.

Of the 1,556 IHOP restaurants operated by franchisees, 59 were located on sites owned by us, 632 were located on sites
leased by us from third parties and 865 were located on sites owned or leased by franchisees. All of the IHOP restaurants
operated by area licensees and 2,013 of the franchisee-operated Applebee's restaurants were located on sites owned or leased by
the area licensees or the franchisees. We leased two sites and owned one site on which franchisee-operated Applebee's
restaurants were located.

Leases of IHOP restaurants generally provide for an initial term of 20 to 25 years, with most having one or more five-year
renewal options. Leases of Applebee's restaurants generally have an initial term of 10 to 20 years, with renewal terms of five to
20 years. In addition, a substantial number of the leases for both IHOP and Applebee's restaurants include provisions calling for
the periodic escalation of rents during the initial term and/or during renewal terms. The leases typically provide for payment of
rents in an amount equal to the greater of a fixed amount or a specified percentage of gross sales and for payment of taxes,
insurance premiums, maintenance expenses and certain other costs. Historically, it has been our practice to seek to extend,
through negotiation, those leases that expire without renewal options. However, from time to time, we choose not to renew a
lease or are unsuccessful in negotiating satisfactory renewal terms. When this occurs, the restaurant is closed and possession of
the premises is returned to the landlord.

Under our Applebee's franchise agreements, we have certain rights to gain control of a restaurant site in the event of
default under the franchise agreement. Because substantially all IHOP franchised restaurants developed by us under our
Previous IHOP Business Model are subleased to the franchisees, IHOP has the ability to regain possession of the subleased
restaurant if the franchisee defaults in the payment of rent or other terms of the sublease.

We currently occupy our principal corporate offices and restaurant support center in Glendale, California, under a lease expiring
in April 2023. We lease approximately 50,000 square feet of office space in Kansas City, Missouri, under a lease expiring in
October 2021.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

We are subject to various lawsuits, administrative proceedings, audits, and claims arising in the ordinary course of
business. Some of these lawsuits purport to be class actions and/or seek substantial damages. We are required to record an
accrual for litigation loss contingencies that are both probable and reasonably estimable. Legal fees and expenses associated
with the defense of all of our litigation are expensed as such fees and expenses are incurred. Management regularly assesses our
insurance deductibles, analyzes litigation information with our attorneys and evaluates our loss experience in connection with
pending legal proceedings. While we do not presently believe that any of the legal proceedings to which we are currently a
party will ultimately have a material adverse impact on us, there can be no assurance that we will prevail in all the proceedings
we are party to, or that we will not incur material losses from them.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure.
Not Applicable.
PART 11

Item S. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Market Information

Our common stock is traded on the NYSE under the symbol “DIN”. The following table sets forth the high and low sales
prices of our common stock on the NYSE for each fiscal quarter of 2016 and 2015.

Fiscal Year 2016 Fiscal Year 2015
Prices Prices
Quarter High Low High Low
FAESE .ttt $ 98.82 §$ 7736 $ 11423 $ 100.16
SECONM ...ttt $ 9430 $ 80.07 $ 107.55 $ 93.98
TRITA .o $ 85.79 $ 75.05 $ 106.09 $ 91.32
FOUrth ..o $ 88.00 $ 76.36 $ 9322 § 80.56

Holders

The number of stockholders of record and beneficial owners of our common stock as of February 17, 2017 was estimated
to be 24,800.

Dividends on Common Stock

Please refer to Note 11, Stockholders' Equity, in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on
dividends declared and paid in the fiscal years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

On February 22, 2017, our Board of Directors approved payment of a cash dividend of $0.97 per share of common stock,
payable at the close of business on April 7, 2017 to the stockholders of record as of the close of business on March 20, 2017.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2016, regarding shares outstanding and available for issuance
under the DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2016 Plan™):

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available for
to be future issuance under
issued upon exercise Weighted average equity
of exercise price of compensation plans
outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
warrants and rights  warrants and rights  reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders......... 701,134 $ 80.04 3,726,832
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders... — —
TOtAL .. 701,134 $ 80.04 3,726,832

The number of securities remaining available for future issuance represents shares under the 2016 Plan. Please refer to
Note 13, Stock-Based Incentive Plans, in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of the 2016 Plan.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Company

Total number of Approximate dollar
shares purchased as value of

Total number of Average price part of publicly shares that may yet be

shares paid per announced plans or purchased under the

Period purchased (b) share (b) programs (c) plans or programs (c)
October 3, 2016 — October 30, 2016@................ 816 $78.60 — 87,500,000
October 31, 2016 — November 27, 2016® ......... 86,627 $81.57 86,445 $ 80,400,000
November 28, 2016 — January 1, 2017 .......... 39,587 $85.43 38,389 3 77,100,000
TOtal .o 127,030 $82.75 124,834 §$ 77,100,000

@ These amounts represent shares owned and tendered by employees to satisfy tax withholding obligations arising upon the vesting of
restricted stock awards.

® Tncludes 182 shares owned and tendered by employees at an average price of $85.85 per share to satisfy tax withholding obligations on
the vesting of restricted stock awards during the fiscal month ended November 27, 2016 and 1,198 shares at an average price of $82.94
per share during the fiscal month ended January 1, 2017.

© In October 2015, our Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing us to repurchase up to $150 million of
DineEquity common stock on an opportunistic basis from time to time in open market transactions and in privately negotiated
transactions, including Rule 10b-5 stock repurchase plans, based on business, market, applicable legal requirements and other
considerations. The program does not require the repurchase of a specific number of shares and can be terminated at any time.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph below shows a comparison of the cumulative total stockholder return on our common stock with the cumulative
total return on the Standard & Poor's 500 Composite Index and the Value-Line Restaurants Index (“Restaurant Index”) over the
five-year period ended December 31, 2016. The graph and table assume $100 was invested at the close of trading on the last day
of trading in 2011 in our common stock and in each of the market indices, with reinvestment of all dividends. Stockholder returns
over the indicated periods should not be considered indicative of future stock prices or stockholder returns.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Stockholder Return
DineEquity, Inc., Standard & Poor's 500 and Value Line Restaurant Index
(Performance Results through December 31, 2016)

$300.00
$250.00
$200.00
$150.00
$100.00
$50.00 \ \ \ \ \ |
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—@— DineEquity, Inc. —l— Standard & Poor's 500 —#&— Restaurant Index
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
DineEquity, Inc. .............. $ 10000 $ 15873 § 20630 $ 26550 § 22504 $§ 213.94
Standard & Poor's 500..... 100.00 116.00 153.57 174.60 177.05 198.22
Restaurant Index ............. 100.00 105.33 139.74 156.80 189.80 203.46

The foregoing performance graph is being furnished as part of this report solely in accordance with the requirement under
Rule 14a-3(b)(9) to furnish our stockholders with such information, and therefore, shall not be deemed to be filed or incorporated
by reference into any filings by the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) or the Exchange
Act.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements
and notes thereto and “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” appearing
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The consolidated statement of operations information and the consolidated
balance sheet data for the years ended and as of December 31, 2016, 2015, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are derived from our audited

consolidated financial statements.

Revenues:

Franchise and restaurant reVenues (@) .........cocevveeererieieerienieeeienieeee e
RNl TEVEIUES ...ttt
FINANCING TEVENUES .......c.eiieiiiieiiiireeteienteieiert ettt et eteb et ene et sessenens

TOtAl TEVEIUES. ...ttt ettt aens

Cost of revenues:
Franchise and restaurant expenses (a)..

RENAL EXPEIISES ....cuenviviinieieiiiiet sttt ettt ettt neneae
FINANCING EXPEISES...c.veuierirerieririeiesieterteiesteteseeesesseseesessesseneesensensesesseseseesessenees
Total COSt Of TEVENUES.......eeviieiieiiiieieiieieeee et

GTOSS PIOTIE. ettt sttt ettt st neeneas

General and administrative expenses ..

TNEETESE EXPEIISE ...ttt ettt ettt s
Closure and impairment ChArZes ...........ocererueueiririeirinieieirieieenseer et eseeseenenens

Loss on extinguishment of debt and temporary equity ..........cocecveerievererenieieenienns

Loss (gain) on disposition 0f SSetS () ........c.ceeueeurueueirieieerieieeriniereereereesieneeseenenes
Other eXpense (D) ....coevveeerereeereneieeneneeeeeenes
Income before income taxes..........cccccoccueucunnnee.
Income tax provision...........ccceeeevereercrernenccnnnn
Net Income..........c.ccooeueinerecinneinincceneceeens
Less: Accretion of Series B preferred stock.......
Less: Net income allocated to unvested participating restricted stock

Net income available to common stockholders per share:

Dividends declared per common share...........
Dividends paid per common share..................

Balance Sheet Data (end of year):

Cash and cash equivalents.........c..ccccceeeveuencne
Restricted cash—short-term and long-term (c) ..
Property and equipment, net (a) ............c......
Total assets (d).....coveerereereneereeceene
Long-term debt, less current maturities (d)..

Capital lease obligations, less current Maturities ...........c.coveverereeeeerereeeneniereene

Financing obligations, less current maturities.............ccccceeueueueieieciereeenereenennn

Stockholders' equity .......ccecvverveveererieinene

Other Financial Data:
Cash flows provided by operating activities

Capital expenditures...........coeeeeeeereneeennnn

Domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales

percentage change:

Net income available to common stockholders.......................c.ccoeoeiiiiiieneenne.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

(In millions, except per share amounts and restaurant data)

$ 5017 $ 5426 $ 5186 $ 5026 S 7126
123.0 1277 122.9 124.8 122.9
9.2 10.8 13.5 13.1 14.5
634.0 681.1 655.0 640.5 849.9
162.9 187.0 184.4 173.2 359.2
91.5 94.6 94.6 97.3 97.2
0.2 0.5 0.8 0.2 1.6
254.6 282.1 279.9 270.8 458.0
379.4 399.0 375.1 369.7 3919
148.9 155.4 145.9 143.6 163.2
61.5 63.3 96.6 100.3 114.3
5.1 2.6 3.7 1.8 42
— — 64.9 0.1 5.6
0.8 (0.9) 0.3 (0.2) (102.6)
10.0 10.0 12.1 13.6 12.3
153.1 168.6 51.6 110.6 194.9
(55.1) (63.7) (15.1) (38.6) (67.2)
98.0 104.9 36.5 72.0 127.7
- — — — (2.5)
(1.4) (1.4) (0.5) (1.2) 2.7)
$ 96 $ 1035 $ 359 $ 708 $ 1225
$ 536 $ 555 $ 192 $ 375 S 68l
$ 533 $ 552 $ 190 $ 370  $ 663
18.0 18.6 18.8 18.9 18.0
18.1 18.8 19.0 19.1 18.9
$ 373 $ 3545 $ 3125 $ 300 —
$ 368 $ 350 $ 225 $ 300 $ —
$ 1405 $ 1448 $ 1040 § 1060 § 645
45.0 472 67.0 0.7 1.9
205.1 219.6 2412 274.3 294.4
2,278.6 2,3319 2,393.7 2,366.8 2,376.8
1,282.7 1,279.5 1,276.5 1,189.5 1,185.3
747 84.8 98.1 1117 124.4
39.5 424 425 48.8 52.0
252.8 267.2 279.1 3152 308.8
$ 1181 $ 1355 $ 1185 $ 1278 $ 529
5.6 6.6 59 7.0 17.0
(5.0)% 0.2% 1.1% (0.3)% 1.2 %
0.1)% 4.5% 3.9% 24 % (1.6)%
2,016 2,033 2,017 2,011 2,034
1,733 1,683 1,650 1,620 1,581
3,749 3,716 3,667 3,631 3,615

(a) We refranchised 23 Applebee's company-operated restaurants in 2015 and 154 Applebee's company-operated restaurants in 2012.
(b) Includes amortization of intangible assets in each year as well as $1.3 of debt modification costs in 2013.
(c) Restricted cash increased in 2014 due to refinancing of long-term debt. See Note 7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(d) Amounts for 2014, 2013 and 2012 were restated in 2015 to reflect accounting standards adopted in that year.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements contained in this report may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may
cause actual results to be materially different from those expressed or implied in such statements. You can identify these
forward-looking statements by words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,”
“intend,” “plan” and other similar expressions. You should consider our forward-looking statements in light of the risks
discussed under the heading “Risk Factors,” as well as our consolidated financial statements, related notes, and the other
financial information appearing elsewhere in this report and our other filings with the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission. The forward-looking statements contained in this report are made as of the date hereof and the Company assumes
no obligation to update or supplement any forward-looking statements.

2 ¢

You should read the following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the related notes that appear elsewhere in this report.

Overview
The Company

The first International House of Pancakes restaurant opened in 1958 in Toluca Lake, California. Shortly thereafter, the
Company's predecessor began developing and franchising additional restaurants. The Company was incorporated under the
laws of the State of Delaware in 1976 with the name IHOP Corp. In November 2007, the Company completed the acquisition
of Applebee's International, Inc., which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Effective June 2, 2008, the name
of the Company was changed to DineEquity, Inc. (“DineEquity,” “we” or “our”). Through various subsidiaries (see Exhibit 21,
Subsidiaries of DineEquity, Inc.), we own and franchise the Applebee's Neighborhood Grill & Bar® (“Applebee's™) concept in
the bar and grill segment within the casual dining category of the restaurant industry, and own, franchise and operate the
International House of Pancakes® (“IHOP”) concept in the family dining category of the restaurant industry. References herein
to Applebee's” and IHOP® restaurants are to these two concepts, whether operated by franchisees, area licensees or us.

Domestically, Applebee's and IHOP restaurants are located in all 50 states; IHOP also has two restaurants in the District of
Columbia. Internationally, IHOP restaurants are located in three United States territories and 10 countries outside of the United
States; Applebee's restaurants are located in two United States territories and 15 countries outside of the United States. With
over 3,700 restaurants combined, we believe we are the largest full-service restaurant company in the world.

Our Vision
To be the preferred franchisor of choice and deliver maximum franchisee and stockholder value.
Our Mission

To unite great franchisees, iconic brands and team members to create the world's leading restaurant company - one guest at
a time.

Our Value Creation Strategy

We are focused on generating strong adjusted free cash flow and returning a substantial portion of it to stockholders. Since
announcing in 2013 our capital allocation strategy to return the majority of adjusted free cash flow to our stockholders, we have
returned over $420 million, through a combination of quarterly cash dividends and stock repurchases, over the past four years.

To build value, we seek to maximize our business by focusing on the following key strategic priorities:

*  Evolve strong brands and drive same-restaurant sales growth;
»  Facilitate franchisee restaurant development; and
*  Maintain strong financial discipline.

Our fundamental approach to brand building centers on a strategic combination of initiatives to continually innovate and
evolve both brands. These initiatives include menu innovation, effective maximization of advertising and media, expanding our
digital and social marketing presence, maintaining a consistent level of operational excellence, and creating new prototypes,
remodels and restaurant designs. Our shared services operating platform allows our senior management to focus on key factors
that drive both our brands while leveraging the resources and expertise of our scalable, centralized support structure.
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2016 Highlights

As reported in QSR Magazine on January 13, 2017, 2016 was the worst year for the restaurant industry in terms of same-
restaurant sales growth since 2009. The casual dining segment was one of the worst-performing segments within the restaurant
industry during 2016. Despite this challenging environment, DineEquity had several notable accomplishments during 2016:

*  Generated cash provided by operating activities of over $118 million in 2016;

*  Generated adjusted free cash flow (cash provided by operating activities, plus receipts from notes and equipment
contract receivables, less additions to property and equipment) of approximately $123 million in 2016;

*  Returned over $122 million to our stockholders, comprised of $67.4 million in cash dividends and $55.3 million in
the form of stock repurchases;

»  Updated our capital allocation strategy, increasing our quarterly dividend on common stock by 5.4%, effective with
the fourth quarter 2016 dividend, from $0.92 per share to $0.97 per share;

*  Opened 66 new restaurants worldwide by IHOP franchisees and area licensees, with net development (openings less
closures) of 50 restaurants, the highest single-year net development total for the brand since 2009;

+  THOP franchisees remodeled 300 restaurants under our new Rise N' Shine design;

*  Completed the consolidation of our restaurant support centers, enabling cross-brand collaboration to provide for faster
innovation and effective implementation to the benefit of both domestic and international franchisees; and

*  Entered into four multi-unit international development agreements in 2016, two agreements for the development of 30
THOP restaurants in Asia Pacific and two agreements for the development of 11 Applebee's restaurants in the Middle
East and Latin America.

Financial Overview (U}::};g(l;zg{ﬁe) (UFrfgg(r)?gLele)
2016 Variance 2015 Variance 2014
(In millions, except per share amounts)

Income before iNCOME taxes ........cooveveveeeereeeennen. $ 153.1 § (155) § 168.6 $ 117.0 $ 51.6
Income tax Provision...........ccccevveeverreevenreesuennens (55.1) 8.6 (63.7) (48.6) (15.1)
NEt INCOME ...t $ 98.0 $ 6.9) $ 1049 $ 684 $ 36.5
Net income per diluted share ...............c.ccoevennne. $ 533§ 0.19) $ 552 % 362 % 1.90
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding...... 18.1 0.7) 18.8 (0.2) 19.0

Income before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2016 declined $15.5 million compared to the year ended
December 31, 2015. The primary reasons for the decline and references to discussions following in MD&A are summarized as
follows:

(In millions) Discussion reference
Franchise operations gross profit.............ccoeceveverervennene $ (8.2) Pg. 38, Franchise operations
53rd calendar week in 2015........cccccevviieiieeiieieeeieeee (6.8) Pg. 35, Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information
Kansas City lease eXit COStS......ccvrrvrrirrrrriererierierienens (2.9) Pg. 42, Closure and Impairment Charges
Rental and financing interest income .............cccceeuvenen. (2.1) Pg. 39, Rental Operations and pg. 40, Financing Operations
General and Administrative expenses (“G&A”) ........... 5.0 Pg. 41, General and Administrative Expenses
All other income/expense items, Net .........cccceeeverveneennen (0.5)

$ (155

Our net income for the year ended December 31, 2016 declined 6.6% compared with the prior year. However, our net
income per diluted share only decreased 3.4% compared with the prior year, due to the decrease in weighted average shares
outstanding during 2016 compared to 2015. The decrease in weighted average shares outstanding is primarily due to the
repurchase of our common stock pursuant to stock repurchase programs (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources of the Company,
Share Repurchases™), partially offset by net issuances of shares pursuant to stock-based compensation programs.
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Income before income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased $117.0 million compared to the year ended
December 31, 2014. The primary reasons for the improvement and references to discussions following in MD&A are
summarized as follows:

(In millions) Discussion reference

Loss on extinguishment of debt in 2014........................ $ 64.9 Pg. 37, Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information
Interest EXPense ......c.covveevieriiinieniieieeeeec e 35.6 Pg. 37, Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information
Franchise operations gross profit... 13.6 Pg. 38, Franchise operations
53rd calendar week in 2015.........ccoeevvieiieeiiiiieeieeen, 6.8 Pg. 35, Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information
Kansas City consolidation COSts ........c.ccevereerereenuennnnns (5.9) Pg. 36, Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information
Rental and financing interest inCome .............ccocveeevennen. (2.0) Pg. 39, Rental Operations and pg. 40, Financing Operations
All other income/expense items, Net ..........ccecveeverneennnns 4.0

$ 117.0

Significant Known Events, Trends or Uncertainties Impacting or Expected to Impact Comparisons of Reported
or Future Results

Applebee's domestic same-restaurant sales declined 5.0% in 2016. While this performance should be assessed in the
context that 2016 was the worst year in terms of sales growth for both the overall restaurant industry and the casual dining
segment of the restaurant industry since 2009, Applebee's 2016 performance with respect to domestic same-restaurant sales and
customer traffic was differentially worse than that of the overall casual dining segment, based on data from Black Box
Intelligence, a restaurant sales reporting firm (“Black Box™). The decline in Applebee's domestic same-restaurant sales had an
adverse impact on our 2016 franchise revenues, gross profit and net income. In 2016, we experienced a slowdown in cash
collections of receivables from a few Applebee's franchisees, an increase in bad debt expense and an increase in the number of
closures of Applebee's restaurants, each of which we believe can be attributed, in part, to the progressive decline in Applebee's
domestic same-restaurant sales over the past six quarters.

We incorporated Applebee's recent performance with respect to domestic same-restaurant sales and restaurant closures into
the long-term assumptions underlying discounted cash flow models used to quantitatively assess goodwill and the Applebee's
tradename for impairment. We noted no impairments as the result of performing these quantitative assessments in 2016. A
reporting unit is considered at risk when its fair value is not higher than its carrying amount by more than 10%. Based on the
amount by which the fair value of the Applebee's Franchise Reporting Unit exceeded the carrying value of the unit, the
goodwill of the Applebee's Franchise Reporting Unit is at risk. In accordance with U.S. GAAP, we assess goodwill and
intangible assets for impairment annually, at a minimum, and more frequently if circumstances warrant. Downward revisions of
long-term performance assumptions or changes in the assumed long-term discount rate could result in impairment charges in
the future.

Key Performance Indicators

In evaluating the performance of each restaurant concept, we consider the key performance indicators to be net franchise
restaurant development and the percentage change in domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales. Since all but 10 of our
restaurants are franchised, expanding the number of franchise restaurants is an important driver of revenue growth because we
currently do not plan to open any new Applebee's or IHOP company-operated restaurants or expand our rental and financing
operations, legacies from the Previous IHOP Business Model we operated under prior to 2003. Growth in both the number of
franchise restaurants and in sales at those restaurants will drive franchise revenues in the form of higher royalty revenues,
additional franchise fees and, in the case of IHOP restaurants, sales of proprietary pancake and waffle dry mix.

An overview of our key performance indicators for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is as follows:

Applebee's IHOP
2016 2015 2014 2016 2015 2014
Net franchise restaurant (reduction) development ...... 17) 16 6 50 33 30
% (decrease) increase in domestic system-wide same-
TESTAUTANE SALES .vvvevereereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeees (5.00% 0.2% 1.1% (0.1)% 4.5% 3.9%

1 - n n n
) Franchise and area license restaurant openings, net of closings
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Net Franchise Restaurant Development

After two years of growth, the number of Applebee's franchise restaurants declined in 2016 as franchisees opened 29 new
restaurants but closed 46 restaurants. Restaurant closures can occur for a variety of reasons that may differ for each restaurant
and for each franchisee. However, we believe the increase in Applebee's restaurant closures in 2016 was related in part to the
sustained decline in Applebee's domestic same-restaurant sales over the past 18 months. While 10 of the restaurants were
closed by a single franchisee, no other franchisee had more than four net closures (closures less new restaurants opened).

IHOP franchisees and area licensees opened 66 restaurants in 2016 and closed 16 restaurants, resulting in net development
of 50 restaurants, the highest net development since 2009. The opening of 66 restaurants was the highest annual total of
franchise restaurant openings for IHOP since 2008.

Internationally, franchisees of both brands opened 30 restaurants and closed 10, for net development of 20 restaurants,
progressive improvement on net international development of 16 restaurants and 12 restaurants, respectively, in 2015 and 2014.
This international activity is included in the total activity for each brand cited above.

The following tables summarize Applebee's and IHOP restaurant development and franchising activity over the past three
years:

Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014

Applebee's Restaurant Development Activity
Summary - beginning of period:

Franchise 2,033 1,994 1,988

Company — 23 23
Total Applebee's restaurants, beginning of period.....................coocvenn. 2,033 2,017 2,011
Franchise restaurants opened:

DOMESLIC -ttt ettt bbbt 19 27 29

INternational ...........cooiiiiiiiiiee e 10 17 7
Total franchise restaurants Opened............cceoerueeruerienienienienieneeee e 29 44 36
Franchise restaurants closed:

DIOIMESTIC -ttt ettt ettt ettt sttt ettt et e st e st eseeseeaeeeeeseaaeseeas 39) (19) (20)

INEETNALIONAL .....eviiiiiiieeie et ae e e (7) 9) (10)
Total franchise restaurants CloSed..........coevveeviieriieiieniieiiecie e (46) (28) (30)
Net franchise restaurant (reduction) development...................c.ccooeerennn. an 16 6
Refranchised from Company restaurants...........cc.coeceeveeeenenieneesieneeneneeneene — 23 —
Net franchise restaurant (decrease) increase ....................c.ccecoeieeiineennnn, a7n 39 6
Summary - end of period:

FIanCRISE .....vvvviiiiiieeiee ettt 2,016 2,033 1,994

COMPANY TESTAUTANTS .....euveeuiitieiietieieeicerte et sttt sttt eete st ente e enee e — 23
Total Applebee's restaurants, end of period..................cccoecvreviiniiiniencnnnns 2,016 2,033 2,017
Change OVer PriOr YEAT ..........cccooiiiiriiieieieieiieteteieeeste st (0.8)% 0.8% 0.3%
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Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
IHOP Restaurant Development Activity
Summary - beginning of period:
FIANCRISE ...t 1,507 1,472 1,439
ATCA LICENSE ...ttt ettt ettt e ste e e e saeesaesaeessessaessessnenseessensens 165 167 168
COMPANY ..eeniieeiiieiiieeiteeie ettt et e st ettesteesteesateesbaessbeenseesaseenseesabeesssesseens 11 11 13
Total IHOP restaurants, beginning of period...................ccoccoeevenvrvinnnnnnne. 1,683 1,650 1,620
Franchise/area license restaurants opened:
DOmEStIC franChiSe.......ccvvvveriieiiiieieeieie ettt ees 43 44 34
DOmMEStIC area lICENSEC.....veevveiieieiieieeiieie ettt ste et ste b e sre s e eseesse e 3 3 4
International franchiSe............oecveevieiiirieiiiiet e 20 8 18
International area liCENSE.........ccvevvieriieieriieierie et es — — —
Total franchise/area license restaurants opened............cceeveevereecierieeeeneeenenne. 66 55 56
Franchise/area license restaurants closed:
DOomEStIC franChiSe.......ccvveveriieiieiieieeiee et ens (12) 17 (19)
DOmMEStIC area lICENSEC......evverieiieiieiieeieie ettt ste e sae e sbe s sreesaesaeens €)) &) @)
International franchiSe...........ccecvieieiiieierieiei e 3) — 2)
International area liCENSE.........ccuevvieiieieriieierie e es — — (1)
Total franchise/area license restaurants closed...........coceviecieeiecieneereeneennenne, (16) (22) (26)
Net franchise/area license restaurant development..................c..cccooeenee 50 33 30
Refranchised from Company restaurants 1 3 4
Franchise restaurants reacquired by the Company .............cceceveveriercierieecnennnnn. — 3) (2)
Net franchise/area license restaurant additions.......................ccocoveviennnn. 51 33 32
Summary - end of period:
FIANCRISE ....veeeeeieeeeeee et 1,556 1,507 1,472
ATCA LICENSE ...ttt ettt ettt te et e ste e e e steessesaaesaessaessessnesseennensens 167 165 167
COMPANY ..eeniieiiiieiiieeiteeiteerite ettt e st eteesbeesteesete e baesabeenseesaseenseesabeesasesnseens 10 11 11
Total IHOP restaurants, end of period................cccocoveviniinincenieieeee, 1,733 1,683 1,650
Change OVer PriOr YEAT ...........c..ccoouiiiiirieieciieieetecete ettt et ere e 3.0% 2.0% 1.9%

During 2017, we expect Applebee's franchisees to develop between 20 and 30 new restaurants globally, the majority of
which are expected to be international openings. IHOP franchisees are projected to develop between 75 and 90 new IHOP
restaurants globally, the majority of which are expected to be domestic openings. We anticipate the closing of between 40 to 60
Applebee's restaurants in 2017 as part of a detailed system-wide analysis to optimize the health of the franchisee system. We
believe closures of IHOP restaurants from natural attrition in 2017 will be in a range similar to that experienced over the past
several years.

The actual number of openings may differ from both our expectations and development commitments. Historically, the
actual number of restaurants developed in a particular year has been less than the total number committed to be developed due
to various factors, including economic conditions and franchisee noncompliance with development agreements. The timing of
new restaurant openings also may be affected by various factors including weather-related and other construction delays,
difficulties in obtaining timely regulatory approvals and the impact of currency fluctuations on our international franchisees.
The actual number of closures also may differ from our expectations. Our franchisees are independent businesses and decisions
to close restaurants can be impacted by numerous factors in addition to changes in Applebee's domestic same-restaurant sales
that are outside of our control, including but not limited to, franchisees' agreements with landlords and lenders.

Domestic Same-restaurant Sales

The following table sets forth for each of the past three years the number of “Effective Restaurants” in the Applebee’s and
IHOP systems and information regarding the percentage change in sales at those restaurants compared to the same periods in
the prior two years. Sales at restaurants that are owned by franchisees and area licensees are not attributable to the Company
and, as such, the percentage changes in sales presented below are based on non-GAAP sales data. However, we believe that
presentation of this information is useful in analyzing our revenues because franchisees and area licensees pay us royalties and
advertising fees that are generally based on a percentage of their sales, and, where applicable, rental payments under leases that
partially may be based on a percentage of their sales. Management also uses this information to make decisions about future
plans for the development of additional restaurants as well as evaluation of current operations.
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Applebee's Restaurant Data Year Ended December 31,

Effective Restaurants:® 2016 2015 2014
Franchise 2,027 2,004 1,986
Company — 13 23

TOLAL .ttt 2,027 2,017 2,009

System-wide:®
Domestic sales percentage change'® ..............coooooverooreoereeceeeeeeeeeeeeeenn. (6.8)% 3.4% 1.3 %
Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage change'® ...............c...cco.coovuernnne. (5.00% 0.2% 1.1 %

Franchise:®©
Domestic sales percentage change'®..............o.couvveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeseene (6.2)% 3.9% 1.4 %
Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage change® ............c.coocooeiuviveenannn. (5.0)% 0.2% 1.1 %
Domestic average weekly unit sales (in thousands) ...........c.ccceceveveeereeennen. $ 453 $ 478 % 47.4

IHOP Restaurant Data

Effective Restaurants:®
FIanCRISE ...t e et e e ean 1,517 1,481 1,454
ATCA TICEINISE ...ttt ettt e et e st e et e et eebeebeeeabeereesebeeseeennas 166 166 167
COMPANY ...ttt ettt ettt et e st et e bt s bt e sbt e s bt e sabeenbeesateenbeenaees 10 12 11

Total 1,693 1,659 1,632

System-wide:®
Sales percentage Chan@e'® .............cooovvvoieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo enen (0.3)% 8.1% 6.6%
Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage change” .............ccc.coocovvevun.n. (0.)% 4.5% 3.9%

Franchise:®
Sales percentage change'® ...............cooooovveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e (0.3)% 8.2% 6.7%
Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage change ..............ccocoovvveevve.n. (0.)% 4.5% 3.9%
Average weekly unit sales (in thousands)............ccoceevevivieiereieeeeeeeeeerenen $ 37.3 $ 376 S 36.0

Area License:™
THOP sales percentage Change' ... 0.6 % 5.9% 6.3%

(@)

(b)

“Effective Restaurants” are the weighted average number of restaurants open in a given fiscal period, adjusted to account for restaurants
open for only a portion of the period. Information is presented for all Effective Restaurants in the Applebee’s and IHOP systems, which
includes restaurants owned by franchisees and area licensees as well as those owned by the Company.

“System-wide sales” are retail sales at Applebee’s restaurants operated by franchisees and IHOP restaurants operated by franchisees and
area licensees, as reported to the Company, in addition to retail sales at company-operated restaurants. Sales at restaurants that are
owned by franchisees and area licensees are not attributable to the Company. An increase in franchisees' reported sales will result in a
corresponding increase in our royalty revenue, while a decrease in franchisees' reported sales will result in a corresponding decrease in
our royalty revenue. Unaudited reported sales for Applebee's domestic franchise restaurants, IHOP franchise restaurants and IHOP area
license restaurants for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
Reported sales (unaudited) 2016 2015 2014
(In millions)

Applebee's domestic franchise restaurant Sales.............ocevveeeverieireirierieiree e $ 4,4186 $ 47119 $ 4,535.1
THOP franchise reStaurant SAlES............ccveevieriieciieiieeiieie e eee et et e e ereeaeereeaeeae e eeeens 2,939.9 2,948.3 2,725.7
THOP area license restaurant SAles............ccvevueeeuierieeiiieiiieieeiesieeeesreeereesreeereeeseeaeeeseesnaas 282.5 280.9 265.2

TOLAL ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt et e et e eteeteeaeertert et ereeteereereereenean $ 7,641.0 § 7,941.1 $ 7,526.0
(c) “Sales percentage change” reflects, for each category of restaurants, the percentage change in sales in any given fiscal year compared to

(d)

(©

the prior fiscal year for all restaurants in that category. The sales percentage change for the year ended December 31, 2015 was impacted
by a 53rd calendar week in fiscal year 2015.

“Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage change” reflects the percentage change in sales in any given fiscal year, compared to the
same weeks in the prior year, for domestic restaurants that have been operated throughout both fiscal years that are being compared and
have been open for at least 18 months. Because of new unit openings and restaurant closures, the domestic restaurants open throughout
the fiscal years being compared may be different from year to year. Domestic same-restaurant sales percentage change does not include
data on IHOP area license restaurants.

The 2015 sales percentage change was impacted by the refranchising of 23 Applebee's company-operated restaurants during 2015.
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Domestic Same-restaurant Sales Trends

Applebee's Domestic System-wide Same-restaurant Sales
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Applebee’s domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales decreased 7.2% for the three months ended December 31, 2016
from the same period in 2015. The decrease in the fourth quarter of 2016 was primarily due to a decline in customer traffic that
was slightly offset by an increase in average customer check. Applebee's customer traffic has declined for eight consecutive
quarters, with the decline growing progressively larger from the first quarter of 2015 to the fourth quarter of 2016. We believe
the continued decline of guest traffic in 2016 was due in part to changes in consumer preferences that have adversely impacted
the overall casual dining segment of the restaurant industry and due in part to initiatives we implemented during 2016 that did
not drive repeat traffic as expected. For the full year ended December 31, 2016, Applebee’s domestic system-wide same-
restaurant sales decreased 5.0%. The decrease for the full year 2016 was due to a decrease in customer traffic that was partially

offset by an increase in average customer check.

Applebee's performance for both the fourth quarter and full year of 2016 lagged that of the casual dining segment of the
restaurant industry. Based on data from Black Box, the casual dining segment of the restaurant industry also experienced a
decrease in same-restaurant sales during the fourth quarter and full year of 2016 due to decreases in customer traffic that were
partially offset by increases in average customer check. However, the casual dining segment decreases in customer traffic as
reported by Black Box were smaller than the Applebee's decreases in customer traffic and the casual dining segment increases
in average customer check as reported by Black Box were larger than Applebee's increases in average customer check.

ITHOP Domestic System-wide Same-restaurant Sales
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IHOP’s domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales decreased 2.1% for the three months ended December 31, 2016. The
decline in the fourth quarter of 2016 was due to decrease in customer traffic partially offset by an increase in average customer
check. IHOP customer traffic has declined for five consecutive quarters, with the decline growing progressively larger since the
first quarter of 2016. For the full year ended December 31, 2016, IHOP's domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales
decreased 0.1%. The decrease for the full year 2016 was due to a decrease in customer traffic that was substantially offset by an
increase in average customer check. We believe the slight decline in IHOP's domestic system-wide same-restaurant sales for the
full year 2016 was due in part to comparison against a 4.5% increase in 2015 that was IHOP's highest annual increase since
2004. IHOP's two-year increase of 4.3% in domestic same-restaurant sales exceeded that of the family dining segment over the
same two-year period, as reported by Black Box.

IHOP's performance for both the fourth quarter and full year of 2016 lagged that of the family dining segment of the
restaurant industry which experienced an increase in same-restaurant sales for both the fourth quarter and full year of 2016.
Based on data from Black Box, during both the fourth quarter and the full year of 2016, the family dining segment had an
increase in customer check that was larger than IHOP's increase in customer check, partially offset by a decrease in customer
traffic that was smaller than IHOP's decrease in customer traffic.

In the short term, a decline in customer traffic may be offset by an increase in average customer check resulting from an
increase in menu prices, a favorable change in product sales mix, or a combination thereof. A sustained decline in same-
restaurant customer traffic that cannot be offset by an increase in average customer check could have an adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition, due to, among other things, reduced royalty revenues, higher bad debt
expense resulting from the failure or inability of franchisees to pay amounts owed to us when due, and a possible decline in the
number of franchise restaurants because of reduced restaurant development or restaurant closures.

We strive to identify and create opportunities for growth in customer traffic and frequency, average check and same-
restaurant sales. We focus on building our brands with a long-term view through a strategic combination of menu, media,
remodel and development initiatives to continually innovate and evolve both brands. To drive each brand forward, we seek to
innovate and remain actively focused on driving sustainable sales and traffic. However, in the highly competitive restaurant
industry, there can be no assurance that our efforts will achieve the intended results within the time frame anticipated.

Results of Operations - Fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014
Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information

53rd week in Fiscal 2015

Our fiscal year ends on the Sunday nearest to December 31 of each year. Every five or six years, our fiscal year contains 53
calendar weeks. Our 2015 fiscal year contained 53 calendar weeks, whereas fiscal 2016 and 2014 each contained 52 calendar
weeks. The estimated impact of the 53rd week on fiscal 2015 results of operations was an increase in revenue of $13.8 million,
an increase in gross profit of $9.4 million, an increase in income before income taxes of $6.8 million and an increase in cash
from operating activities of approximately $6 million. The amounts represent unfavorable variances in the respective line items
in comparing 2016 amounts with 2015 amounts and favorable variances in comparing 2015 amounts with 2014 amounts.

Refranchising of 23 Applebee's Company-operated Restaurants

In July 2015, we completed the refranchising and sale of related restaurant assets of 23 Applebee’s company-operated
restaurants in the Kansas City, Missouri market area. We received proceeds of $9 million and recognized a gain of
approximately $2 million on the transaction in 2015. As the result of this transaction, we only recognized royalty revenues from
these 23 restaurants in 2016. In 2015 we recognized restaurant revenues and operating costs prior to the refranchising and
royalty revenues thereafter; we recognized restaurant revenues and operating costs for the entire year in 2014, as follows:

Favorable Favorable
aig (oo yps (el gy
(In millions)
Company restaurant reVenue................ccoeeevenenne. $ — 3 (27.5) $ 275 % (18.8) $ 46.3
ROyalty reVenue .......ccoveeveriieierieeiesieeiecieeveiens 1.7 0.9 0.8 0.8 —
Total revenue iMmpact..........cceeceevveeveriesvenieernennens 1.7 (26.6) 28.3 (18.0) 46.3
OPperating COStS......vevvirveerrieiereeriesrerieseresreesenreens — 26.0 26.0 19.0 45.0
Gross profit impact ..........ccocveevveeeveiireiieeeeni, $ 1.7 § (0.6) $ 23 $ 1.0 $ 1.3
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Consolidation of Kansas City Restaurant Support Center

In September 2015, we announced a strategic decision to consolidate many core Applebee's restaurant and franchisee
support functions at our Glendale, California headquarters. This action was completed in 2016. We incurred the following costs
related to the consolidation in 2016 and 2015:

Year ended December 31, Cumulative
2016 2015 Costs
(In millions)

Termination benefits and other personnel-related Costs...........coeevriririrerieniennn. $ 31 $ 49 $ 8.0
Facility costs:

Lease termination COSES .......eerurrirriirierieeierieeierie e see et e e seeeaeeeeeeeeneeeeens 2.9 — 2.9

DEPIECIATION ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e ee st ae s st enteeseeneeeneeneeens 0.2 1.0 1.2
Total fACIIIEY COSES ..euveitiriirtieiietiet ettt eee 3.1 1.0 4.1
Total coONSOLIAAtION COSES......uvrvirririirririirieriesieieie ettt ettt et sre e sse e saesseneas $ 62 3 59 3§ 12.1

Termination benefits, other personnel-related costs and depreciation costs related to the consolidation were included in
G&A expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, while the lease termination costs were included in
Closure and Impairment charges.

Adjustment to Deferred Tax Liabilities

As aresult of the consolidation action discussed above, our estimated state tax rate that will be effective when temporary
book/tax differences are realized in the future will be lower than the effective state tax rate that was used to record net deferred
tax liabilities when the temporary book/tax differences arose. Primarily because of this lower rate, we reduced deferred tax
liabilities and our 2016 income tax provision by approximately $1.7 million. This change lowered our combined effective tax
rate for the year ended December 31, 2016 from what would have been 37.1%, without the adjustment, to 36.0%.

Contributions to IHOP National Advertising Fund

During 2014, the Company and franchisees whose restaurants contribute a large majority of total annual contributions to
the IHOP national advertising fund (the “THOP NAF”) entered into an amendment to their franchise agreements that increased
the advertising contribution percentage of those restaurants' gross sales. Pursuant to the amendment, for the period from June
30,2014 to December 31, 2014, 2.74% of each participating restaurant's gross sales was contributed to the IHOP NAF and
0.76% was contributed to local advertising cooperatives. For the period from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017, 3.50% of
each participating restaurant's gross sales will be contributed to the [HOP NAF with no significant contribution to local
advertising cooperatives. The amended advertising contribution percentage is also applicable to IHOP company-operated
restaurants. This change increased total franchise revenue and expense by $10.4 million, $10.5 million and $5.9 million in
2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, as the result of the amendment. In 2016, we and franchisees whose restaurants contribute a
large majority of total annual contributions to the [HOP NAF extended this additional contribution through 2022.

Refinancing of Long-term Debt

In the fourth quarter of 2014, we extinguished $1.225 billion principal amount of long-term debt that bore interest at a
weighted average rate of approximately 7.3% and issued $1.3 billion principal amount of new long-term debt bearing interest at
a fixed rate of 4.277%. As a result, our interest expense in 2016 and 2015 was significantly lower than it was in 2014. We
recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $64.9 million in 2014, and as a result, our net income and net income per
diluted share were significantly lower in 2014 compared to both 2016 and 2015.
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Financial Review

Variance 2015 Variance
Revenue 2016 0} 52 weeks  53rd week Total @ 2014
(In millions)

Franchise operations............c.ccceeeevevevenenene. $4844 § 04 $ 4840 $ 107 $ 4947 § 279 $ 456.1
Rental operations............cccceeeeverveeverieennnnn, 123.0 2.2) 125.2 2.5 127.7 2.3 122.9
Company restaurant operations................. 17.4 (30.1) 47.5 0.4 479 (15.0) 62.5
Financing operations .............ccccveeverveeneene. 9.2 (1.4) 10.6 0.2 10.8 2.9) 13.5
Total FEVENUE ......eoveveveeieiiieieieeeveeeeeen $ 634.0 § (333) % 6673 § 138 § 6811 § 123 § 655.0
Change vs. prior year V... (5.0% (5.0)% - 1% T T 23%

M Favorable (unfavorable) variance in comparing 2016 and 2014 results with 2015 results that exclude the 53rd calendar week of 2015.

Our 2016 total revenue declined $47.1 million compared to 2015, of which $13.8 million was due to a 53rd calendar week
in 2015. Other components of the total change are as follows:

* Company restaurant revenue declined primarily due to the refranchising of 23 Applebee's restaurants as noted
under “Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information.”

» Rental and financing revenues decreased primarily due to the progressive decline in interest income as financed
receivables are repaid.

* Increased franchise revenues due to IHOP restaurant development and sales of pancake and waffle dry mix were
offset by a decrease in Applebee's franchise royalties primarily due to a 5.0% decline in same-restaurant sales and
to lower franchise, extension and termination fees from both brands.

Our 2015 revenue increased $26.1 million over 2014, of which $13.8 million was due to the 53rd calendar week in fiscal
2015. Other components of the total change are as follows:

 Franchise revenues improved due to an increase in contributions to the [HOP NAF by the large majority of IHOP
franchisees, the impact of a 4.5% increase in IHOP domestic franchise same-restaurant sales on franchise
royalties, and new restaurant development by franchisees of both brands.

» Company-operated restaurant revenue declined primarily due to the refranchising of 23 Applebee's company-
operated restaurants noted above.

» Rental revenue increased due to an increase in rental income based on a percentage of franchisees' retail sales and
a decrease in write-offs of deferred lease revenue associated with lease agreements that were prematurely
terminated, partially offset by the progressive decline in interest income as financed receivables are repaid.

* Financing revenue declined primarily due to the progressive decline in interest income as financed receivables are
repaid and a $1.4 million lease termination payment received in 2014 that did not recur in 2015.

Variance 2015 Variance

Gross Profit (Loss) 2016 ) 52 weeks  53rd week Total ) 2014
(In millions)

Franchise operations .............cccccceeveevenen. $ 339.7 $ (82 $ 3479 $ 7.8 $3557 $ 13.6 $ 3343
Rental operations..........cccceveeveeneerienienenne 31.5 (0.3) 31.8 1.3 33.1 3.5 28.3
Company restaurant operations................. (0.8) (0.6) 0.2) 0.1 (0.1) 0.0 (0.2)
Financing operations..........c..coccocevenvenvennene 9.0 (1.1) 10.1 0.2 10.3 (2.6) 12.7
Total gross profit........ccceceveeveeveeerieernennns $ 379.4 $ (102) $ 389.6 $ 94 $3990 §$ 145 §$ 375.1
Change vs. prior year " ..., — 2.0% (2.6)% - 3% T 1%

@ Favorable (unfavorable) variance in comparing 2016 and 2014 results with 2015 results that exclude the 53rd calendar week of 2015.

Our 2016 gross profit decreased $19.6 million compared to 2015, of which $9.4 million was due to a 53rd calendar week
in 2015. Other components of the total change are as follows:

* Franchise gross profit declined primarily due to a 5.0% decrease in Applebee's domestic franchise same-restaurant
sales as well as lower franchise, extension and termination fees from both brands. These unfavorable items were
partially offset by IHOP restaurant development and favorability in pancake and waffle dry mix.

* Rental and financing gross profit was adversely impacted by the progressive decline in interest income as financed
receivables are repaid.

» Company-operated restaurant gross profit declined primarily due to the refranchising of 23 Applebee's company-
operated restaurants noted above.
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Our 2015 gross profit increased $23.9 million compared to 2014, of which $9.4 million was due to a 53rd calendar week in
2015. Other components of the total change are as follows:

* Franchise gross profit improved primarily due to a 4.5% increase in IHOP's domestic franchise same-restaurant
sales, franchise restaurant development by both brands, higher franchise, extension and termination fees and
favorability in pancake and waffle dry mix.

+ Rental gross profit increased because of the favorable impact of the 4.5% increase in IHOP's domestic franchise
same-restaurant sales on rental income based on a percentage of franchisees' retail sales as well as a decrease in
write-offs of deferred lease revenue associated with lease agreements that were prematurely terminated. This was
partially offset by the progressive decline in interest income as financed receivables are repaid.

+ Financing gross profit was adversely impacted by the progressive decline in interest income as financed receivables
are repaid and a $1.4 million lease termination payment received in 2014 that did not recur in 2015.

Franchise Operations

5 5 (D) Favorable Favorable
Effective Franchise Restaurants: (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
2016 Variance 2015 Variance 2014
APPIEDEE’S.c..ceiveiiiiici e 2,027 23 2,004 18 1,986
THOP. ... 1,683 36 1,647 26 1,621
Variance 2015 Variance
2016 ?) 52 weeks  53rd week Total ?) 2014

(In millions)
Franchise revenues:

APPIEDEL'S ..o $ 1883 § (07 $ 1980 $§ 43 $ 2023 § 24 195.6

THOP ..ot 184.8 4.4 180.4 3.9 184.3 10.2 170.2

AdVErtiSing .......coveeveveieinieieeeeeeeeene 111.3 5.7 105.6 2.5 108.1 15.3 90.3
Total franchise revenues.........c..c.ccecevvennenn. 484.4 0.4 484.0 10.7 494.7 27.9 456.1
Franchise Expenses:

APPIEDEE’S. ..o 10.2 (4.6) 5.6 — 5.6 (0.3) 5.3

THOP. ..ot 23.2 1.7 24.9 0.4 253 1.3 26.2

AdVErtiSing .......ccveeveveieieieieeeeeeeeenen 111.3 (5.7) 105.6 2.5 108.1 (15.3) 90.3
Total franchise eXpenses ..........ccocvevennenne. 144.6 (8.6) 136.1 2.9 139.0 (14.3) 121.8
Franchise Segment Profit:

APPIEDEE’S. ..o 178.2 (143) 1924 43 196.7 2.1 190.3

THOP. ..ot 161.6 6.1 155.5 3.5 159.0 11.5 144.0
Total franchise segment profit................... $339.7 $§ (82) $3479 § 78 § 3557 § 13.6 § 3343
Gross profit as % revenue...............c.een...... 70.1% 71.9% 73.3%

"Effective Franchise Restaurants are the weighted average number of franchise restaurants open in a given fiscal period, adjusted to account for franchise
restaurants open for only a portion of the period.
Favorable (unfavorable) variance in comparing 2016 and 2014 results with 2015 results that exclude the 53rd calendar week of 2015.

Our 2016 total franchise revenue declined $10.3 million compared to 2015, of which $10.7 million was due to a 53rd
calendar week in 2015. Other components of the total change are as follows:

» Applebee's franchise revenue decreased approximately $8 million due to a 5.0% decrease in Applebee's domestic
same-restaurant sales. Lower franchise termination and transfer fees and an increase in the amount of royalties we
are not recognizing until received in cash also contributed to the decrease. These unfavorable items were partially
offset by an increase of approximately $0.9 million in royalty revenues from the 23 refranchised restaurants
discussed above.

» THOP franchise revenues improved due to increases in effective franchise restaurants over the past two years due to
franchisee development and an increase in sales of pancake and waffle dry mix. These favorable items were
primarily offset by a $1.4 million decrease in franchise termination, transfer and extension fees. The 0.1% decrease
in [HOP's domestic same-restaurant sales did not have a significant impact on the change in 2016 IHOP franchise
revenues compared to 2015.

 Adpvertising revenues increased due to the IHOP restaurant development noted above and an increase in the number
of international restaurants of both brands participating in advertising funds.
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Our 2016 total franchise expenses increased $5.6 million compared to 2015, which included $2.9 million of favorability
because of a 53rd calendar week in 2015. Other components of the total change are as follows:

» Applebee's franchise expenses increased primarily because of a $2.5 million franchisor contribution to the
Applebee's national advertising fund for marketing-related initiatives and a $1.4 million increase in bad debt
expense.

+ THOP franchise expenses improved due to favorability in pancake and dry mix purchases.

+ Advertising expenses increased concurrently with the increase in advertising revenues.

Our 2015 total franchise revenue increased $38.6 million compared to 2014, of which $10.7 million was due to a 53rd
calendar week in 2015. Other components of the total change are as follows:

* Applebee's franchise revenue improved because of new restaurant development, five months of royalty revenues
from the 23 refranchised restaurants discussed above and higher franchise, termination and transfer fees. These
favorable items were partially offset by the unfavorable impact of a strong U.S. dollar on royalty revenues from
international franchise restaurants of approximately $0.9 million.

+ IHOP franchise revenues improved primarily due to a $5.3 million increase in royalties because of a 4.5% increase
in [HOP same-restaurant sales, a $1.6 million increase from franchisee restaurant development, a $1.3 million
increase in franchise termination, transfer and extension fees and a $1.2 million increase in sales of pancake and
waffle dry mix. These favorable items were partially offset by the unfavorable impact of a strong U.S. dollar on
royalty revenues from international franchise restaurants of approximately $0.6 million.

* Advertising revenues increased due to $10.5 million of increased contributions to the IHOP NAF by the large
majority of IHOP franchisees as discussed under “Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information -
Contributions to IHOP National Advertising Fund” and $4.8 million due to the increases in domestic franchise
same-restaurant sales and restaurant development that also impacted IHOP franchise revenue.

Our 2015 total franchise expenses increased $17.2 million compared to 2014, of which $2.9 million was due to a 53rd
calendar week in 2015. Other components of the total change are as follows:
+ THOP franchise expenses improved primarily due to decreases in other franchise operating costs.
+ Advertising expenses increased concurrently with the increase in advertising revenues.

Adpvertising contributions designated for IHOP’s national advertising fund and local marketing and advertising
cooperatives, as well as advertising contributions from international franchise restaurants of both brands, are recognized as
revenue and expense of franchise operations. However, because we have less contractual control over Applebee’s domestic
advertising expenditures, Applebee's domestic national advertising fund activity is not recognized as franchise revenue and
expense.

Gross profit as a percentage of revenue declined in 2016 compared to 2015 primarily because of the increase in Applebee's
franchise expenses as well as the increases in advertising revenue which generated no incremental gross profit, partially offset
by favorability in pancake and waffle dry mix margin. Gross profit as a percentage of revenue declined in 2015 compared to
2014 primarily because of the significant increase in advertising revenue which generated no incremental gross profit.

Rental Operations 2015

Variance Variance
2016 ) 52 weeks  53rd week Total ) 2014
(In millions)
Rental reVenues ..........ccoveeeveveevereeeereeneneae, $ 1230 § (22) $ 1252 § 25 § 1277 § 23 § 1229
Rental eXpenses........cocceveeeereeneeeenieenennn 91.5 (1.9) 93.4 1.2 94.6 (1.2) 94.6
Rental operations segment profit .............. $§ 315 § (03) 318 § 13 § 331 § 35 $§ 283
Gross profit as % revenue............c.ccoeneee.. 25.6% 25.9% 23.0%

M Favorable (unfavorable) variance in comparing 2016 and 2014 results with 2015 results that exclude the 53rd calendar week of 2015.

Rental operations relate primarily to IHOP franchise restaurants that were developed under the Previous IHOP Business
Model described under Item 1. - Business. Rental income includes revenue from operating leases and interest income from
direct financing leases. Rental expenses are costs of prime operating leases and interest expense on prime capital leases on
certain franchise restaurants.

Rental revenue declined $4.7 million in 2016 compared to 2015, of which $2.5 million was due to a 53rd calendar week in
2015 and $1.3 million was due to the expected progressive decline as direct financing leases are repaid. There was also a
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decrease in rental income based on a percentage of franchisees' retail sales. Rental revenue improved $4.8 million in 2015
compared to 2014, of which $2.5 million was due a 53rd calendar week in 2015. There was also an increase in rental income
based on a percentage of franchisees' retail sales and a decrease in write-offs of deferred lease revenue associated with lease
agreements that were prematurely terminated. These favorable items were partially offset by a decline of $1.1 million in
interest income as direct financing leases are repaid.

Rental expenses decreased $3.1 million in 2016 compared to 2015 due primarily to a $1.7 million decline in interest
expense as capital lease obligations are repaid and additional expenses of $1.2 million due to the 53rd week of 2015. Rental
expenses were the same in 2015 compared to 2014 as additional rental expenses of $1.2 million due to the 53rd calendar week
in 2015 were offset by a similar decline in interest expense as capital lease obligations are repaid.

Rental segment profit as a percentage of revenue was essentially the same in 2016 as in 2015, while the increase in 2015
compared to 2014 was primarily due to an increase in rental income based on a percentage of franchisees' retail sales and a
decrease in write-offs of deferred lease revenue associated with early lease terminations.

Company Operations Favorable Favorable
(Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
2016 Variance 2015 Variance 2014

(In millions, except number of restaurants)

Effective Company Restaurants:"

APPIEDELS ..o — (13) 13 (10) 23
1150) N 10 2) 12 1 11
Company restaurant Sales.............coevvrveeerverrnenns $ 174 $ (30.5) $ 47.9 $ (14.6) $ 62.5
Company restaurant eXpenses .........cceeveeeveereeennnes 18.2 29.8 48.0 14.7 62.7
Company restaurant segment (loss) profit ........... $ 0.8 $ 0.8) $ 0.1) $ 0.1 $ (0.2)
Gross profit as % revenue ............oceeeevereecvennnnns (4.9% (0.2)% (0.2)%

O Effective Company Restaurants are the weighted average number of company-operated restaurants open in a given fiscal period, adjusted to account for
company-operated restaurants open for only a portion of the period.

We operated 10 IHOP restaurants in the Cincinnati, Ohio market area during 2016, 2015 and 2014. We also operated 23
Applebee's restaurants in the Kansas City, Missouri market area for seven months in 2015 and all of 2014. Additionally, from
time to time, we may also operate IHOP restaurants reacquired from franchisees on a temporary basis until those restaurants are
refranchised. There were no IHOP restaurants under temporary operation at December 31, 2016.

The 53rd calendar week in 2015 did not have a significant impact on the comparisons of restaurant sales, expenses and
gross profit between the three years presented above. All significant variances in restaurant sales, expenses and gross profit
between the three years are due to the July 2015 refranchising of Applebee's restaurants described under “Events Impacting
Comparability of Financial Information.”

Financing Operations Favorable Favorable
(Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
2016 Variance 2015 Variance 2014
(In millions)

Financing revenues...........coeeeveeeviverevereenerenenn $ 92 § (1.6) $ 10.8 $ 27 $ 13.5
Financing eXpenses .........ccveeveeeerveeeerreeeeseesnennnns 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.3 0.8
Financing operations segment profit.................... $ 9.0 § 1.3) S 103 3 24) $ 12.7
Gross profit as % revenue .........ccceceverencrereennen 98.3% 95.2% 93.9%

Financing operations relate primarily to IHOP franchise restaurants that were developed under the Previous IHOP Business
Model described under Item 1. - Business. Financing operations revenue primarily consists of interest income from the
financing of franchise fees and equipment leases. We also sell equipment associated with ITHOP franchise restaurants we have
reacquired when those restaurants are subsequently refranchised to a new franchisee. Financing expenses are primarily the cost
of the restaurant equipment sold.

The 53rd calendar week in 2015 did not have a significant impact on the comparisons of financing revenues, expenses and
gross profit between the three years presented above.
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There is a progressive decline in interest income from the financing of franchise fees and equipment leases as note
balances are repaid. Interest income decreased by $1.1 million between 2016 and 2015 and by $0.9 million between 2015 and
2014. Additionally, we received fees of $1.4 million associated with the negotiated early termination of two leases in 2014.
Early lease terminations such as these occur relatively infrequently and did not occur in 2016 or 2015. The remaining minor
variances in financing revenues and expenses are due to changes in sales and cost of sales of equipment associated with
reacquired IHOP franchise restaurants subsequently refranchised to new franchisees. Sales of equipment associated with
reacquired IHOP restaurants are, by nature, unpredictable and variable in any given year.

Favorable Favorable
L. . (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
General and Administrative Expenses 2016 Variance 2015 Variance 2014
(In millions)
$ 1489 $ 65 $ 1554 $ 9.5) $ 145.9

G&A expenses decreased in 2016 compared to 2015, of which $1.5 million was due to additional expenses in the 53rd
week of 20135, primarily salaries, benefits and depreciation. In addition, personnel-related costs decreased $6.7 million,
occupancy costs declined $1.6 million, and consumer research costs were $0.7 million lower. These favorable items were offset
by higher costs of $3.0 million for professional services and $1.0 million for franchisee conferences. The decrease in personnel-
related costs is due primarily to lower incentive compensation costs of $7.2 million and lower costs of $1.8 million related to
the consolidation action described under “Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information - Consolidation of Kansas
City Restaurant Support Center,” partially offset by higher full-year costs of stock-based compensation, salary and benefits for
several senior management positions that were filled during 2015. The decrease in occupancy costs was primarily due to the
consolidation of the Kansas City restaurant support center.

G&A expenses increased in 2015 compared to 2014, primarily due to $5.9 million of expenses related to the consolidation
of the Kansas City restaurant support center noted above and $1.5 million due to additional expenses in the 53rd week in 2015.
In addition, costs of professional services increased $2.3 million and certain payroll tax credits declined $1.3 million. Salary
and benefits costs increased because several executive management positions were filled in 2015, but this was offset by the
impact of a relative decrease in the per share price of our common stock on certain long-term incentive compensation awards.

Favorable Favorable
(Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Interest Expense 2016 Variance 2015 Variance 2014
(In millions)
$ 61.5 $ 1.8 $ 633 $ 333 §$ 96.6

The decrease in interest expense in 2016 compared to 2015 was primarily due to $1.2 million of additional expense
included in 2015 because of the 53rd week. Interest expense decreased significantly in 2015 compared to 2014 due to the
refinancing of debt described under “Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information.”

Other Income and Expense Items (Ul:1 ’Kﬁﬁ?gﬁe) (Ul; il i::fie)
2016 Variance 2015 Variance 2014
(In millions)

Loss on extinguishment of debt ..............cocouee.... $ — $ — — S 649 $ 64.9
Amortization of intangible assets...........cc.ccccee..e. 10.0 0.0 10.0 2.1 12.1
Closure and impairment charges...........cccccecuenene 5.1 2.5 2.6 1.1 3.7
Loss (gain) on disposition of assets...................... 0.8 (1.7) (0.9) 1.2 0.3

Total..ceeeeeiere e $ 159 § 42 3 11.7 $ 693 $ 81.0

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt

See “Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information - Refinancing of Long-term Debt.”
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Amortization of Intangible Assets

Amortization of intangible assets relates to intangible assets arising from the November 2007 acquisition of Applebee's,
primarily franchising rights, recipes and menus. The intangible asset related to recipes and menus became fully amortized in
November 2014, resulting in the decline in amortization in 2015 compared to 2014.

Closure and Impairment Charges (Ul:lz};%?g:)ele) (Ul::gg(r;;’{ﬁe)
2016 Variance 2015 Variance 2014
(In millions)
Kansas City lease eXit COSES ..........covrvrvverereeennnas $ 29 S 29 $ — 3 — $ —
Closure charges ........ccoecvvevveerienieeneenre e 1.2 0.2 1.4 0.7 2.1
Long-lived tangible asset impairment.................. 1.0 0.2 1.2 0.4 1.6
Total closure and impairment charges.................. $ 5.1 $ (2.5) 26 $ 1.1 3.7

Kansas City Lease Exit Costs

The Company incurred costs of $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to exit a facility in connection with the
consolidation action described under “Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information - Consolidation of Kansas City
Restaurant Support Center.” Of that total, $2.5 million related to the termination of our involvement in a lease covering two
floors of the facility and $0.4 million was accrued as the present value of future lease payments, net of assumed sublease
rentals, of a portion of one floor of the facility.

Closure Charges

Approximately $0.7 million of closure charges for the year ended December 31, 2016 related to one IHOP franchise
restaurant and one Applebee's restaurant closed during 2016, with the remainder related to adjustments to the estimated reserve
for IHOP and Applebee's restaurants closed prior to 2016. The substantial majority of closure charges for the year ended
December 31, 2015 related to two IHOP franchise restaurants closed during 2015, partially offset by minor adjustments to the
estimated reserve for IHOP and Applebee's restaurants closed prior to 2015. Approximately $1.0 million of the closure charges
for the December 31, 2014 related to IHOP restaurants closed during 2014, with the remainder primarily related to adjustments
to the estimated reserve for IHOP and Applebee's restaurants closed prior to 2014.

Long-lived Tangible Asset Impairment

Long-lived tangible asset impairment charges for the year ended December 31, 2016 comprised a charge of $0.6 million
for one IHOP company-operated restaurant and charges totaling $0.4 million of individually insignificant charges at eight IHOP
company-operated restaurants. Long-lived tangible asset impairment charges for the year ended December 31, 2015 primarily
related to $1.1 million of individually insignificant charges at eight IHOP company-operated restaurants and four Applebee's
company-operated restaurants. Long-lived tangible asset impairment charges for the year ended December 31, 2014 related
primarily to two THOP company-operated restaurants in the Cincinnati, Ohio area. The Company evaluated the causal factors of
all impairments of long-lived assets as they were recorded in each year and concluded they were based on factors specific to
each asset and not potential indicators of an impairment of other long-lived assets.

See “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates - Goodwill and Intangibles” for a description of our policy with respect to
the review for impairments of goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets. In carrying out that policy, we noted no indicators
of impairment on an interim basis and no impairments as the result of performing our annual tests for impairment during fiscal
2016, 2015 and 2014. See “Significant Known Events, Trends or Uncertainties Impacting or Expected to Impact Comparisons
of Reported or Future Results.”

Gain or Loss on Disposition of Assets

As discussed under “Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information,” we recognized a gain of $2 million from
the refranchising and sale of related restaurant assets of 23 Applebee's company-operated restaurants in 2015. There were no
other individually significant gains or losses on dispositions of assets during fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014.
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Income Tax Provision Favorable Favorable

(Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
2016 Variance 2015 Variance 2014
(In millions)
Provision for inCOME taxes............ooeveveverereeeennnns $ 551 % 86 $ 637 $ (48.6) S 15.1
Effective tax rate........ccoooveeieciiiieiiec e 36.0% 1.8% 37.8% (8.5)% 29.3%

The income tax provision will vary from period to period for two primary reasons: a change in pretax book income and a
change in the effective tax rate. Changes in our pretax book income between 2016 and 2015 and between 2015 and 2014 are
addressed in the preceding sections of “Results of Operations - Fiscal 2016, 2015 and 2014.”

The 2016 effective tax rate of 36.0% applied to pretax book income was higher than the statutory Federal tax rate of 35%
primarily due to state and local income taxes, offset by applying a lower state tax rate to the deferred tax balances (See Note 15
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements).

The 2015 effective tax rate of 37.8% applied to pretax book income was higher than the statutory Federal tax rate of 35%
primarily due to state and local income taxes.

The 2014 effective tax rate of 29.3% applied to pretax book income was lower than the statutory Federal tax rate of 35%
primarily due to the Company’s retroactive adoption in 2014 of the domestic production activity deduction and the federal
research and experimentation credit. Our 2014 effective tax rate was reduced by 6.6% because of domestic production activity
deductions and research and experimentation credits generated from tax years prior to 2014 (See Note 15 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements).

As of each reporting date, we consider new evidence, both positive and negative, that could impact our view with regards
to future realization of deferred tax assets. As of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, we determined that, based on available
evidence, no change to the valuation allowance against deferred tax assets was warranted.

Liquidity and Capital Resources of the Company

Refinancing of Long-Term Debt
Transaction Summary

On September 30, 2014, Applebee’s Funding LLC and IHOP Funding LLC (each a “Co-Issuer”), each a special purpose,
wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of the Company, issued $1.3 billion of Series 2014-1 4.277% Fixed Rate Senior Notes, Class
A-2 (the “Class A-2 Notes”) in an offering exempt from registration under the Securities Act. The Co-Issuers also entered into
a revolving financing facility of Series 2014-1 Variable Funding Senior Notes Class A-1 (the “Variable Funding Notes™), which
allows for drawings of up to $100 million of Variable Funding Notes and the issuance of letters of credit. The Class A-2 Notes
and the Variable Funding Notes are referred to collectively as the “Notes.” The Notes were issued in a securitization
transaction pursuant to which substantially all of our domestic revenue-generating assets and our domestic intellectual property,
are held by the Co-Issuers and certain other special-purpose, wholly-owned indirect subsidiaries of the Company (the
“Guarantors”) that act as guarantors of the Notes and that have pledged substantially all of their assets to secure the Notes.

On September 30, 2014, we repaid the entire outstanding principal balance of $463.6 million of our Senior Secured Credit
Facility (the “Credit Facility”); there were no premiums or penalties associated with the repayment. On October 30, 2014, after
a required 30-day notice period, we repaid the entire outstanding $760.8 million principal balance of our 9.5% Senior Notes
(the “Senior Notes”), along with a required make-whole premium for early repayment of $36.1 million. All of our obligations
under the Credit Facility and the Senior Notes terminated upon the respective repayments thereof.

This transaction was accounted for as a debt extinguishment under U.S. GAAP. We recognized a loss on extinguishment of
$64.9 million, comprised of the $36.1 million make-whole premium on the Senior Notes and the write-off of the unamortized
debt discount and the issuance costs associated with the extinguished debt of $16.9 million and $11.9 million, respectively.

The primary impacts of this transaction on our liquidity during 2014 were cash payments of $36.1 million for the make-
whole premium on the Senior Notes and $24.2 million for issuance costs of the new debt. Additionally, we were required to
fund various reserve accounts required by the indenture under which the new debt was issued totaling approximately $66.7
million. These reserve accounts are considered to be restricted cash. Partially offsetting these cash outflows were proceeds of
approximately $75 million received from issuance of the new debt in excess of the cash required to retire the old debt.
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One of the reserve accounts required by the indenture under which the new debt was issued was a short-term interest
reserve account equal to five months of interest on the Class A-2 Notes. After this interest payment was made in March 2015,
the reserve requirement automatically decreased to three months of interest on the Class A-2 Notes. This change reduced our
required restricted cash by $10.1 million.

The primary impacts of this transaction on our liquidity over the term of the Notes are (i) lower annual cash interest
payments on long-term debt than if the Credit Facility and the Senior Notes were still in place, (ii) elimination of interest rate
risk on the variable-rate Credit Facility and (iii) the extension of the maturity of our long-term debt to 2021. The retired Credit
Facility would have expired in October 2017 and the Senior Notes were to be repaid in October 2018.

Class A-2 Notes

The Notes were issued under a Base Indenture, dated September 30, 2014 (the “Base Indenture”) and the related Series
2014-1 Supplement to the Base Indenture, dated September 30, 2014 (the “Series 2014-1 Supplement”), among the Co-Issuers
and Citibank, N.A., as the trustee (in such capacity, the “Trustee”) and securities intermediary. The Base Indenture and the
Series 2014-1 Supplement (collectively, the “Indenture”) will allow the Co-Issuers to issue additional series of notes in the
future subject to certain conditions set forth therein.

While the Notes are outstanding, payment of principal and interest is required to be made on the Class A-2 Notes on a
quarterly basis. The quarterly principal payment of $3.25 million on the Class A-2 Notes may be suspended when the leverage
ratio for the Company and its subsidiaries is less than or equal to 5.25x. In general, the leverage ratio is our indebtedness
divided by adjusted EBITDA for the four preceding quarterly periods. The complete definitions of all calculation elements of
the leverage ratio are contained in the Base Indenture filed as Exhibit 4.1 to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on October 3,
2014 (“Base Indenture”). As of December 31, 2015, our leverage ratio was 4.62x (See Exhibit 12.1); accordingly, no principal
payment on the Class A-2 Notes was required.

We may voluntarily repay the Class A-2 Notes at any time; however, if we voluntarily repay the Class A-2 Notes prior to
September 2018 we would be required to pay a make-whole premium. We would also be subject to a make-whole premium in
the event of a mandatory prepayment occurring prior to September 2018 following a Rapid Amortization Event or certain asset
dispositions. The make-whole premium requirements are considered derivatives embedded in the Class A-2 Notes that must be
bifurcated for separate valuation. We estimated the fair value of these derivatives to be immaterial of December 31, 2016, based
on the probability-weighted discounted cash flows associated with either event.

The legal final maturity of the Class A-2 Notes is in September 2044, but it is anticipated that, unless earlier prepaid to the
extent permitted under the Indenture, the Class A-2 Notes will be repaid in September 2021 (the “Class A-2 Anticipated
Repayment Date”). If the Co-Issuers have not repaid or refinanced the Class A-2 Notes prior to the Class A-2 Anticipated
Repayment Date, the interest rate on the Class A-2 Notes will increase significantly. Specifically, additional interest will accrue
on the Class A-2 Notes equal to the greater of (i) 5.00% per annum and (ii) a per annum interest rate equal to the amount, if any,
by which the sum of the following exceeds the Class A-2 Note interest rate: (A) the yield to maturity (adjusted to a quarterly
bond-equivalent basis) on the Class A-2 Anticipated Repayment Date of the United States Treasury Security having a term
closest to 10 years plus (B) 5.00% plus (C) 2.150%.

The Notes are secured by the collateral described below under “Guarantees and Collateral.”
Variable Funding Notes

In connection with the issuance of the Class A-2 Notes, the Co-Issuers also entered into a revolving financing facility that
allows for the drawings of up to $100 million of Variable Funding Notes and the issuance of letters of credit. The Variable
Funding Notes were issued under the Indenture and allow for drawings on a revolving basis. Drawings and certain additional
terms related to the Variable Funding Notes are governed by the Class A-1 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of September 30,
2014 (the “Variable Funding Note Purchase Agreement”), among the Co-Issuers, the Guarantors, certain conduit investors,
financial institutions and funding agents, and Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank, B.A. (“Rabobank
Nederdland”), New York Branch, as provider of letters of credit, as swingline lender and as administrative agent.

The Variable Funding Notes will be governed, in part, by the Variable Funding Note Purchase Agreement and by certain
generally applicable terms contained in the Indenture. Depending on the type of borrowing by the Co-Issuers, the applicable
interest rate under the Variable Funding Notes is calculated at a per annum rate equal to (a) LIBOR plus 2.50%, (b) (i) the
greatest of (x) the prime rate, (y) the federal funds effective rate plus 0.50% or (z) a daily rate equal to one month LIBOR plus
0.5% plus (ii) 2.00% or (c) the lenders’ commercial paper funding rate plus 2.50%. There is a scaled commitment fee based on
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the unused portion of the Variable Funding Notes facility of between 50 to 100 basis points. It is anticipated that the principal
and interest on the Variable Funding Notes will be repaid in full on or prior to September 2019 (the “VFN Anticipated
Repayment Date”), subject to two additional one-year extensions at the option of the Company, which acts as the manager (as
described below), upon the satisfaction of certain conditions. Following the VFN Anticipated Repayment Date (and any
extensions thereof), additional interest will accrue on the Variable Funding Notes equal to 5.00% per annum. The Variable
Funding Notes and other credit instruments issued under the Variable Funding Note Purchase Agreement are secured by the
collateral described below under “Guarantees and Collateral.”

The Variable Funding Notes were undrawn upon issuance on September 30, 2014 and we have not drawn on them since
issuance. At December 31, 2016, approximately $5.0 million was pledged against the Variable Funding Notes for outstanding
letters of credit, leaving $95.0 million of Variable Funding Notes available for borrowings. The letters of credit are used
primarily to satisfy insurance-related collateral requirements.

Guarantees and Collateral

Under the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement dated September 30, 2014 (the “Guarantee and Collateral Agreement”),
among the Guarantors in favor of the Trustee, the Guarantors guarantee the obligations of the Co-Issuers under the Indenture
and related documents and secure the guarantee by granting a security interest in substantially all of their assets.

The Notes are secured by a security interest in substantially all of the assets of the Co-Issuers and the Guarantors
(collectively, the “Securitization Entities”). As of September 30, 2014, these assets (the “Securitized Assets™) generally
included substantially all of the domestic revenue-generating assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, which principally
consist of franchise agreements, area license agreements, development agreements, franchisee fee notes, equipment leases,
agreements related to the production and sale of pancake and waffle dry-mixes, owned and leased real property and intellectual

property.

The Notes are obligations only of the Co-Issuers pursuant to the Indenture and are unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the Guarantors pursuant to the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement. Except as described below, neither we nor
any of our subsidiaries, other than the Securitization Entities, guarantee or in any way are liable for the obligations of the Co-
Issuers under the Indenture or the Notes.

Covenants and Restrictions

The Notes are subject to a series of covenants and restrictions customary for transactions of this type, including (i) that the
Co-Issuers maintain specified reserve accounts to be used to make required payments in respect of the Notes, (ii) provisions
relating to optional and mandatory prepayments, and the related payment of specified amounts, including specified make-whole
payments in the case of the Class A-2 Notes under certain circumstances, (iii) certain indemnification payments in the event,
among other things, the transfers of the assets pledged as collateral for the Notes are in stated ways defective or ineffective and
(iv) covenants relating to recordkeeping, access to information and similar matters. The Notes are also subject to customary
rapid amortization events provided for in the Indenture, including events tied to failure of the Securitization Entities to maintain
the stated debt service coverage (“DSCR?”) ratio, the sum of domestic retail sales for all restaurants being below $3.5 billion on
quarterly measurement dates, certain manager termination events, certain events of default and the failure to repay or refinance
the Notes on the Class A-2 Anticipated Repayment Date. The Notes are also subject to certain customary events of default,
including events relating to non-payment of required interest, principal or other amounts due on or with respect to the Notes,
failure of the Securitization Entities to maintain the stated debt service coverage ratio, failure to comply with covenants within
certain time frames, certain bankruptcy events, breaches of specified representations and warranties and certain judgments.

The DSCR ratio is Net Cash Flow for the four quarters preceding the calculation date divided by the total debt service
payments of the preceding four quarters. The complete definitions of the DSCR and all calculation elements are contained in
the Base Indenture. Failure to maintain a prescribed DSCR ratio can trigger a Cash Trapping Event, A Rapid Amortization
Event, a Manager Termination Event or a Default Event as described below. In a Cash Trapping Event, the Trustee is required
to retain a certain percentage of cash flow in a restricted account. In a Rapid Amortization Event, all excess Cash Flow is
retained and used to retire principal amounts of debt. Key DSCR ratios are as follows:

+  DSCR less than 1.75x but equal to or greater than 1.50x - Cash Trapping Event, 50% of Net Cash Flow
*  DSCR less than 1.50x - Cash Trapping Event, 100% of Net Cash Flow

*  DSCR less than 1.30x - Rapid Amortization Event

*  DSCR less than 1.20x - Manager Termination Event

*  DSCR less than 1.10x - Default Event
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Our DSCR for the reporting period ended December 31, 2016 was 5.12x (see Exhibit 12.1).

Based on our current level of operations, we believe that our cash flow from operations, available cash and available
borrowings under our Variable Funding Notes will be adequate to meet our liquidity needs during 2017.

Previous Credit Facilities

We had a $75.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Facility”) under our extinguished Credit Facility. We did
not borrow from our Revolving Facility during 2014, and there were no outstanding borrowings under the Revolving Facility
when the Credit Facility was extinguished on September 30, 2014. The Revolving Facility also was used to collateralize letters
of credit that were required for insurance purposes.

F bl F bl
Cash Flows (Unzgggzrlabeie) (Un?;gz:abele)
2016 Variance 2015 Variance 2014
(In millions)
Net cash provided by operating activities.................... $ 118.1 $ (17.4) $ 1355 $ 170 $ 118.5
Net cash provided by investing activities .................... 12.5 (12.7) 25.2 14.6 10.6
Net cash used in financing activities............cccceevvenens (134.9) (15.0) (119.9) 11.2 (131.1)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents.. $ 43) 3 (45.1) $ 40.8 $ 428 $ (2.0)
Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities is primarily driven by revenues earned and collected from our franchisees, and profit
from our rental operations and financing operations. Franchise revenues primarily consist of royalties and franchise fees from
Applebee's and IHOP franchised restaurants, IHOP advertising fees and sales of proprietary products by IHOP, each of which
fluctuates with increases or decreases in franchise retail sales. Franchise retail sales are impacted by the development of IHOP
and Applebee's restaurants by our franchisees and by fluctuations in same-restaurant sales. Rental operations profit is rental
income less rental expenses. Rental income includes revenues from operating leases and interest income from direct financing
leases. Rental income is impacted by fluctuations in same-restaurant sales as some operating leases include a provision for
contingent rent based on retail sales and by a progressive decline in rental income as leases expire. Rental expenses are costs of
prime operating leases and interest expense on prime capital leases on franchisee-operated restaurants. Interest expense on
prime capital leases also declines progressively as lease obligations are repaid. Financing operations revenue consists of interest
income from the financing of franchise fees and equipment leases as well as periodic sales of restaurant equipment. Financing
income is impacted by a progressive decline in interest revenue as the obligations financed are repaid. Financing expenses are
primarily the cost of restaurant equipment.

Cash provided by operating activities decreased $17.4 million in 2016 compared to 2015. Our net income plus the non-
cash reconciling items shown in our statements of cash flows (primarily depreciation, deferred taxes and stock-based
compensation) was essentially unchanged from 2015. However, net changes in working capital used cash of $12.4 million
during 2016 as opposed to providing cash of $4.3 million during 2015. This unfavorable change of $16.8 million primarily
resulted from two items unique to 2015 that did not recur in 2016: an increase in collections of gift card receivables due to the
53rd calendar week in fiscal 2015, partially offset by a $10.4 million reduction of interest payable because of payment of an
additional two months of interest in 2015 due to our 2014 refinancing of debt.

Cash provided by operating activities increased $17.0 million in 2015 compared to 2014. Our net income plus the non-cash
reconciling items shown in our statements of cash flows (primarily loss on extinguishment of debt, depreciation, deferred taxes
and stock-based compensation) increased by $6.9 million compared to 2014. The primary reasons for the increase were lower
interest expense and an increase in gross profit, partially offset by an increase in G&A expenses and a higher effective tax rate.
Net changes in working capital provided cash of $4.3 million during 2015 compared to using cash of $8.2 million during 2014.
This favorable change of $12.5 million primarily resulted from an increase in collections of gift card receivables due to the 53rd
calendar week in fiscal 2015, partially offset by a $10.4 million reduction of interest payable.

Investing Activities
Net cash provided by investing activities in 2016 was primarily attributable to $18.7 million of principal receipts from

notes, equipment contracts and other long-term receivables partially offset by $5.6 million of capital expenditures. We expect
capital expenditures to be approximately $12 million in fiscal 2017.
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Net cash provided by investing activities in 2015 was primarily attributable to $21.3 million of principal receipts from
notes, equipment contracts and other long-term receivables and proceeds from asset sales of $10.8 million, partially offset by
$6.6 million of capital expenditures.

The following table represents the timing of principal receipts on various long-term receivables due from our franchisees as
of December 31, 2016:

Principal Receipts Due By Period

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 Thereafter Total
(In millions)
Equipment leases" ... $ 79 $ 82 $ 85 $ 141 $ 89 § 396 $ 87.2
Direct financing leases”............... 9.9 10.8 11.2 11.2 9.6 12.9 65.6
Franchise notes® ..........cocovvevevenane. 0.1 0.1 0.1 — — 0.1 0.4
TOtAl oo $ 179 $ 191 $ 198 § 253 $ 185 § 526 $ 153.2

() Equipment lease receivables extend through the year 2029.
@ Direct financing lease receivables extend through the year 2036.
©) Franchise note receivables extend through the year 2024.

Financing Activities

Financing activities used net cash of $134.9 million during 2016. The primary uses of cash in financing activities consisted
of repurchases of our common stock totaling $55.3 million, cash dividends paid to stockholders totaling $67.4 million,
repayments of capital lease and financing obligations of $14.0 million and a net cash outflow of $0.4 million related to equity
awards. Cash provided by financing activities comprised a change in restricted cash of $2.3 million.

Financing activities used net cash of $119.9 million during 2015. The primary uses of cash in financing activities consisted
of repurchases of our common stock totaling $70.0 million, cash dividends paid to stockholders totaling $66.2 million and
repayments of capital lease and financing obligations of $14.2 million. Cash provided by financing activities primarily
consisted of a net cash inflow of $10.8 million related to equity awards.

Adjusted Free Cash Flow

We define “adjusted free cash flow” for a given period as cash provided by operating activities, plus receipts from notes
and equipment contract receivables, less additions to property and equipment. Management uses this liquidity measure in its
periodic assessments of, among other things, the amount of cash dividends per share of common stock and repurchases of
common stock and we believe it is important for investors to have the same measure used by management for that purpose.
Adjusted free cash flow does not represent residual cash flow available for discretionary purposes.

Adjusted free cash flow is considered to be a non-U.S. GAAP measure. Reconciliation of the cash provided by operating
activities to adjusted free cash flow is as follows:

Favorable Favorable
2016 YRR ams (IR 2014
(In millions)
Cash flows provided by operating activities................. $ 1181 $ (17.4) $ 1355 § 17.0 $ 118.5
Net receipts from notes and equipment receivables...... 10.0 (3.4 13.4 5.1 8.3
Additions to property and equipment...............ccccueeeee. (5.6) 1.0 (6.6) 0.7) 5.9
Adjusted free cash flow.................cccoooveiniinieiinnnnn. $ 1225 % (19.8) $ 1423 $ 214 $ 120.9

This non-U.S. GAAP measure is not defined in the same manner by all companies and may not be comparable to other
similarly titled measures of other companies. Non-U.S. GAAP measures should be considered in addition to, and not as a
substitute for, the U.S. GAAP information contained within our financial statements.

The decrease in adjusted free cash flow in 2016 compared to 2015 was primarily due to the decrease in cash provided by
operating activities discussed above as well as a decrease in net receipts from notes and equipment receivables as the early
payoff of several equipment notes in 2015 did not recur in 2016. The increase in adjusted free cash flow in 2015 compared to
2014 was primarily due to the decrease in cash provided by operating activities discussed above.
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At December 31, 2016, our cash and cash equivalents totaled $140.5 million, including $63.3 million of cash held for gift
card programs and IHOP advertising funds.

Dividends

During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, we declared and paid dividends on common stock as
shown Note 11 - Stockholders' Equity, of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report.

On February 22 2017, our Board of Directors approved payment of a cash dividend of $0.97 per share of common stock,
payable at the close of business on April 7, 2017 to the stockholders of record as of the close of business on March 20, 2017.

Share Repurchases

On October 1, 2015, The Company's Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing the Company to
repurchase up to $150 million of DineEquity common stock (the “2015 Repurchase Program”). In October 2014, the
Company's Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing us to repurchase up to $100 million of
DineEquity common stock (the “2014 Repurchase Program”). The 2014 Repurchase Program was terminated upon approval of
the 2015 Repurchase Program. On February 26, 2013, our Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing
us to repurchase up to $100 million of our common stock (the “2013 Repurchase Program”). The 2013 Repurchase Program
was terminated upon approval of the 2014 Repurchase Program. The following table summarizes the cumulative purchases
under each of these programs:

Remaining Dollar

Value of Shares that
may be
Shares Cost of shares Repurchased
(In millions)
2015 Repurchase Program...........coccevveenieiienennnnenns 854,871 $ 729 $ 77.1
2014 Repurchase Program.............ccccoeeveveveeeeveverennnnne. 537,311 $ 545 $ —
2013 Repurchase Program.............cccooveveviievenieenennnnns 779,278 $ 597 $

Please refer to Note 11 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a summary of shares repurchased during
the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

We do, from time to time, repurchase shares owned and tendered by employees to satisfy tax withholding obligations on
the vesting of restricted stock awards. Such shares are purchased at the closing price of our common stock on the vesting date.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have obligations for guarantees on certain franchisee lease agreements, as disclosed below in “Contractual Obligations
and Commitments” and Note 10 - Commitments and Contingencies, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Other
than such guarantees, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4) of SEC Regulation S-K
as of December 31, 2016.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following are our significant contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2016:

Payments Due By Period
Contractual Obligations 1 Year 2 -3 Years 4-5Years M;{;;‘;: " Total
(In millions)

Dbt e $ 556 $ 1112 $ 13973 $ — $ 15641
Operating [eases ........ceevveeeereerierieieeeee e 70.5 146.6 121.9 208.8 547.8
Capital leases'...........ccoooorooeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee s 21.4 38.2 27.9 35.9 123.4
Financing obligations'” 43 10.1 10.7 60.5 85.6
Purchase commitments 84.9 8.0 1.1 — 94.0
Unrecognized income tax benefits®............cccoo........ 1.7 — — 2.2 3.9
Total minimum payments............cceceveerereeneeneennennens 238.4 314.1 1,558.9 307.4 2,418.8
LSS INLETESE....vieveeeeieiieieieeeee et (68.1) (132.6) (128.0) (128.2) (457.0)
TOtAL .ottt $ 170.3 $ 181.5 $§ 1,4309 $ 1792 $ 19618

M Includes interest calculated on balances as of December 31, 2016 using interest rates in effect as of December 31, 2015.

@ While up to $1.7 million is expected to be paid within one year, there is no contractual obligation to do so. For the remaining liability, due to the uncertainties
related to these tax matters, we are unable to make a reasonably reliable estimate when a cash settlement with a taxing authority will occur.

Expiration By Period

. More than
Commitments 1 Year 2 -3 Years 4 -5 Years 5 Years Total

(In millions)

Lease guarantees" $ 175§ 353 $ 322 8 2819 $ 3668
Letters of credit® ........... 5.5 — — — 55
Food purchases®.............ccooovvevervreeeeeeeeeeeeeeenan. 19.1 — — — 19.1
TOtaL o $ 421 % 353 8§ 322§ 2819 $ 391.4

) This amount represents the maximum potential liability for future payment guarantees under leases that have been assigned to third-party buyers of Applebee's
company-operated restaurants and expire at the end of the respective lease terms, which range from 2017 through 2048. See Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

@ Primarily used to satisfy insurance-related collateral requirements. These letters of credit expire annually, but are typically renewed in the same amount each
year unless collateral requirements change.

© In some instances, THOP and Applebee's may be required to guarantee their purchase of any remaining inventory of certain food and other items purchased by
CSCS.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are comprehensively described in Note 2 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We believe the accounting policies discussed below are particularly important to the understanding of our
consolidated financial statements and require us to make significant judgments in the preparation of those consolidated
financial statements. In exercising those judgments, we make estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying values of assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of net revenues and expenses in the reporting
periods covered by the financial statements. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates based on historical experience,
current conditions and various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. We adjust such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. Accounting assumptions and estimates are inherently
uncertain and actual results may differ materially from our estimates. Changes in estimates and judgments could significantly
affect our results of operations, financial condition and cash flow in the future.

Revenue Recognition

We record revenue in four categories: franchise operations, company restaurant operations, rental operations and financing
operations.

The franchise operations revenue consists primarily of royalty revenues, sales of proprietary IHOP products, [HOP
advertising fees and the portion of the franchise fees allocated to our intellectual property. Company restaurant sales are retail
sales at company-operated restaurants. Rental operations revenue includes revenue from operating leases and interest income
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from direct financing leases. Financing operations revenue consists of interest income from the financing of franchise fees and
equipment leases, as well as sales of equipment associated with refranchised IHOP restaurants and a portion of franchise fees
for restaurants taken back from franchisees not allocated to IHOP intellectual property.

Revenues from franchised and area licensed restaurants include royalties, continuing rent and service fees and initial
franchise fees. Royalties are recognized in the period in which the sales are reported to have occurred. Continuing rent and fees
are recognized in the period earned. Initial franchise fees are recognized upon the opening of a restaurant, which is when we
have performed substantially all initial services required by the franchise agreement. Fees from development agreements are
deferred and recorded into income as restaurants under the development agreement are opened.

Sales by company-operated restaurants are recognized when food and beverage items are sold. Company restaurant sales
are reported net of sales taxes collected from guests that are remitted to the appropriate taxing authorities.

We record a liability in the period in which a gift card is sold. We recognize costs associated with our administration of the
gift card programs as prepaid assets when the costs are incurred. As gift cards are redeemed, the liability and prepaid asset are
reduced. We recognize revenue and related administrative costs when gift cards are redeemed at company-operated restaurants.
When gift cards are redeemed at a franchisee-operated restaurant, the revenue and related administrative costs are recognized
by the franchisee. We recognize gift card breakage income on gift cards when the assessment of the likelihood of redemption of
the gift card becomes remote. This assessment is based upon Applebee's and IHOP's individual historical experience with gift
card redemptions in their own program.

Goodwill and Intangibles

Goodwill is recorded when the aggregate purchase price of an acquisition exceeds the estimated fair value of the net
identified tangible and intangible assets acquired. Intangible assets resulting from the acquisition are accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting and are estimated by management based on the fair value of the assets received. Identifiable
intangible assets are comprised primarily of trademarks, tradenames and franchise agreements. Identifiable intangible assets
with finite lives (franchise agreements, recipes, menus and favorable leaseholds) are amortized over the period of estimated
benefit using the straight-line method and estimated useful lives. Goodwill and intangible assets considered to have an
indefinite life (primarily the Applebee's tradename) are not subject to amortization. The determination of indefinite life is
subject to reassessment if changes in facts and circumstances indicate the period of benefit has become finite.

Goodwill has been allocated to three reporting units, the Applebee's company-operated restaurants unit (“Applebee's
company unit”), the Applebee's franchised restaurants unit (“Applebee's franchise unit”) and the IHOP franchised restaurants
unit (“IHOP franchise unit”), in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The significant majority of our goodwill resulted from the
November 29, 2007 acquisition of Applebee's and was allocated between the two Applebee's units. The goodwill allocated to
the Applebee's company unit was fully impaired in 2008.

We first perform a qualitative assessment of the goodwill of the Applebee's franchise unit and the tradename of the
Applebee's company and franchise units as of October 31 of each year. The goodwill of the IHOP franchise unit is assessed
qualitatively as of December 31 of each year. Qualitative factors considered include, but are not limited to, macro-economic
conditions, market and industry conditions, cost considerations, the competitive environment, share price fluctuations, overall
financial performance and results of past impairment tests. If necessary following the qualitative assessment, we perform a
quantitative impairment test. In addition to the annual test of impairment, goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are
evaluated more frequently if we believe indicators of impairment exist. Such indicators include, but are not limited to, events or
circumstances such as a significant adverse change in the business climate, unanticipated competition, a loss of key personnel,
adverse legal or regulatory developments or a significant decline in the market price of our common stock.

In the process of a quantitative test of goodwill, we primarily use the income approach method of valuation that includes
the discounted cash flow method as well as other generally accepted valuation methodologies to determine the fair value of
goodwill and intangible assets. Significant assumptions made by management in estimating fair value under the discounted
cash flows model include future trends in sales, operating expenses, overhead expenses, depreciation, capital expenditures and
changes in working capital, along with an appropriate discount rate based on our estimated cost of equity capital and after-tax
cost of debt. The first step of the quantitative impairment test compares the fair value of each of our reporting units to their
carrying value. If the fair value is in excess of the carrying value, no impairment exists. The fair value of all reporting units is
then compared to the current market value of our common stock to determine if the fair values estimated in the impairment
testing process are reasonable in light of the current market value.

If the first step does indicate an impairment, a second step must take place. Under the second step, the fair value of the
assets and liabilities of the reporting unit are estimated as if the reporting unit were acquired in a business combination. The
excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of the
goodwill, to which the carrying value of the goodwill must be adjusted.
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In the process of a quantitative test, if necessary, of the Applebee's tradename, we primarily use the relief of royalty
method under the income approach method of valuation. Significant assumptions used to determine fair value under the relief
of royalty method include future trends in sales, a royalty rate and a discount rate to be applied to the forecast revenue stream.

Long-Lived Assets

We assess long-lived and intangible assets with finite lives for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. We test impairment using historical cash flows and other
relevant facts and circumstances as the primary basis for our estimates of future cash flows. We consider factors such as the
number of years the restaurant has been operated by us, sales trends, cash flow trends, remaining lease life, and other factors
which apply on a case-by-case basis. The analysis is performed at the individual restaurant level for indicators of permanent
impairment. Recoverability of the restaurant's assets is measured by comparing the assets' carrying value to the undiscounted
cash flows expected to be generated over the assets' remaining useful life or remaining lease term, whichever is less. If the total
expected undiscounted future cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the assets, the carrying amount is written down to
the estimated fair value, and a loss resulting from impairment is recognized by a charge to earnings. This process requires the
use of estimates and assumptions, which are subject to a high degree of judgment. If these assumptions change in the future, we
may be required to record impairment charges for these assets.

On a regular basis, we assess whether events or changes in circumstances have occurred that potentially indicate the
carrying value of tangible long-lived assets, primarily assets related to company-operated restaurants, may not be recoverable.
Recoverability of a restaurant's assets is measured by comparing the assets' carrying value to the undiscounted future cash
flows expected to be generated over the assets' remaining useful lives or remaining lease terms, whichever is less. If the total
expected undiscounted future cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the assets, this may be an indicator of
impairment. If it is decided that there has been an impairment, the carrying amount of the asset is written down to the estimated
fair value. The fair value is primarily determined based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for doubtful accounts is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing
receivables; however, changes in circumstances relating to receivables may result in additional allowances in the future. We
determine the allowance based on historical experience, current payment patterns, future obligations and our assessment of the
ability to pay outstanding balances. The primary indicator of credit quality is delinquency, which is considered to be a
receivable balance greater than 90 days past due. We continually review our allowance for doubtful accounts. Past due balances
and future obligations are reviewed individually for collectability. Account balances are charged against the allowance after all
collection efforts have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote.

Leases

Our restaurants are located on (i) sites owned by us, (ii) sites leased by us from third parties and (iii) sites owned or leased
by franchisees. For sites owned by or leased by us from third parties, we, in turn, sublease to our franchisees. At the inception
of the lease, each property is evaluated to determine whether the lease will be accounted for as an operating or capital lease in
accordance with the provisions of U.S. GAAP governing the accounting for leases.

The lease term used for straight-line rent expense is calculated from the date we obtain possession of the leased premises
through the lease termination date. We record rent from the possession date through restaurant open date as expense. Once a
restaurant opens for business, we record straight-line rent over the lease term plus contingent rent to the extent it exceeded the
minimum rent obligation per the lease agreement. We use a consistent lease term when calculating depreciation of leasehold
improvements, when determining straight-line rent expense and when determining classification of its leases as either operating
or capital. For leases that contain rent escalations, we record the total rent payable during the lease term, as determined above,
on the straight-line basis over the term of the lease (including the rent holiday period beginning upon our possession of the
premises), and record the difference between the minimum rents paid and the straight-line rent as a lease obligation. Certain
leases contain provisions that require additional rental payments based upon restaurant sales volume (“contingent rent”) that are
accrued each period as the liabilities are incurred, in addition to the straight-line rent expense noted above.

There is potential for variability in the rent holiday period, which begins on the possession date and ends on the restaurant
open date, during which no cash rent payments are typically due under the terms of the lease. Factors that may affect the length
of the rent holiday period generally relate to construction related delays. Extension of the rent holiday period due to delays in
restaurant openings will result in greater preopening rent expense recognized during the rent holiday period and lesser
occupancy expense during the rest of the lease term (post-opening).

For leases that contain rent escalations, we record the total rent payable or receivable during the lease term, as determined
above, on the straight-line basis over the term of the lease (including the rent holiday period beginning upon our possession of
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the premises, if applicable), and record the difference between the minimum rent paid or received and the straight-line rent as a

lease obligation or receivable, respectively. Certain leases contain provisions that require additional rental payments or receipts

based upon restaurant sales volume (“contingent rent”). Contingent rentals are accrued each period as the liabilities are incurred
or receivables are earned, in addition to the straight-line rent expense or revenue, respectively, noted above.

Certain of our lease agreements contain tenant improvement allowances. For purposes of recognizing incentives, we
amortize the incentives over the shorter of the estimated useful life or lease term. For tenant improvement allowances, we also
record a deferred rent liability or an obligation in our non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.

Management makes judgments regarding the probable term for each restaurant property lease, which can impact the
classification and accounting for a lease as capital or operating, the rent holiday and/or escalations in payment that are taken
into consideration when calculating straight-line rent and the term over which leasehold improvements for each restaurant are
amortized. These judgments may produce materially different amounts of depreciation, amortization and rent expense than
would be reported if different assumed lease terms were used.

Stock-Based Compensation

We account for stock-based compensation in accordance with U.S. GAAP governing share-based payments. Accordingly,
we measure stock-based compensation expense at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and recognize the
expense over the employee's requisite service period using the straight-line method. The fair value of each employee stock
option and restricted stock award is estimated on the date of grant using an option pricing model that meets certain
requirements. We currently use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of our stock-based
compensation. The Black-Scholes model meets the requirements of U.S. GAAP. The measurement of stock-based
compensation expense is based on several criteria including, but not limited to, the valuation model used and associated input
factors, such as expected term of the award, stock price volatility, risk free interest rate and forfeiture rate. These inputs are
subjective and are determined using management's judgment. If differences arise between the assumptions used in determining
stock-based compensation expense and the actual factors which become known over time, we may change the input factors
used in determining future stock-based compensation expense. Any such changes could materially impact our operations in the
period in which the changes are made and in subsequent periods.

Income Taxes

We provide for income taxes based on our estimate of federal and state income tax liabilities. We make certain estimates
and judgments in the calculation of tax expense and the resulting tax liabilities and in the recoverability of deferred tax assets
that arise from temporary differences between the tax and financial statement recognition of revenue and expense. Tax laws are
complex and subject to different interpretations by the taxpayers and respective governmental authorities. We review our tax
positions quarterly and adjust the balances as new information becomes available.

We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities using the enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary differences between
the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of recorded assets and liabilities. Deferred tax accounting requires that deferred
tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portions or all of the net deferred tax assets
will not be realized. This test requires projection of our taxable income into future years to determine if there will be taxable
income sufficient to realize the tax assets. The preparation of the projections requires considerable judgment and is subject to
change to reflect future events and changes in the tax laws. When we establish or reduce the valuation allowance against our
deferred tax assets, our income tax expense will increase or decrease, respectively, in the period such determination is made.

FASB ASC Topic 740-10, requires that a position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return be recognized in the
financial statement when it is more likely than not (i.e. a likelihood of more than 50 percent) that the position would be
sustained upon examination by taxing authorities including all appeals or litigation processes, based on its technical merits. A
recognized tax position is then measured on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized
upon ultimate resolution. For each reporting period, management applies a consistent methodology to measure and adjust all
uncertain tax positions based on the available information.

Accounting Standards Adopted in the Current Fiscal Year

See Note 2, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this report for a description of accounting standards we adopted in fiscal 2016.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2, Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included in this report, for a description of newly issued accounting standards that may impact us in the
future.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

We are exposed to financial market risk, including interest rates and commodity prices. We address these risks through
controlled risk management that may include the use of derivative financial instruments to economically hedge or reduce these
exposures. We do not enter into financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

All of our long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2016 was issued at a fixed interest rate (see Note 7 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements). We are only exposed to interest rate risk on borrowings under our Class A-1 Variable
Funding Notes (the “Class A-1 Notes”). We did not borrow under the Class A-1 Notes during fiscal 2016, and as of December
31, 2016, we had no outstanding borrowings under the Class A-1 Notes. We do not engage in speculative transactions nor do
we hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes. We had no material derivative instruments as of December 31, 2016
and did not hold any material derivative instruments during the year ended December 31, 2016.

Investments in instruments earning a fixed rate of interest carry a degree of interest rate risk. Fixed rate securities may have
their fair market value adversely impacted due to a rise in interest rates. We currently do not hold any fixed rate investments.

Based on our cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, as of 2016, a 1% increase in interest rates would increase our
annual interest income by approximately $0.6 million. A 1% decline in interest rates would decrease our annual interest income
by less than $0.6 million as the majority of our cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are currently yielding less than
1%.

Commodity Prices

Many of the food products purchased by us and our franchisees and area licensees are affected by commodity pricing and
are, therefore, subject to unpredictable price volatility. Extreme increases in commodity prices and/or long-term changes could
affect our franchisees, area licensees and company-operated restaurants adversely. We expect that, in most cases, the [HOP and
Applebee's systems would be able to pass increased commodity prices through to our consumers via increases in menu prices.
From time to time, competitive circumstances could limit short-term menu price flexibility, and in those cases, margins would
be negatively impacted by increased commodity prices. Since only 10 of our 3,749 restaurants as of December 31, 2016 are
company-operated, we believe that any changes in commodity pricing that cannot be adjusted for by changes in menu pricing
or other strategies would not be material to our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

The Company and owners of Applebee's and IHOP franchise restaurants are members of CSCS, a Co-op that manages
procurement activities for the Applebee's and IHOP restaurants that belong to the Co-op. We believe the larger scale created by
combining the supply chain requirements of both brands under one organization can provide cost savings and efficiency in the
purchasing function. As of December 31, 2016, 100% of Applebee's domestic franchise restaurants and 99% of IHOP domestic
franchise restaurants are members of CSCS. In some instances, IHOP and Applebee's may be required to guarantee their
purchase of any remaining inventory of certain food and other items purchased by CSCS for the purpose of supplying limited
time promotions on behalf of the Applebee's and IHOP systems as a whole. None of these food product guarantees is a
derivative instrument. At December 31, 2016, our outstanding guarantees for food product purchases were $19.1 million.

International Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We have minimal exposure to international currency exchange rate fluctuations. Revenue derived from all international
country operations comprised less than 3% of total consolidated revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016, such that a
hypothetical 10% adverse change in the currency of every international country in which our franchisees operate restaurants
would have a negative impact of less than 0.3% of our consolidated revenue.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of January 1, 2017 and
January 3, 2016, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended January 1, 2017. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries at January 1, 2017 and January 3, 2016, and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 1, 2017, in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2017, based on criteria established
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(2013 framework) and our report dated March 1, 2017 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 1, 2017

55



DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share amounts)

December 31,

2016 2015
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqQUIVAIENLS ...........coocieriiiiiriiiieeeee ettt e b sreebe e ebeeenens $ 140,535 $ 144,785
RECEIVADIES, TIET ...ttt e e et e et e e eaaeessntaeeennaeeesnneeeenneeean 141,389 139,206
RESIIICTEA CASI ...ttt e et e et e s e e s entaeeeenaeeesaaeeeenneeean 30,256 32,528
Prepaid @ift CArd COSES.....viiiiiiiiiiiiiiciieeete ettt ettt sb e eteesbesaeesbeereesaeennas 47,115 46,792
Prepaid INCOME tAXES ...veevveiviereetieiieiieteeteeteereesteetesteesaesteessesteessesseessesseessesseessesssessesseesseenees 2,483 5,186
Other CUITENT @SSEES.....eiiuiiiiiiie it e eette ettt e et e et eeete e e ettt e e eteeeeeaseeeeaeeeeteeeesaeeeeaseaeaareeeanes 4,370 4212
TOtAl CUITENE ASSELS.....eiiviieeeieie et eeeee e et et eete et e e et e e et e e et e e eete e e eaeeeeeaseeeenreeeenneas 366,148 372,709
Long-term receivables, Nt ........cc.iiiiiiiiiieiee ettt ettt 141,152 160,695
Property and eqUIPIMENt, NMET.......c.eeieiiirieiieiee ettt ettt ettt e 205,055 219,580
GOOAWILL ...ttt ettt e e et e et e e eaeeeteeeeteeeaeeeteeeaseeseeeseeesseeseeans 697,470 697,470
Other Intangible aSSELS, MET.......ccueiuieriiiieii ettt ettt et seeetesbe e e saeesaesaeeseennans 763,431 772,949
Deferred rent TECEIVADIE .........ooiiiiiiiiiiieieeee ettt e e et e e e e eaae e e e e s ennaaeeas 86,981 90,030
Other NON-CUITENT ASSELS, TIET ....uvvveviiiiieiieieeeeeiieieeeeeeteeeeeeeeaaeeeeeseaaereeeesesaaeeeessessreeeeeesnrreeeesans 18,346 18,417
TOLAL ASSELS ....uveieeeieerieeeee ettt ettt e et e e et e et e eteeeteeeaeeeteeenteeeteeenteeeaeeenteeereeenreennes $ 2278583 $ 27331,850
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ......eveieiieieieii ettt ettt ettt s bt se e s senene s $ 50,503 $ 55,019
Gift CArd HADIIILY ....ovveeieiieiieiceeeeeee ettt ettt et e sbeseeseeseesens 170,812 167,657
Dividends Payable........cccoiiiriririniiieieecete ettt 17,465 17,082
Accrued employee compensation and benefits.........c.coceveveririnineniinienieneeieeceeeesean 14,609 25,085
Current maturities of capital lease and financing obligations............cccceeeveeveneeeeervenenennenn 13,144 14,320
ACCTUCA AAVETLISING ...evvevveiieiieetieieet ettt ettt ettt este et e st e e st e e ae et eensesseenseeseensesneesesneesseennes 6,369 8,758
Accrued INtErest PAYADIE. .......c.coiriiririerieiiieieeeceeee ettt 4,308 4,257
Other aCCIUCA EXPEINSES. ...cuvirueeereiertieierteeiesteetesteeteeseeteeseeteeseesseeneesseensesseensessesnsesseensessenns 9,102 6,251
Total CUITENt HHADIIITIES .....eeeevviieeiiee ettt e e e e e enaeeeennees 286,312 298,429
Long-term debt, Nt ......c.ocieieiieiecieeeee ettt ae e neenees 1,282,691 1,279,473
Capital lease obligations, [eSS CUITENt MALUITICS. ........eeveeverrieieniieiesieieseeieseeeaeseesaesnesesenens 74,665 84,781
Financing obligations, less current Maturities ............cceeeeruererruereesiesiesieereeeeeenseeneseeenesseennes 39,499 42,395
Deferred INCOME tAXES, TEL ......c.viiieeeieeeiieeeeieee ettt ete e e ee e et e e eaeeeeaeeeeeteeeeenaeeesseeeeaeeeenees 253,898 269,469
Deferred rent PAYADLE ........cccveviieiieieiieieie ettt r et e nnenreeneas 69,572 69,397
Other NON-CUITENt HADIIITIES ... ....cooviiiiieie ettt e e e e e e e e ennees 19,174 20,683
TOtAl HADIIILIES. ... ettt e et e e et e e enaaeesenreeeenaeeesnnees 2,025,811 2,064,627
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value; shares: 40,000,000 authorized; 2016 - 25,134,223 issued,
17,969,636 outstanding; 2015 - 25,186,048 issued, 18,535,027 outstanding......................... 251 252
Additional paid-IN-Capital ...........ccecieviiriiiiiiiiieieceee ettt 292,809 286,952
REtaINEd CaIMINES .. .veevieeiiieiieeieeiie ettt et e e et eeae et e sbeeaeessseeseessbeessaesnseenseesnseeseenssenn 382,082 351,923
Accumulated other COMPIehenSive 10SS.........ocvvivieriiiieieieeieeeeeee et (107) (107)
Treasury stock, at cost; shares: 2016 - 7,164,587; 2015 - 6,651,021 .....ccoeverievenriereeriennnne. (422,263) (371,797)
Total stockholders' @QUILY.......couieiirieieii et 252,772 267,223
Total liabilities and stockholders' €qUItY .........cecveeieieirieieire e $ 2,278,583 $ 2,331,850

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
Revenues:
Franchise and restaurant FEVEINUES............cocuveeeeveieeveeeeieeeeeeeee e e e e e $ 501,745  $ 542,606 $ 518,579
RENTAL TEVENUES ...ttt ettt et e e 123,037 127,650 122,932
FiNancing r@VENUES.........cceevvirieiierieiieeeeteetesteeeesaeeaesteessesteessesssesseeseensenns 9,191 10,844 13,477
TOLAL TEVEIUES ...ttt ettt eeeeee e e e e e eaeeesenaeesenns 633,973 681,100 654,988
Cost of revenues:
Franchise and restaurant €XPEenSes ...........c.cvveereeeeereerieireenresreeereereenreeeeenens 162,860 186,986 184,411
RENtal XPENSES ...ovviiieiieiieiiiciieieeieeie ettt et ste e st s e s re b e ste s e raese e 91,540 94,588 94,637
FINANCING EXPEINSES .....cveivieriirieiiereeteeteeeteeeeeteeeeereeaesteeesesreesessseseeseeeseens 155 520 825
Total COSt Of TEVEIUES. ......ccuvviiieiieeciiie ettt e 254,555 282,094 279,873
Gross Profit.........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieece et eree e 379,418 399,006 375,115
General and administrative EXPENSES ........c.evververierierieeieenreeresreeeeereesseeseessenns 148,935 155,428 145910
INEETEST EXPEISE ...ecuviiieiieiieeiieciee et ertteeie et e et e et e e be e s beebeesebeebeessseereessseenseens 61,479 63,254 96,637
Amortization of intangible asSetS...........cceevverievieriierieiieie e 9,981 10,000 12,063
Closure and impairment Charges...........cccoeeevveeieiieieiieieereeeereeee e 5,092 2,576 3,721
Loss on extinguishment of debt ..........cccceevieviiciiniiciiiicc e — — 64,859
Loss (gain) on diSposition 0f @SSELS .........ccevieiiiuieieirieieereeieere e 809 (901) 329
Income before inCOMe taX ProVISION.........cceevvieierreeierieeieieereseereeeesseeeesens 153,122 168,649 51,596
INCOME tAX PIOVISION.....uicuiietieiiereeieeteeteeteeete et eeteetaeeteeaeeereeereereeeseereereereeseenas (55,130) (63,726) (15,143)
NEEINCOME ..ottt ettt ste e ste b e s teesbesteebeeseenseees 97,992 104,923 36,453
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Adjustment to unrealized loss on available-for-sale investments................. — — 107
Foreign currency translation adjustment .............cccoecveverieniereenenieneeeene — 34) (16)
Total comprehensive iNCOME...................ccooooivviiiieieeieeece e $ 97,992 § 104,889 §$ 36,544
Net income available to common stockholders:
INEEINCOMIC ...ttt ettt ettt tb e be e s e ete e b e eseessesreeseessesseessaseas $ 97,992 $ 104,923 $ 36,453
Less: Net income allocated to unvested participating restricted stock ............. (1,387) (1,400) (521)
Net income available to common Stockholders ...........ocveevvveeiieeeeeeeeeeeene. $ 96,605 $ 103,523  $ 35,932
Net income available to common stockholders per share:
BaSIC ..ttt ettt b et b e ta b e e ebe e $ 536 § 555§ 1.92
DIIILEA ... e ens $ 533 % 552 $ 1.90
Weighted average shares outstanding:
BaASIC 1.ttt ettt et nnene e 18,030 18,637 18,753
DIIILEA ...ttt sttt re e e 18,125 18,768 18,956
Dividends declared per common share...................c..cocoooeeveieieieeieceene, $ 373§ 3545 $ 3.13
Dividends paid per common share ...................ccccocooeiiviiiiniiiiiieeeeeeeene $ 3.68 $ 350 $ 2.25

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31,2013.................
NEt INCOME ..ot
Other comprehensive 10Ss .........cccceeveeeeene
Purchase of DineEquity common stock .....
Reissuance of treasury stock .....................
Net issuance of shares for stock plans........
Repurchase of restricted shares for taxes ...
Stock-based compensation ...........c.cceevnen.
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation..
Dividends on common stock......................
Balance at December 31,2014.................
NEt INCOME ....venveiviieiiricirrenieceeeee e
Other comprehensive gain.............ceceeeeee..
Purchase of DineEquity common stock .....
Reissuance of treasury stock

Net issuance of shares for stock plans........
Repurchase of restricted shares for taxes ...
Stock-based compensation .............ccceeneee
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation..
Dividends on common stock ......................
Balance at December 31, 2015.................
NEt INCOME ..ot
Purchase of DineEquity common stock .....
Reissuance of treasury stock ......................
Net issuance of shares for stock plans........
Repurchase of restricted shares for taxes ...
Stock-based compensation .............c.c........
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation..
Dividends on common stock......................
Balance at December 31, 2016

DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
(In thousands)

Common Stock

Treasury Stock

Accumulated
Additional Other
Shares Paid-in Retained Comprehensive
Outstanding  Amount Capital Earnings Loss Shares Cost Total
19,041 $§ 253 § 274,202 $336,578 $ (164) 6,258  $(295,690) § 315,179
— — — 36,453 — — — 36,453
— — — — 91 — — 91
(388) — — — — 388 (32,006) (32,006)
360 — (4,793) — — (360) 13,000 8,207
@1 1) 1 — — — — —
(38) (3,194) — — — — (3,194)
— — 9,319 — — — — 9,319
— — 4,316 — — — — 4,316
— — 95 (59,387) — — — (59,292)
18,954 252 279,946 313,644 (73) 6,286 (314,696) 279,073
— — — 104,923 — — — 104,923
— — — — (34 — — (34
(722) — — — — 722 (70,014) (70,014)
357 — (3,377) — — (357) 12,913 9,536
@n — — — — — — —
(33) — (3,499) — — — — (3,499)
— — 8,892 — — — — 8,892
— — 4,862 — — — — 4,862
— — 128 (66,644) — — — (66,516)
18,535 252 286,952 351,923 (107) 6,651 (371,797) 267,223
— — — 97,992 — — — 97,992
(650) — — — — 650 (55,343) (55,343)
137 — (3,468) — — (137) 4,877 1,409
(19) (1) 1 — — — — —
(33) — (2,859) — — — — (2,859)
— — 10,926 — — — — 10,926
— — 1,132 — — — — 1,132
— — 125 (67,833) — — — (67,708)
17,970 $ 251 $ 292,809 $ 382,082 (107) 7,165 $(422,263) $ 252,772

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
INEETTICOMIE <.ttt e e e e e e eeeeteeeeeereeeeeeaeenns $ 97,992 $ 104,923  § 36,453
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash flows provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortiZation ..............ceeveevveeeerieieenieeeesreeresreeneeeeenns 30,606 32,840 34,745
Non-cash INtErest EXPENSEC......cvvieeeruieierrieierieeeerie et ere e eresreesseeeeens 3,218 3,074 5,770
Loss on extinguishment of debt ...........cccooveeviiiiiniiiiniceeeieee — — 64,859
Closure and impairment Charges..........cccocveverieecieeieciieieeeeee e 2,621 2,576 3,687
Deferred iNCOME tAXES......vieveriieieiiieieeieeteeie ettt sre e sre e e (14,434) (13,987) (24,387)
Non-cash stock-based compensation eXpense.........c..cveeveeveererreevennenn. 10,926 8,892 9,319
Tax benefit from stock-based compensation.............ccceceevveeeerreeeennnnen. 1,132 4,862 4,316
Excess tax benefit from stock options exercised..........ccoevvevrreeerreennnne. (1,019) (4,794) (5,028)
Loss (gain) on disposition 0f @SSets..........ccevvereerieieeriieeenreeiesreereeeeenns 809 (901) 329
ONET ..ttt b e (1,302) (6,323) (3,344)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts 1eceivable, NEt........c.ocieviiieiieieiecieieeeere e 3,178 (5,239) (7,326)
Current income tax receivables and payables ...........cocceeveeeerieenennene (909) 2,073 (11,717)
Gift card receivables and payables.........ccccceeeveeieiieieniieieieceeenen, (4,288) 21,735 3,555
Prepaid expenses and other current assets............ocevveeveerreeeerueennenne. (156) (1,995) 273
ACCOUNLS PAYADIC.......ccviiiiiiiiiieie et 89 4,546 2,778
Accrued employee compensation and benefits ............ccoeeeeerieenennne. (10,476) (594) 767
Accrued interest payable .........ccviveeiiiieiiieieeeeee e 51 (9,869) 551
Other current Habilities.........cooverviiierieieiieeteeeereee e 72 (6,310) 2,924
Cash flows provided by operating activities...........c.ccevveervernennen. 118,110 135,509 118,524
Cash flows from investing activities
P s fom s sent e nd bl g s s
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment............ccccceeeveerenencnnens — 10,782 681
Additions to property and eqUIPMENt.........cocceeruerinereneneneneeneeeeneennes (5,637) (6,642) (5,937)
ONET ..ttt ettt ettt bbb sbesaeseeseese s e (503) (267) 540
Cash flows provided by investing activities ...........ccceceevvrreerurnnee. 12,549 25,201 10,568
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid on common StOCK ..........cccceveeiirierieieneeerc e (67,429) (66,164) (42,733)
Repurchase of DineEquity common Stock ..........cceccveeiiniiniiiencene. (55,343) (70,014) (32,006)
Principal payments on capital lease and financing obligations.............. (13,978) (14,226) (11,825)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt..........ccooceeviriiiiiiiinienee, — — 1,300,000
Repayment of long-term debt (including premiums)...........ccceevveuennenne. — — (1,264,086)
Change in restricted cash.........occeeieririenineceeeee e 2,272 19,733 (66,298)
Payment of debt issuance and debt modification costs............coccueueene. — (89) (24,192)
Proceeds from stock options exercised ............ccevvreererieninieneeeeeene 1,409 9,536 8,207
Tax payments for restricted stock upon vesting...........cccoeeeevereeneeeenne. (2,859) (3,499) (3,194)
Excess tax benefit from stock options exercised...........ccereeeerireeennene 1,019 4,794 5,028
Cash flows used in financing activities .........c.ccceeeereerereeneeneenne. (134,909) (119,929) (131,099)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents ...........ccccoccevoieiieieniniiniee (4,250) 40,781 (2,007)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year..........ccccocceeeeevverenennen. 144,785 104,004 106,011
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year..........ccccooeeeviereiieinieieee, $ 140,535 $ 144785 $ 104,004
Supplemental disclosures
INtErESt PAI ...ovveviieeiiciiieiiciee ettt $ 69,051 $ 81,809 $ 104,164
INCOME taXES PAI....cvcviieeiieeiieeieiee et $ 69,812 $ 70,694 $ 47,226

See the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. The Company

The first International House of Pancakes® (“IHOP”) restaurant opened in 1958 in Toluca Lake, California. Shortly
thereafter, the Company began developing and franchising additional restaurants. The Company was incorporated as I[HOP
Corp. under the laws of the State of Delaware in 1976. In November 2007, the Company acquired Applebee's
International, Inc., which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Effective June 2, 2008, the name of the
Company was changed to DineEquity, Inc. (“DineEquity”). The Company owns, franchises and operates two restaurant
concepts: Applebee's Neighborhood Grill and Bar” (“Applebee's™), in the bar and grill segment within the casual dining
category of the restaurant industry, and IHOP in the family dining category of the restaurant industry.

As of December 31, 2016, there was a total of 1,733 IHOP® restaurants, of which 1,556 were subject to franchise
agreements, 167 were subject to area license agreements and 10 were company-operated restaurants. These IHOP restaurants
were located in all 50 states of the United States, the District of Columbia, three United States territories and ten countries
outside of the United States. As of December 31, 2016, there were a total of 2,016 Applebee's” restaurants, all of which were
subject to franchise agreements. These Applebee's restaurants were located in all 50 states of the United States, two United
States territories and 15 countries outside of the United States.

References herein to Applebee's and IHOP restaurants are to these restaurant concepts, whether operated by franchisees,
area licensees or the Company. Retail sales at restaurants that are owned by franchisees and area licensees are not attributable
to the Company.

2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of DineEquity, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Periods

The Company has a 52/53 week fiscal year that ends on the Sunday nearest to December 31 of each year. In a 52-week
fiscal year, each fiscal quarter contains 13 weeks, comprised of two, four-week fiscal months followed by a five-week fiscal
month. In a 53-week fiscal year, the last month of the fourth fiscal quarter contains six weeks. For convenience, the Company
refers to all fiscal years as ending on December 31 and fiscal quarters as ending on March 31, June 30 and September 30. The
2016 fiscal year ended January 1, 2017 and contained 52 weeks. The 2015 fiscal year ended January 3, 2016 and contained 53
weeks; the 2014 fiscal year ended December 28, 2014 and contained 52 weeks.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted accounting principles
(“U.S. GAAP”) requires the Company's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities, if any, at the date of the consolidated financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates are made in the
calculation and assessment of the following: impairment of tangible and intangible assets; income taxes; allowance for doubtful
accounts and notes receivables; lease accounting estimates; contingencies; and stock-based compensation. On an ongoing basis,
the Company evaluates its estimates based on historical experience, current conditions and various other assumptions that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Company adjusts such estimates and assumptions when facts and
circumstances dictate. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company's cash, cash equivalents and accounts receivable are potentially subject to concentration of credit risk. Cash
and cash equivalents are placed with financial institutions that management believes are creditworthy. The Company does not
believe that it is exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. At times, cash and cash equivalent balances
may be in excess of FDIC insurance limits.

Accounts receivable are derived from revenues earned from franchisees and area licensees located primarily in the United
States. Financing receivables arise from the financing of restaurant equipment, leases or franchise fees with the Company by
IHOP franchisees. The Company is subject to a concentration of credit risk with respect to receivables from franchisees that
own a large number of Applebee's or IHOP restaurants. As of December 31, 2016, there were two franchisees that owned 400
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DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

or more restaurants each (one Applebee's franchisee and one franchisee with cross-brand ownership). These franchisees
operated 903 Applebee's and IHOP restaurants in the United States, which comprised 26% of the total Applebee's and [HOP
franchise and area license restaurants in the United States. Revenues from these franchisees represented 15.6%, 15.1%, and
13.2% of total consolidated revenue for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively, with no single
franchisee representing more than 10% of total consolidated revenue in either year. Receivables from these franchisees totaled
$20.1 million and $19.0 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investment securities with remaining maturities at the date of purchase of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. These cash equivalents are stated at cost which approximates market value. Cash held
related to IHOP advertising funds and the Company's gift card programs is classified as unrestricted cash as there are no
restrictions on the use of these funds. Total cash balances related to the IHOP advertising funds and the Company's gift card
programs were $63.3 million and $76.3 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Restricted Cash
Current

Current restricted cash of $30.3 million at December 31, 2016 primarily consisted of $25.7 million of funds required to be
held in trust in connection with the Company's securitized debt and $4.3 million of funds from Applebee's franchisees pursuant
to franchise agreements, usage of which was restricted to advertising activities. Current restricted cash of $32.5 million at
December 31, 2015 consisted of $28.4 million of funds required to be held in trust in connection with the Company's
securitized debt and $4.1 million of funds from Applebee's franchisees pursuant to franchise agreements, usage of which was
restricted to advertising activities.

Non-current

Non-current restricted cash of $14.7 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 represents interest reserves required to be
set aside for the duration of the securitized debt and is included in other non-current assets, net in the consolidated balance
sheets.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Properties under capital leases are stated at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets or remaining useful lives. Leasehold improvements and properties under capital leases are amortized
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives or the lease term, if less. The Company has capitalized certain costs
incurred in connection with the development of internal-use software which are included in equipment and fixtures and
amortized over the expected useful life of the asset. The general ranges of depreciable and amortizable lives are as follows:

Category Depreciable Life

Buildings and improvements...................... 25 - 40 years

Leaseholds and improvements.................... Shorter of primary lease term or between three to 40 years

Equipment and fixtures ...........c.cceceverennene Two to 10 years

Properties under capital leases ................... Primary lease term or remaining primary lease term
Long-Lived Assets

On a regular (at a minimum, semi-annual) basis, the Company assesses whether events or changes in circumstances have
occurred that potentially indicate the carrying value of long-lived assets may not be recoverable. The Company tests
impairment using historical cash flows and other relevant facts and circumstances as the primary basis for estimates of future
cash flows. The Company considers factors such as the number of years a restaurant has been in operation, sales trends, cash
flow trends, remaining lease life and other factors which apply on a case-by-case basis. The analysis is performed at the
individual restaurant level for indicators of permanent impairment.

Recoverability of a restaurant's assets is measured by comparing the assets' carrying value to the undiscounted future cash
flows expected to be generated over the assets' remaining useful life or remaining lease term, whichever is less. If the total
expected undiscounted future cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the assets, this may be an indicator of
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DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

impairment. If it is decided that there has been an impairment, the carrying amount of the asset is written down to the estimated
fair value as determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP governing fair value measurements. The primary method of estimating
fair value is based on a discounted cash flow analysis. A loss resulting from impairment is recognized as a charge against
operations.

The Company may decide to close certain company-operated restaurants. Typically such decisions are based on operating
performance or strategic considerations. In these instances, the Company reserves, or writes off, the full carrying value of these
restaurants as impaired.

See Note 12, Closure and Impairment Charges.
Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is recorded when the aggregate purchase price of an acquisition exceeds the estimated fair value of the net
identified tangible and intangible assets acquired. Intangible assets resulting from an acquisition are accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting and are estimated by management based on the fair value of the assets received. The Company's
identifiable intangible assets are comprised primarily of the Applebee's tradename and Applebee's franchise agreements.
Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives (franchise agreements) are amortized over the period of estimated benefit using
the straight-line method and estimated useful lives. Goodwill and intangible assets considered to have an indefinite life
(primarily the Applebee's tradename) are not subject to amortization. The determination of indefinite life is subject to
reassessment if changes in facts and circumstances indicate the period of benefit has become finite.

Goodwill has been allocated to three reporting units, the Applebee's company-operated restaurants unit (“Applebee's
company unit”), the Applebee's franchised restaurants unit (“Applebee's franchise unit”) and the IHOP franchised restaurants
unit (“IHOP franchise unit”), in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The significant majority of the Company's goodwill resulted from
the November 29, 2007 acquisition of Applebee's and was allocated between the two Applebee's units. The goodwill allocated
to the Applebee's company unit was fully impaired in 2008.

The Company evaluates the goodwill of the Applebee's franchise unit and the indefinite-lived Applebee's tradename for
impairment as of October 31 of each year. The Company evaluates the goodwill of the IHOP franchise unit for impairment as
of December 31 of each year. In addition to the annual evaluation for impairment, goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets are evaluated more frequently if the Company believes indicators of impairment exist.

When evaluating goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment, under U.S. GAAP the Company may first
perform an assessment of qualitative factors to determine if the fair value of the reporting unit or the intangible asset is more-
likely-than-not greater than the carrying amount. Such qualitative factors include, but are not limited to, macro-economic
conditions, market and industry conditions, cost considerations, competitive environment, share price fluctuations, overall
financial performance and results of past impairment tests. If, based on a review of the qualitative factors, the Company
determines it is not more-likely-than-not that the fair value is less than the carrying value, the Company may bypass the two-
step quantitative impairment test. The first step (“Step 1) of the quantitative impairment test calculates the estimated fair value
of each of the reporting units and compares it to the carrying value. If the fair value is in excess of the carrying value, no
impairment exists. If Stepl does indicate impairment, a second step (“Step 2”’) must take place. Under Step 2, the fair value of
the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit are estimated as if the reporting unit were acquired in a business combination. The
excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities is the implied fair value of the
goodwill, to which the carrying value of the goodwill must be adjusted.

In performing the quantitative test of goodwill, the Company primarily uses the income approach method of valuation that
included the discounted cash flow method as well as other generally accepted valuation methodologies to determine the fair
value of goodwill and intangible assets. Significant assumptions used to determine fair value under the discounted cash flow
model included future trends in sales, operating expenses, overhead expenses, capital expenditures and changes in working
capital, along with an appropriate discount rate based on the Company's estimated cost of equity capital and after-tax cost of
debt.

In the process of the Company's annual impairment review of the tradename, the Company primarily uses the relief of
royalty method under the income approach method of valuation. Significant assumptions used to determine fair value under the
relief of royalty method included future trends in sales, a royalty rate and a discount rate to be applied to the forecast revenue
stream.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company's revenues are recorded in four categories: franchise operations, company restaurant operations, rental
operations and financing operations.

Franchise operations revenue consists primarily of royalty revenues, sales of proprietary IHOP products, IHOP advertising
fees and franchise fees. Rental operations revenue includes revenue from operating leases and interest income from direct
financing leases. Company restaurant sales are retail sales at company-operated restaurants. Financing operations revenue
consists primarily of interest income from the financing of franchise fees and equipment leases, as well as sales of equipment
associated with refranchised IHOP restaurants.

Revenues from franchised and area licensed restaurants include royalties, continuing rent and service fees and initial
franchise fees. Royalties are recognized in the period in which the sales are reported to have been earned, which occurs at the
franchisees' point of sale. Continuing rent and fees are recognized in the period earned. Initial franchise fees are recognized
upon the opening of a restaurant, which is when the Company has performed substantially all initial services required by the
franchise agreement. Fees from development agreements are deferred and recorded into income as restaurants under the
development agreement are opened. Sales by company-operated restaurants are recognized when food and beverage items are
sold. Company restaurant sales are reported net of sales taxes collected from guests that are remitted to the appropriate taxing
authorities.

The Company records a liability in the period in which a gift card is sold and recognizes costs associated with our
administration of the gift card programs as prepaid assets when the costs are incurred. As gift cards are redeemed, the liability
and prepaid asset are reduced. When gift cards are redeemed at a franchisee-operated restaurant, the revenue and related
administrative costs are recognized by the franchisee. The Company recognizes revenue and related administrative costs when
gift cards are redeemed at company-operated restaurants. The Company recognizes gift card breakage income on gift cards
when the assessment of the likelihood of redemption of the gift card becomes remote. This assessment is based upon
Applebee's and IHOP's individual historical experience with gift card redemptions in their own program. The Company's gift
card breakage revenue for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was not material.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company's best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in existing
receivables; however, changes in circumstances relating to receivables may result in changes to the allowance in the future. The
Company determines the allowance based on historical experience, current payment patterns, future obligations and the
Company's assessment of the franchisee's or area licensee's ability to pay outstanding balances. The primary indicator of credit
quality is delinquency, which is considered to be a receivable balance greater than 90 days past due. The Company continually
reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts. Past due balances and future obligations are reviewed individually for
collectability. Account balances are charged against the allowance after all collection efforts have been exhausted and the
potential for recovery is considered remote. Credit losses historically have been within management's expectations.

Leases

The Company is the lessor or sub-lessor of the properties on which 691 IHOP restaurants and three Applebee's restaurants
are located. The restaurants are subleased to franchisees or, in a few instances, are operated by the Company. The Company's
IHOP leases generally provide for an initial term of 20 to 25 years, with most having one or more five-year renewal options at
the Company's option. The rental payments or receipts on leases that meet the operating lease criteria are recorded as rental
expense or rental income, respectively. Rental expense and rental income for these operating leases are recognized on the
straight-line basis over the original terms of the leases. Any difference between straight-line rent expense or income and actual
amounts paid or received represents deferred rent and is included in the consolidated balance sheets as other assets or other
liabilities, as appropriate.

The rental payments or receipts on those property leases that meet the capital lease criteria result in the recognition of
interest expense or interest income and a reduction of capital lease obligation or financing lease receivable, respectively.
Capital lease obligations are amortized based on the Company's incremental borrowing rate and direct financing leases are
amortized using the implicit interest rate.

The lease term used for straight-line rent expense is calculated from the date the Company obtains possession of the leased
premises through the lease termination date. The Company records rent from the possession date through restaurant open date
as expense. Once a restaurant opens for business, the Company records straight-line rent over the lease term plus contingent
rent to the extent it exceeded the minimum rent obligation per the lease agreement. The Company uses a consistent lease term
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when calculating depreciation of leasehold improvements, when determining straight-line rent expense and when determining
classification of its leases as either operating or capital. For leases that contain rent escalations, the Company records the total
rent payable during the lease term, as determined above, on the straight-line basis over the term of the lease (including the rent
holiday period beginning upon our possession of the premises), and records the difference between the minimum rents paid and
the straight-line rent as a lease obligation. Certain leases contain provisions that require additional rental payments based upon
restaurant sales volume (“contingent rent”). Contingent rentals are accrued each period as the liabilities are incurred, in addition
to the straight-line rent expense noted above.

Certain lease agreements contain tenant improvement allowances, rent holidays and lease premiums, which are amortized
over the shorter of the estimated useful life or lease term. For tenant improvement allowances, the Company also records a
deferred rent liability or an obligation in non-current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets and amortizes the deferred
rent over the term of the lease as a reduction to company restaurant expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.

Pre-opening Expenses
Expenditures related to the opening of new or relocated restaurants are charged to expense when incurred.
Advertising

Franchise fees designated for IHOP's national advertising fund and local marketing and advertising cooperatives are
recognized as revenue as the fees are earned and become receivables from the franchisee in accordance with U.S. GAAP
governing the accounting for franchise fee revenue. In accordance with U.S. GAAP governing advertising costs, related
advertising obligations are accrued and the costs expensed at the same time the related revenue is recognized. Due to different
contractual terms in Applebee's marketing agreements, franchise fees designated for Applebee's national advertising fund and
local advertising cooperatives constitute agency transactions and are not recognized as revenues and expenses. In both cases,
the advertising fees are recorded as a liability against which specific costs are charged. Advertising fees included in IHOP
franchise revenue and expense for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were $111.3 million, $108.1 million and
$90.3 million, respectively.

Advertising expense reflected in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income includes local marketing
advertising costs incurred by company-operated restaurants, contributions to the national advertising fund made by Applebee's
and IHOP company-operated restaurants and certain advertising costs incurred by the Company to benefit future franchise
operations. Costs of advertising are expensed either as incurred or the first time the advertising takes place. Advertising
expense included in company restaurant operations for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $0.8 million,
$1.9 million and $2.9 million, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company determines the fair market values of its financial assets and liabilities, as well as non-financial assets and
liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis, based on the fair value hierarchy established in
U.S. GAAP. As necessary, the Company measures its financial assets and liabilities using inputs from the following three levels
of the fair value hierarchy:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 inputs are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, including quoted prices in active
markets for similar assets or liabilities.

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable and reflect the Company's own assumptions.

The Company does not have a material amount of financial assets or liabilities that are required under U.S. GAAP to be
measured at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring basis. None of the Company's non-financial assets or non-financial
liabilities is required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company has not elected to use fair value
measurement for any assets or liabilities for which fair value measurement is not presently required.

The Company believes the fair values of cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their
carrying amounts due to their short duration.
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The fair values of non-current financial instruments, determined based on Level 2 inputs, are shown in the following table:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

(In millions)

Long-term debt, NEt.........ocoevivveuiieeiiieeicieeeeeeeeeeieae, $ 1,282.7  $ 1,286.2 $ 1,279.5 $ 1,306.1

Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under the liability method, deferred taxes are
determined based on the temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using
enacted tax rates. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized. The Company also determines its tax contingencies in accordance with U.S. GAAP governing the
accounting for contingencies. The Company records estimated tax liabilities to the extent the contingencies are probable and
can be reasonably estimated. The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognizable tax benefits and penalties as
a component of the income tax provision recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax
position will be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities including all appeals or litigation processes, based on its
technical merits. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest
benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate resolution. For each reporting period,
management applies a consistent methodology to measure and adjust all uncertain tax positions based on the available
information.

Stock-Based Compensation

Members of the Board of Directors and certain employees are eligible to receive stock options, restricted stock, restricted
stock units and performance units pursuant to the DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan. Shares of unvested restricted
stock are subject to restrictions on transfer and forfeiture under certain circumstances. The holder of unvested restricted stock
has the right to vote and receive regular cash dividends with respect to the shares of unvested restricted stock.

The Company accounts for all stock-based payments to employees and non-employee directors, including grants of stock
options, restricted stock and restricted stock units to be recognized in the financial statements, based on their respective grant
date fair values. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as expense ratably over
the requisite service periods. The Company reports the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost as
a financing cash flow.

The grant date fair value of restricted stock and stock-settled restricted stock units is determined based on the Company's
stock price on the grant date. The Company estimates the grant date fair value of stock option awards using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model, which considers, among other factors, a risk-free interest rate, the expected life of the award and the
historical volatility of the Company's stock price. Cash-settled awards are classified as liabilities with the liability and
compensation expense related to cash-settled awards adjusted to fair value at each balance sheet date.

Net Income Per Share

Net income per share is calculated using the two-class method prescribed in U.S. GAAP. Basic net income per share is
computed by dividing the net income available to common stockholders for the period by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per share is computed by dividing the net income available
to common stockholders for the period by the weighted average number of common shares and potential shares of common
stock outstanding during the period if their effect is dilutive. The Company uses the treasury stock method to calculate the
weighted average shares used in the diluted earnings per share calculation. Potentially dilutive common shares include the
assumed exercise of stock options and assumed vesting of restricted stock.

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

For the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the income tax benefit or provision allocated to items of other
comprehensive income (loss) was not significant.
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Treasury Stock
The Company may from time to time utilize treasury stock when vested stock options are exercised, when restricted stock

awards are granted and when restricted stock units settle in stock upon vesting. The cost of treasury stock re-issued is
determined using the first-in, first-out method.

Reporting Segments

The Company identifies its reporting segments based on the organizational units used by management to monitor
performance and make operating decisions. The Company has four operating segments: franchise operations (an aggregation of
Applebee's and IHOP franchise operations), rental operations, company-operated restaurant operations and financing
operations. The Company views all operating segments as reportable segments, regardless of whether any segment exceeds
10% of consolidated revenues, income before income tax provision or total assets.

Franchise Segment

As of December 31, 2016, the franchise operations segment consisted of 2,016 restaurants operated by Applebee's
franchisees in the United States, two United States territories and 15 countries outside of the United States and 1,723
restaurants operated by IHOP franchisees and area licensees in the United States, three United States territories and 10
countries outside of the United States. Franchise operations revenue consists primarily of franchise royalty revenues, sales of
proprietary products (primarily IHOP pancake and waftle dry-mixes) and franchise fees. Additionally, franchise fees designated
for IHOP's national advertising fund and local marketing and advertising cooperatives are recognized as revenue and expense
of franchise operations; however, due to different contractual terms in Applebee's marketing agreements, Applebee's national
advertising fund activity constitutes agency transactions and therefore is not recognized as franchise revenue and expense.

Franchise operations expenses include IHOP advertising expense, the cost of proprietary products, pre-opening training
expenses and other franchise-related costs.

Rental Segment

Rental operations revenue includes revenue from operating leases and interest income from direct financing leases. Rental
operations expenses are costs of operating leases and interest expense of capital leases on franchisee-operated restaurants. The
rental operations revenue and expenses are primarily generated by IHOP. Applebee's has an insignificant amount of rental
activity related to one property that was retained after refranchising a company-operated restaurant.

Company Segment

As of December 31, 2016, the company restaurant operations segment consisted of 10 IHOP company-operated
restaurants. We also operated 23 Applebee's restaurants during the year ended December 31, 2015 until they were refranchised
in July of that year and for all of fiscal 2014. All company-operated restaurants were located in the United States. Company
restaurant sales are retail sales at company-operated restaurants. Company restaurant expenses are operating expenses at
company-operated restaurants and include food, beverage, labor, benefits, utilities, rent and other operating costs.

Financing Segment

Financing operations revenue primarily consists of interest income from the financing of IHOP franchise fees and
equipment leases, as well as sales of equipment associated with refranchised IHOP restaurants. Financing expenses are the cost
of restaurant equipment.

Accounting Standards Adopted in the Current Fiscal Year

Various updates to accounting guidance became effective in the Company's first fiscal quarter of 2016. The majority of
these updates either did not apply to the Company's operations or will only apply if the activity addressed in the guidance takes
place in the future. Adoption of updates that did apply to the Company's operations did not have a material effect on the
Company's financial statements.

Newly Issued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

In January 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued new guidance simplifying the test of
goodwill for impairment. The new guidance eliminates Step 2 (as described under Goodwill and Intangibles above). Instead, an
entity should recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the reporting
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unit's fair value as determined under Step 1. The Company will be required to adopt the new guidance beginning with its first
fiscal quarter of 2020. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual tests of goodwill performed after January 1, 2017.

In November 2016, the FASB issued new guidance to reduce diversity in practice in the classification and presentation of
changes in restricted cash in the statement of cash flows. The new guidance requires amounts generally described as restricted
cash and restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-
period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The Company will be required to revise its
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows to adopt the new guidance beginning with its first fiscal quarter of 2018. Early
adoption is permitted. Adoption of the new guidance will not impact the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet or
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

In August 2016, the FASB issued new guidance on the classification of certain cash receipts and payments in the statement
of cash flows. The new guidance is intended to reduce diversity in practice in how certain transactions are classified in the
statement of cash flows. The Company will be required to adopt the new guidance beginning with its first fiscal quarter of
2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact that the new guidance will have on its
consolidated statements of cash flows.

In June 2016, the FASB issued new guidance on the measurement of credit losses on financial instruments. The new
guidance will replace the incurred loss methodology of recognizing credit losses on financial instruments that is currently
required with a methodology that estimates the expected credit loss on financial instruments and reflects the net amount
expected to be collected on the financial instrument. Application of the new guidance may result in the earlier recognition of
credit losses as the new methodology will require entities to consider forward-looking information in addition to historical and
current information used in assessing incurred losses. The Company will be required to adopt the new guidance on a modified
retrospective basis beginning with its first fiscal quarter of 2020, with early adoption permitted in its first fiscal quarter of 2019.
The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures and whether early adoption will be elected.

In March 2016, the FASB issued new guidance that addresses accounting for certain aspects of share-based payments,
including excess tax benefits or deficiencies, forfeiture estimates, statutory tax withholding and cash flow classification of
certain share-based payment activity. The Company will be required to adopt the new guidance beginning with its first fiscal
quarter of 2017. Early adoption is permitted as long as all amendments addressed in the new guidance are adopted in the same
period. The method of adoption varies based on each specific aspect addressed in the new guidance.

The Company believes one impact of the new guidance on its financial statements will be the recording of excess tax
benefits or deficiencies in its provision for income taxes upon adoption of the new guidance instead of the current recording in
additional paid-in capital. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of other aspects of the new guidance on its
consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued new guidance with respect to the accounting for leases. The new guidance will require
lessees to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for virtually all leases, other than leases with a term of 12 months
or less, and to provide additional disclosures about leasing arrangements. Accounting by lessors is largely unchanged from
existing accounting guidance. The Company will be required to adopt the new guidance on a modified retrospective basis
beginning with its first fiscal quarter of 2019. Early adoption is permitted.

While the Company is still in the process of evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial
statements and disclosures, the Company expects adoption of the new guidance will have a material impact on its Consolidated
Balance Sheets due to recognition of the right-of-use asset and lease liability related to its operating leases. While the new
guidance is also expected to impact the measurement and presentation of elements of expenses and cash flows related to leasing
arrangements, the Company does not presently believe there will be a material impact on its Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income or Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

In January 2016, the FASB issued guidance on the recognition and measurement of financial instruments. The guidance
modifies how entities measure certain equity investments and present changes in the fair value of those investments, as well as
changes how fair value of financial instruments is measured for disclosure purposes. The amendment is effective commencing
with the Company's first fiscal quarter of 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its
financial statements and disclosures.
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In May 2014, the FASB issued new accounting guidance on revenue recognition, which provides for a single, five-step
model to be applied to all revenue contracts with customers. The new standard also requires additional financial statement
disclosures that will enable users to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows relating to
customer contracts. Companies have an option to use either a retrospective approach or cumulative effect adjustment approach
to implement the standard. In August 2015, the FASB deferred the effective date of the new revenue guidance by one year such
that the Company will be required to adopt the new guidance beginning with its first fiscal quarter of 2018. During 2016, the
FASB issued four clarifications on specific topics within the new revenue recognition guidance that did not change the core
principles of the guidance originally issued in May 2014.

This new guidance supersedes nearly all of the existing general revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP as well as
most industry-specific revenue recognition guidance, including guidance with respect to revenue recognition by franchisors.
The Company believes the recognition of the majority of its revenues, including franchise royalty revenues, sales of [HOP
pancake and waffle dry mix and retail sales at company-operated restaurants will not be affected by the new guidance.
Additionally, lease rental revenues are not within the scope of the new guidance.

The Company believes the new guidance will impact the timing of recognition of franchise and development fees. Under
existing guidance, these fees are typically recognized upon the opening of restaurants. Under the new guidance, the Company
believes the fees will have to be deferred and recognized as revenue over the respective term of the franchise and development
agreements. However, the effect of the required deferral of fees received in a given year will be mitigated by the recognition of
revenue from fees retrospectively deferred from prior years. The Company is currently reviewing nearly 4,000 agreements to
obtain the data elements necessary to implement the new guidance and cannot quantify the impact of the new guidance on its
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures at this time. The Company is continuing to evaluate the impact of the
new guidance on the advertising funds of each brand. The Company presently expects to use the retrospective method of
adoption when the new guidance is adopted in the first fiscal quarter of 2018.

The Company reviewed all other newly issued accounting pronouncements and concluded that they either are not
applicable to the Company's operations or that no material effect is expected on the Company's financial statements as a result
of future adoption.

3. Receivables 2016 2015
(In millions)
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE.........vivitieietiicteeeeeet ettt ettt ettt s et s s te et seeseasesens $ 693 § 70.5
Gift CArd TECEIVADIES .....vicuieiiieiieii ettt sbeereebesra e beesaesaeesaessaensans 51.2 49.3
NOLES TECEIVADIC. .....evitieiiietieic ettt ettt te b e s reesaeesaesbeessesbeessesseessesseensenseenns 1.8 1.3
Financing receivables:
Equipment 1€aSes reCEIVADIE .......c.ccveiiiiieiieiieii ettt eae s 87.2 95.5
Direct financing 1€ases reCeiVabIe.........ccocvviiieriiiiiriiiieie ettt 65.6 73.7
Franchise fee notes reCeIVADIE ..........ccvivieiiiiciicicie ettt 0.4 0.7
OBNET .ttt ettt ettt et a et b e st s e st et e st et e n st et et et et et e st be st b e st seneenenes 10.2 10.2
285.7 301.1
Less: allowance for doubtful aCCOUNLS ..........ccceeeiiiiieiiiiieiecictceeeeeeee et (3.1 (1.2)
282.6 299.9
LLeSS: CUITENE POTTION ....vvivieirietieteeeeeteeeesteeetesteestesteessesseessesseesseeseessesseessesssessesssessesssessesssessesssans (141.4) (139.2)
LONG-tEIM TECEIVADIES ......oviiieiiiecieeete ettt ettt ettt ettt te ettt ae et eas et easeneaes $ 1412 $ 160.7

Accounts receivable primarily includes receivables due from franchisees and distributors. Gift card receivables consist
primarily of amounts due from third-party vendors. Interest is not charged on gift card receivables.

Financing receivables primarily relate to IHOP franchise development activity prior to 2003 when IHOP typically leased or
purchased the restaurant site, built and equipped the restaurant then franchised the restaurant to a franchisee. IHOP provided the
financing for the franchise fee, leasing of the equipment and the leasing or subleasing of the site. Equipment lease contracts are
due in equal weekly installments, primarily bear interest averaging 9.8% per annum at both December 31, 2016 and 2015 and
are collateralized by the equipment. The term of an equipment lease contract coincides with the term of the corresponding
restaurant building lease. The IHOP franchise fee notes have a term of five to eight years and are due in equal weekly
installments, primarily bear interest averaging 6.1% and 5.9% per annum at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and are
collateralized by the franchise. Where applicable, franchise fee notes, equipment contracts and building leases contain cross-
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default provisions wherein a default under one constitutes a default under all. There is not a disproportionate concentration of
credit risk in any geographic area.

The primary indicator of the credit quality of financing receivables is delinquency. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015,
approximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively, of financing receivables were delinquent more than 90 days.

The following table summarizes the activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts:

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (In millions)
Balance at DECemMDBET 31, 2013 ...ttt et et e e et e e ettt e ettt e s e e e e ea e e e et eeeaa e e e et e e et e e seaaeesanaeeaas $ 35
g (01 1) 1) s W ERETU SRS 0.5
O] E:1 Lo} i £ USRS (1.1)
Balance at DeCEMDET 31, 2014 .......oooiiieiiee ettt e e e et e e e e e e e e et e e e eeataaeeesserateeeeseaaaaeeeeeannnaes 2.9
g (01 1) 1) s W ERETU SRS 0.6
O] E:1 LS o) i £ TSSO 2.4)
Balance at DeCemMDET 31, 2015 ... ..uooiiiiieeiee ettt et e e ettt e e e e ettt et e e e e taa e e e e eerateeeeseaaaaeeeeeannraes 1.2
PrOVISION ...ttt e e e e e e e e et e e e et e e e teeeeetaeeeeaeeeeaeaeeeaeeeeeateeeeaeeeeteeeeenreeeenneas 2.8
O] E:1 Lo} i £ USRS 0.9)
Balance at DECEMDBET 31, 2016........ooiiiiiiieeee ettt e e et e e ettt e e e e e et e e seaeeeseaaeesanaeeesaeeesenaeesaneeeeas $ 3.1

As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, approximately $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively, of the allowance for
doubtful accounts related to financing receivables.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment by category is as follows:

2016 2015
(In millions)
Leascholds and imMpProVEemMENtS...........c.eeveriierierieriereeieeeeeniestete st ieseae e esaeseessesseensesseensesseennes $ 2554 § 256.4
Equipment and fIXTUIES..........ccveririerieieieeieee ettt sttt esse s e seennesneennas 83.4 82.2
Properties under capital IEASE ........ccuevvirieriieierieiere ettt 59.8 58.8
Buildings and iMPrOVEIMENLS ..........cuervirieriieierieieseerie st estesteteseeessessaesseesaesseessesseensesseensesseenses 57.9 57.9
LLAIA .ttt n b st et b et b et bt be e st neenene 56.4 57.8
CONSLIUCHION TN PIOGIESS ..evvevreneeeeeeeeseesseetesseetesseesesseesesseessesseessesseansesssersesssessesssessesssessesssens 2.2 0.8
Property and €qUIPIMENE, SIOSS .....ccvervirieriieieeiieiereeieseestestetesseesseseaeseesseseessenseensesseensesseenses 515.1 513.9
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortiZation............e.eevveeiereeriesieeienieeeeseeeeeeeeeseeesee e (310.0) (294.3)
Property and eqUIPIMENT, NET.........c.ecvevirieririeeiireeietieetee ettt ere st eseebesee e e sessesessesssesesseseeseseesens $ 205.1 $ 219.6

The Company recorded depreciation expense on property and equipment of $20.6 million, $22.8 million and $22.7 million
for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Accumulated depreciation and amortization includes accumulated amortization for properties under capital lease in the
amount of $41.0 million and $38.8 million at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

5. Goodwill

The significant majority of the Company's goodwill arose from the November 29, 2007 acquisition of Applebee's. As of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the balance of goodwill was $697.5 million, of which $686.7 million has been allocated to the
Applebee's franchise reporting unit and $10.8 million to the IHOP franchise reporting unit.

The Company assessed goodwill for impairment in accordance with its policy described in Note 2. In the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2016, the Company performed a quantitative test of the goodwill of the Applebee's franchise reporting unit and a
qualitative test of the goodwill of the IHOP franchise unit. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, the Company performed a
qualitative assessment of the goodwill of the Applebee's franchise unit and the IHOP franchise unit and concluded it was more-
likely-than-not that the fair values exceeded the respective carrying amounts and therefore bypassed any quantitative testing of
goodwill. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company performed a quantitative test of the goodwill of the Applebee's
franchise reporting unit and a qualitative test of the goodwill of the IHOP franchise unit.
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There were no impairments of goodwill recorded resulting from these assessments in 2016, 2015 or 2014. The Company
considers a reporting unit at risk when its fair value is not higher than its carrying amount by more than 10%. Based on the
amount by which the fair value of the Applebee's Franchise Reporting Unit exceeded the carrying value of the unit, the
goodwill of the Applebee's Franchise Reporting Unit was at risk as of December 31, 2016.

6. Other Intangible Assets

The significant majority of the Company's other intangible assets arose from the November 29, 2007 acquisition of
Applebee's. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, intangible assets were as follows:

Not Subject to Amortization Subject to Amortization
Franchising Recipes and
Tradename Other Rights Menus Total
(In millions)
Balance at December 31, 2013 .....c..oovvvvvvveviiieiieeenen. $ 6524 % 07 $ 1390 $ 20 $ 794.1
AMOTtiZation EXPENSE....c.vervreverrrerreererreeeeneerseseessensens — — (10.0) (2.0) (12.0)
OtNET .ottt — 0.2 — — 0.2
Balance at December 31, 2014 ........coovvvevviiiiieeeieeenn, 652.4 0.9 129.0 — 782.3
AMOTtiZation EXPENSE....c.vervreverrrerreererreeeeneerseseessensens — — (10.0) — (10.0)
OtNET .ottt — 0.6 — — 0.6
Balance at December 31, 2015........ooovivevviiiiiieeieeenns 652.4 1.5 119.0 — 772.9
AMOTtiZation EXPENSE......vevveevereerreererreeeeneerseseessensens — — (10.0) — (10.0)
OtNET .ottt — 0.5 — — 0.5
Balance at December 31, 2016........ccccvvevvvieceeieeneen. $ 6524 $ 20 $ 109.0 $ — 763.4

Annual amortization expense for the next five fiscal years is estimated to be approximately $10.0 million per year. The
weighted average life of the intangible assets subject to amortization was 20 years at December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Gross and net carrying amounts of intangible assets subject to amortization at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Accumulated Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net
(In millions)
Franchising rights..........ccccoeverieeenieciennnnns $§ 2000 § (91.0) $ 109.0 $ 2000 $ (81.0) $ 119.0
Recipes and menus........c.occeeeveveeienveiennnnns 15.7 (15.7) — 15.7 (15.7) —
Total ..o § 2157 8§ (106.7) $ 109.0 $ 2157 § 96.7) 119.0

The Company assessed the Applebee's tradename for impairment in accordance with its policy described in Note 2. In the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2016, the Company performed a quantitative assessment of the Applebee's tradename and concluded the
fair value exceeded the carrying amount. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, the Company performed a qualitative test of the
Applebee's tradename and concluded it was more-likely-than-not that the fair value exceeded the carrying amount. In the fourth

quarter of fiscal 2014, the Company performed a quantitative test of the Applebee's tradename and concluded the fair value
exceeded the carrying amount.

There were no impairments recorded resulting from these assessments in 2016, 2015 or 2014. The Company considers an
intangible asset at risk when its fair value is not higher than its carrying amount by more than 10%. Based on the amount by

which the fair value of the Applebee's tradename exceeded the carrying value, the Applebee's tradename was not at risk as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015.
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Long-term debt consists of the following components:

2016 2015
(In millions)
Series 2014-1 Class A-2, 4.277% Fixed Rate Senior Secured NOLES........cccevvvveeevveriiieeeinnen. $ 1,300.0 $ 1,300.0
DEDE ISSUANCE COSES ..eruvieiuriiriieriiieitienieeiteesteeiteesteesteestteeseeesaeesseessseasseesssessseessseaseesseessseesseenssens (17.3) (20.5)
LONG-EIM dEDE, NIEL ...viviieieiieiieiieiieieieie ettt ettt ettt et et e be b e b esbe b e s esbesseseeseeseesenns $ 1,282.7  $ 1,279.5

On September 30, 2014, Applebee’s Funding LLC and IHOP Funding LLC (each a “Co-Issuer”), each a special purpose,
wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of the Company issued $1.3 billion of Series 2014-1 4.277% Fixed Rate Senior Notes, Class
A-2 (the “Class A-2 Notes”) in an offering exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The Co-
Issuers also entered into a revolving financing facility of Series 2014-1 Variable Funding Senior Notes Class A-1 (the “Variable
Funding Notes”), which allows for drawings of up to $100 million of Variable Funding Notes and the issuance of letters of
credit. The Class A-2 Notes and the Variable Funding Notes are referred to collectively as the “Notes.” The Notes were issued
in a securitization transaction pursuant to which substantially all of our domestic revenue-generating assets and our domestic
intellectual property, are held by the Co-Issuers and certain other special-purpose, wholly-owned indirect subsidiaries of the
Company (the “Guarantors”) that act as guarantors of the Notes and that have pledged substantially all of their assets to secure
the Notes.

Class A-2 Notes

The Notes were issued under a Base Indenture, dated September 30, 2014 (the “Base Indenture”) and the related Series
2014-1 Supplement to the Base Indenture, dated September 30, 2014 (the “Series 2014-1 Supplement”), among the Co-Issuers
and Citibank, N.A., as the trustee (in such capacity, the “Trustee”) and securities intermediary. The Base Indenture and the
Series 2014-1 Supplement (collectively, the “Indenture”) will allow the Co-Issuers to issue additional series of notes in the
future subject to certain conditions set forth therein.

While the Notes are outstanding, payment of principal and interest is required to be made on the Class A-2 Notes on a
quarterly basis. The quarterly principal payment of $3.25 million on the Class A-2 Notes may be suspended when the leverage
ratio for the Company and its subsidiaries is less than or equal to 5.25x. In general, the leverage ratio is our indebtedness
divided by adjusted EBITDA for the four preceding quarterly periods. As of December 31, 2016, the Company's leverage ratio
was 4.62x; accordingly, no principal payment on the Class A-2 Notes was required.

The Company may voluntarily repay the Class A-2 Notes at any time; however, if the Company voluntarily repays the
Class A-2 Notes prior to September 2018 it would be required to pay a make-whole premium. The Company would also be
subject to a make-whole premium in the event of a mandatory prepayment occurring prior to September 2018 following a
Rapid Amortization Event or certain asset dispositions. The make-whole premium requirements are considered derivatives
embedded in the Class A-2 Notes that must be bifurcated for separate valuation. The Company estimated the fair value of these
derivatives to be immaterial of December 31, 2016, based on the probability-weighted discounted cash flows associated with
either event.

The legal final maturity of the Class A-2 Notes is in September 2044, but it is anticipated that, unless earlier prepaid to the
extent permitted under the Indenture, the Class A-2 Notes will be repaid in September 2021 (the “Class A-2 Anticipated
Repayment Date”). If the Co-Issuers have not repaid or refinanced the Class A-2 Notes prior to the Class A-2 Anticipated
Repayment Date, additional interest will accrue on the Class A-2 Notes equal to the greater of (i) 5.00% per annum and (ii) a
per annum interest rate equal to the amount, if any, by which the sum of the following exceeds the Class A-2 Note interest rate:
(A) the yield to maturity (adjusted to a quarterly bond-equivalent basis) on the Class A-2 Anticipated Repayment Date of the
United States Treasury Security having a term closest to 10 years plus (B) 5.00% plus (C) 2.150%.

The Notes are secured by the collateral described below under “Guarantees and Collateral.”
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Variable Funding Notes

In connection with the issuance of the Class A-2 Notes, the Co-Issuers also entered into a revolving financing facility that
allows for the drawings of up to $100 million of Variable Funding Notes and the issuance of letters of credit. The Variable
Funding Notes were issued under the Indenture and allow for drawings on a revolving basis. Drawings and certain additional
terms related to the Variable Funding Notes are governed by the Class A-1 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of September 30,
2014 (the “Variable Funding Note Purchase Agreement”), among the Co-Issuers, the Guarantors, certain conduit investors,
financial institutions and funding agents, and Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank, B.A. (“Rabobank
Nederdland”), New York Branch, as provider of letters of credit, as swingline lender and as administrative agent.

The Variable Funding Notes will be governed, in part, by the Variable Funding Note Purchase Agreement and by certain
generally applicable terms contained in the Indenture. Depending on the type of borrowing by the Co-Issuers, the applicable
interest rate under the Variable Funding Notes is calculated at a per annum rate equal to (a) LIBOR plus 2.50%, (b) (i) the
greatest of (x) the prime rate, (y) the federal funds effective rate plus 0.50% or (z) a daily rate equal to one month LIBOR plus
0.5% plus (ii) 2.00% or (c) the lenders’ commercial paper funding rate plus 2.50%. There is a scaled commitment fee based on
the unused portion of the Variable Funding Notes facility of between 50 to 100 basis points. It is anticipated that the principal
and interest on the Variable Funding Notes will be repaid in full on or prior to September 2019 (the “VFN Anticipated
Repayment Date”), subject to two additional one-year extensions at the option of the Company, which acts as the manager (as
described below), upon the satisfaction of certain conditions. Following the VFN Anticipated Repayment Date (and any
extensions thereof), additional interest will accrue on the Variable Funding Notes equal to 5.00% per annum. The Variable
Funding Notes and other credit instruments issued under the Variable Funding Note Purchase Agreement are secured by the
collateral described below under “Guarantees and Collateral.”

The Company has not drawn on the Variable Funding Notes since their issuance. As of December 31, 2016 there were no
amounts outstanding under the Revolving Facility; however, available borrowing capacity under the Variable Funding Notes

was reduced by $5.0 million of letters of credit outstanding as of December 31, 2016.

Guarantees and Collateral

Under the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement dated September 30, 2014 (the “Guarantee and Collateral Agreement”),
among the Guarantors in favor of the Trustee, the Guarantors guarantee the obligations of the Co-Issuers under the Indenture
and related documents and secure the guarantee by granting a security interest in substantially all of their assets.

The Notes are secured by a security interest in substantially all of the assets of the Co-Issuers and the Guarantors
(collectively, the “Securitization Entities”). On September 30, 2014, these assets (the “Securitized Assets”) generally included
substantially all of the domestic revenue-generating assets of the Corporation and its subsidiaries, which principally consist of
franchise agreements, area license agreements, development agreements, franchisee fee notes, equipment leases, agreements
related to the production and sale of pancake and waffle dry-mixes, owned and leased real property and intellectual property.

The Notes are obligations only of the Co-Issuers pursuant to the Indenture and are unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by the Guarantors pursuant to the Guarantee and Collateral Agreement. Except as described below, neither we nor
any of our subsidiaries, other than the Securitization Entities, will guarantee or in any way be liable for the obligations of the
Co-Issuers under the Indenture or the Notes.

Covenants and Restrictions

The Notes are subject to a series of covenants and restrictions customary for transactions of this type, including (i) that the
Co-Issuers maintain specified reserve accounts to be used to make required payments in respect of the Notes, (ii) provisions
relating to optional and mandatory prepayments, and the related payment of specified amounts, including specified make-whole
payments in the case of the Class A-2 Notes under certain circumstances, (iii) certain indemnification payments in the event,
among other things, the transfers of the assets pledged as collateral for the Notes are in stated ways defective or ineffective and
(iv) covenants relating to recordkeeping, access to information and similar matters. The Notes are also subject to customary
rapid amortization events provided for in the Indenture, including events tied to failure of the Securitization Entities to maintain
the stated debt service coverage (“DSCR?”) ratio, the sum of domestic retail sales for all restaurants being below $3.5 billion on
quarterly measurement dates, certain manager termination events, certain events of default and the failure to repay or refinance
the Notes on the Class A-2 Anticipated Repayment Date. The Notes are also subject to certain customary events of default,
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including events relating to non-payment of required interest, principal or other amounts due on or with respect to the Notes,
failure of the Securitization Entities to maintain the stated debt service coverage ratio, failure to comply with covenants within
certain time frames, certain bankruptcy events, breaches of specified representations and warranties and certain judgments.

The DSCR ratio is Net Cash Flow for the four quarters preceding the calculation date divided by the total debt service
payments of the preceding four quarters. Failure to maintain a prescribed DSCR ratio can trigger a Cash Trapping Event, A
Rapid Amortization Event, a Manager Termination Event or a Default Event as described below. In a Cash Trapping Event, the
Trustee is required to retain a certain percentage of cash flow in a restricted account. In a Rapid Amortization Event, all excess
Cash Flow is retained and used to retire principal amounts of debt. Key DSCR ratios are as follows:

*  DSCR less than 1.75x but equal to or greater than 1.50x - Cash Trapping Event, 50% of Net Cash Flow
*  DSCR less than 1.50x - Cash Trapping Event, 100% of Net Cash Flow

*  DSCR less than 1.30x - Rapid Amortization Event

*  DSCR less than 1.20x - Manager Termination Event

*  DSCR less than 1.10x - Default Event

The DSCR for the reporting period ended December 31, 2016 was 5.12x.

Debt Issuance Costs

The Company incurred costs of approximately $24.3 million in connection with the issuance of the Notes. These debt
issuance costs are being amortized using the effective interest method over estimated life of the Notes. Amortization of $3.2
million, $3.1 million and $0.7 million was included in interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014
respectively. Unamortized debt issuance costs are reported as a direct reduction of the Class A-2 Notes in the consolidated
balance sheets.

Maturities of Long-term Debt

The Class A-2 Anticipated Repayment Date is in September 2021.
2014 Refinancing of Long-term Debt

On September 30, 2014, the Company repaid the entire outstanding principal balance of $463.6 million of its senior
secured credit facility (the “Credit Facility”); there were no premiums or penalties associated with the repayment. On October
30, 2014, after a required 30-day notice period, the Company repaid the entire outstanding principal balance of $760.8 million
of its 9.5% Senior Notes due October 30, 2018 (the “Senior Notes”), along with a required make-whole premium for early
repayment of $36.1 million. All of the Company's obligations under the Credit Facility and the Senior Notes terminated upon
the respective repayments thereof.

This transaction was accounted for as an extinguishment of debt under U.S. GAAP. The Company recognized a loss on
debt extinguishment of $64.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, comprised of the $36.1 million make-whole
premium on the Senior Notes and the write-off of the unamortized debt discount and the issuance costs associated with the
extinguished debt of $16.9 million and $11.9 million, respectively. Prior to the extinguishment of debt, amortization of the
discount associated with the Senior Notes included in interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2014, was $2.8
million. Prior to the extinguishment of debt, amortization of debt issuance costs associated with the Credit Facility and the
issuance of the Senior Notes included in interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2014 was $2.2 million.

8. Financing Obligations

On May 19, 2008, the Company entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement relating to the sale and leaseback of 181
parcels of real property (the “Sale-Leaseback Transaction™), each of which is improved with a restaurant operating as an
Applebee's Neighborhood Grill and Bar (the “Properties”). On June 13, 2008, the closing date of the Sale-Leaseback
Transaction, the Company entered into a Master Land and Building Lease (“Master Lease”) for the Properties. The proceeds
received from the transaction were $337.2 million. The Master Lease calls for an initial term of twenty years and four, five-year
options to extend the term.

The Company has an ongoing obligation related to the Properties until such time as the lease related to each of the
Properties is assigned to a qualified franchisee in a transaction meeting certain parameters set forth in the Master Lease. Due to
this continuing involvement, the Sale-Leaseback Transaction was recorded under the financing method in accordance with
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U.S. GAAP. Accordingly, the value of the land and leasehold improvements will remain on the Company's books and the
leasehold improvements will continue to be depreciated over their remaining useful lives. The net proceeds received were
recorded as a financing obligation. A portion of the lease payments is recorded as a decrease to the financing obligation and a
portion is recognized as interest expense. In the event the lease obligation of any individual property or group of properties is
assumed by a qualified franchisee, the Company's continuing involvement will cease. At that time, that portion of the
transaction related to that property or group of properties is expected to be recorded as a sale in accordance with U.S. GAAP
and the net book value of those properties will be removed from the Company's books, along with a ratable portion of the
remaining financing obligation.

As of December 31, 2016, the Company's continuing involvement with 155 of the 181 Properties ended by assignment of
the lease obligation to a qualified franchisee or a release from the lessor. In accordance with the accounting described above,
the transactions related to these properties have been recorded as a sale with property and equipment and financing obligations
each cumulatively reduced by approximately $280.0 million.

As of December 31, 2016, future minimum lease payments under financing obligations during the initial terms of the leases
related to the sale-leaseback transactions are as follows:

Fiscal Years (In millions)
D017 etk f A SRRkttt ne et $ 43
20 L8 ettt a et a e a e e h e h e bt eh e bt h ekt b e e b e b e b et et en e n b et enteb e e aeeaeebe e bt e bt et ebes 4.9
2010ttt ettt ettt e b a bt et e a e e Rt e Rt eh e ekt e Rt Rt eh e ek e Rt oA e A et e eh et et en s et ententeneeseebeebeeaeeteetes 5.1
D020MW 1ottt b sttt s st s bbbttt et 5.6
202 Lttt ettt ettt ettt he et et e te s enteasententeateneenteReeR e Rt Rt eR e R e oA e senseesensentententententententeneeneeneeteenn 52
B 1S3 S S TSRS 60.5
Total MINIMUM 1€SE PAYIMEGIILS ........eerviieieierierieeierteeiesieeteeteeste st eseeseeaesseesesssesseassesesssessesssenseessenseessesseenes 85.6
LSS IMEEIEST ..euvveuvieiiictieiiietiete ettt e et et e et et e et e s teesaesbeesbesseess et eesseeseesseeseessesseesseessesseessesseessesseessasseessanseensenseenns (46.0)
Total fINANCING ODIIZATIONS ......c.eevviieieiieiiecieciecte ettt ettt et e et e e te et e teesaeereebesraesseessesseessesbeesseseessaseessenseenes 39.6
LESS: CUITENE POIHION® ..ovveioeeerieeiiieiie e ees st (0.1)
Long-term financing ODIIZATIONS. ........ecuieuieriieierie ettt ettt e et ettt e et et e seeeneesseeeesseesesneensesneens $ 39.5

M Duye to the varying closing date of the Company's fiscal year, 11 and 13 monthly payments will be made in fiscal 2017 and 2020, respectively.
@ Included in current maturities of capital lease and financing obligations on the consolidated balance sheet.

9. Leases

The Company is the lessor or sub-lessor of approximately half of all domestic IHOP franchise restaurants. The restaurants
are subleased to IHOP franchisees or in a few instances operated by the Company or an Applebee's franchisee. These
noncancelable leases and subleases consist primarily of land, buildings and improvements.

The following is the Company's net investment in direct financing lease receivables:

December 31,

2016 2015
(In millions)
Total MInIMUM 1ents TECEIVADIE .....c..eruiiiieieieieie et $ 92.1 $ 108.9
Less: UNCAINEA IMNCOME ......eoviivieiieiieiietiete ettt ettt et et ete e esbesreesbessaebeessesbeessesseessesseensesseeneas (26.5) (35.2)
Net investment in direct financing leases receivable............oceriiiiniiiiniiiinieeeeee 65.6 73.7
LeSS: CUITENE POTLION ...ttt ettt ettt et sttt e e see e e s st et e e st et e eneesseenseeneeneeeneenees 9.9) (8.7)
Long-term direct financing leases receivable.........cocoveveiiiiiriininininenecececeeeeeee e $ 557 § 65.0

Contingent rental income, which is the amount above and beyond base rent, for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014 was $15.4 million, $16.7 million and $14.1 million, respectively.
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The following is the Company's net investment in equipment leases receivable:

December 31,
2016 2015
(In millions)

Total minimum [€ases reCeIVabIE..........cceiiiiiiiieieieee e $ 1225 $ 140.5
LesS: UNCAINEA INCOIME ....eevvieeieiieeieiieiesteete e etesteeaesteesesreesseeseesseeseessesseessesssessesssessesssessesssans (35.3) (45.0)
Net investment in equipment [€ases T€CEIVADIC ..........ccuieieriieieriieiere e 87.2 95.5
LLeSS: CUITENE POTTION ....vvivieiiietieieeeteieeeeesteetesteeetesteessesteessesseessesseesseeseessesseessesssessesssessesssessenssans (7.9) (7.5)
Long-term equipment 1€aSes reCEIVADIE ..........ocviuiiviiiiieiiececececeeetee ettt $ 793 8§ 88.0

The following are minimum future lease payments on noncancelable leases as lessee at December 31, 2016:

Capital Operating
Leases Leases
(In millions)

DO LT ettt ettt ettt ettt ennen $ 214 $ 70.5
20 L8 et et — e e e e e e ——— e e e e eee——taeeeea——taaeeeatbraaaeeaartaaeeeeaanrrreas 20.8 75.3
2000 e e e e e e e et — e e e e e ——a e e e e ea———aaeeeattaaaaeeaartaaeeeeaanraeeas 17.5 71.3
D020W ettt ettt a et et n ettt n ettt nn et n et s enanes 154 69.0
202 ettt e e e e b e e e tbe e e bte e e tbeea—bae e tbaeaanbteaartbeeetbaeatbeeeanaaeeanteeeansreeennees 12.4 52.9
TREICATLET .....eceeeeieeteeieee ettt ettt et et e e e st et e eseensesntesesnnessesnnensennnens 35.9 208.8
Total MIniMUM [€ASE PAYIMENLS ......cveierieieeieeieeieieieteeieee ettt ete et sbe b e s esbesbessessessesseseessessesens 1234 3§ 547.8
T 13113 1) TSR PR
Capital lease obligations.........ccoccveveerierierieneeiesieeieieane
Less: current portion<2) ...................................................................

Long-term capital lease obligations

M Due to the varying closing date of the Company's fiscal year, 11 and 13 monthly payments will be made in fiscal 2017 and 2020, respectively.
@ Included in current maturities of capital lease and financing obligations on the consolidated balance sheet.

The asset cost and carrying amount on company-owned property leased at December 31, 2016 was $89.0 million and
$61.3 million, respectively. The asset cost and carrying amount on company-owned property leased at December 31, 2015, was
$89.0 million and $62.7 million, respectively. The asset cost and carrying amounts represent the land and building asset values
and net book values on sites leased to franchisees.

The minimum future lease payments shown above have not been reduced by the following future minimum rents to be
received on noncancelable subleases and leases of owned property at December 31, 2016:

Direct X
Financing Operating
Leases Leases

(In millions)

2007 ettt ettt ettt et et e et e te et ettt e te et et e et e ett et e eteenteereeneas $ 176 $ 101.4
0T ettt ettt ettt et e te et e teert ettt et e et et e et e ett et e eaeenteereeneas 17.2 100.9
0] TSP TR 16.1 99.2
2020 .ttt ettt ettt ettt et et e et e teereeete et eete et et e et e ett et e eaeenteereeneas 14.8 99.3
01 TP 11.7 93.0
TRETCATIET ... e e e e e e et e et e e et e e eeaeeeennas 14.7 406.0
Total MINIMUM TENtS TECEIVADIE .........oovviiviiiiceicicceeeeeeeeeeee ettt $ 92.1 $ 899.8

The Company has noncancelable leases, expiring at various dates through 2036, which require payment of contingent rents
based upon a percentage of sales of the related restaurant as well as property taxes, insurance and other charges. Subleases to
franchisees of properties under such leases are generally for the full term of the lease obligation at rents that include the
Company's obligations for property taxes, insurance, contingent rents and other charges. Generally, the noncancelable leases
include renewal options. Contingent rent expense for all noncancelable leases for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014 was $3.0 million, $3.3 million and $2.8 million, respectively. Minimum rent expense for all noncancelable operating
leases for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $76.5 million, $80.9 million and $75.9 million, respectively.
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10. Commitments and Contingencies
Purchase Commitments

In some instances, the Company enters into commitments to purchase advertising and other items. Most of these
agreements are fixed price purchase commitments. At December 31, 2016, the outstanding purchase commitments were $94.0
million, the majority of which related to advertising.

Lease Guarantees

In connection with the sale of Applebee's restaurants to franchisees and other parties, the Company has, in certain cases,
guaranteed or had potential continuing liability for lease payments. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has
outstanding lease guarantees or is contingently liable for approximately $366.8 million and $398.0 million, respectively. This
amount represents the maximum potential liability of future payments under these leases. These leases have been assigned to
the buyers and expire at the end of the respective lease terms, which range from 2017 through 2048. In the event of default, the
indemnity and default clauses in our sale or assignment agreements govern our ability to pursue and recover damages incurred.
No material liabilities have been recorded as of December 31, 2016.

Litigation, Claims and Disputes

The Company is subject to various lawsuits, governmental inspections, administrative proceedings, audits, and claims
arising in the ordinary course of business. Some of these lawsuits purport to be class actions and/or seek substantial damages.
The Company is required to record an accrual for litigation loss contingencies that are both probable and reasonably estimable.
Legal fees and expenses associated with the defense of all of the Company's litigation are expensed as such fees and expenses
are incurred. In the opinion of management, these matters are adequately covered by insurance or, if not so covered, are without
merit or are of such a nature or involve amounts that would not have a material adverse impact on the Company's business or
consolidated financial statements. Management regularly assesses the Company's insurance deductibles, analyzes litigation
information with the Company's attorneys and evaluates its loss experience in connection with pending legal proceedings.
While the Company does not presently believe that any of the legal proceedings to which the Company is currently a party will
ultimately have a material adverse impact on the Company, there can be no assurance that the Company will prevail in all the
proceedings the Company is party to, or that the Company will not incur material losses from them.

Letters of Credit

The Company provides letters of credit, primarily to various insurance carriers to collateralize obligations for outstanding
claims. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had approximately $5.5 million of unused letters of credit outstanding, of
which $5.0 million reduce the Company's available borrowing under its Variable Funding Notes. These letters expire on various
dates in 2016 and are automatically renewed for an additional year if no cancellation notice is submitted.

11. Stockholders' Equity
Stock Repurchase Programs

On October 1, 2015, the Company's Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing the Company to
repurchase up to $150 million of DineEquity common stock (the “2015 Repurchase Program™) on an opportunistic basis from
time to time in open market transactions and in privately negotiated transactions based on business, market, applicable legal
requirements and other considerations. The Company has repurchased 854,871 shares of stock for $72.9 million under the 2015
Repurchase Program. The Company may repurchase up to an additional $77.1 million of common stock under the 2015
Repurchase Program.

In October 2014, the Company's Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing the Company to
repurchase up to $100 million of DineEquity common stock (the “2014 Repurchase Program™). The 2014 Repurchase Program
was terminated upon approval of the 2015 Repurchase Program. The Company repurchased 537,311 shares of stock for $54.5
million under the 2014 Repurchase Program prior to its termination.

In February 2013, the Company's Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program authorizing the Company to
repurchase up to $100 million of DineEquity common stock (the “2013 Repurchase Program™). The 2013 Repurchase Program
was terminated upon approval of the 2014 Repurchase Program.The Company repurchased 779,278 shares of stock for $59.7
million under the 2013 Repurchase Program prior to its termination.
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Shares repurchased under the Company's stock repurchase programs during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014 are summarized as follows:

2016 repurchases 2015 repurchases 2014 repurchases Remaining

Value that may

Repurchase Program Shares $ Shares $ Shares $ be Repurchased
(Dollars in millions)

2015 Repurchase Program.... 650,384 $§ 553 204,487 $ 175 — $ — 3 77.1
2014 Repurchase Program .... — — 516,976 52.5 20,335 2.0 n/a
2013 Repurchase Program .... — — — — 367,256 30.0 n/a
Total..ooeeeieeeeeeee 650,384 § 553 721,463 $ 70.0 387,591 § 320 $ 77.1

Dividends

During the fiscal years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, the Company declared and paid dividends on common
stock as follows:

Dividends Dividends Total
declared per paid per dividends
Year ended December 31,2016 Declaration Date Payment Date share share paid®

(In millions)

Payment of prior year declaration........ (3) January 8, 2016 $ 092 $ 17.1
First quarter.........cooceeeeeeeeececeeeeee February 23, 2016 April 8,2016 $ 0.92 0.92 17.0
Second qUArter .........occeveveerenieniennnans May 16, 2016 July 8, 2016 0.92 0.92 16.8
Third quarter ........cccceeeveeceevencencnenenn July 28, 2016 October 7, 2016 0.92 0.92 16.7
Fourth quarter..........cccoecvevvevenreienne, October 31, 2016 ()] 0.97 — —
Total ..o $ 373§ 3.68 S 67.6

Payment of prior year declaration......... “ January 9, 2015 — 3 0875 § 16.6
First quarter..........cooeveeeeeriecececeenes February 24, 2015 April 10,2015 § 0.875 0.875 16.7
Second qUATLET ........ccoovevrreieriieriierennes May 19, 2015 July 10, 2015 0.875 0.875 16.6
Third quarter.........coceeeevevevevcrencencnnens July 30, 2015 October 9, 2015 0.875 0.875 16.4
Fourth quarter ..........ccoecvevvevienieienen, October 1, 2015 3) 0.92 — —
TOtal .. $3.545 § 3.50 S 66.3

First quarter........ccocoevevevveveveirerieneneeen, February 25, 2014 March 28,2014 § 075 $ 075 $ 14.3
Second quarter .........cceeeveeeveenreesieenenenns May 28, 2014 June 27,2014 0.75 0.75 14.3
Third quarter ........cccceeeveeveeceneeeeene August 4, 2014  September 26, 2014 0.75 0.75 14.2
Fourth quarter ..........ccoecevieienieiee October 27,2014 “ 0.875 — —
TOtal .. $ 3.125 $ 225 $ 42.8

(1) Includes dividend equivalents paid on restricted stock units

(2) The fourth quarter 2016 dividend of $17.5 million was paid on January 6, 2017.
(3) The fourth quarter 2015 dividend of $17.1 million was paid on January 8, 2016.
(4) The fourth quarter 2014 dividend of $16.6 million was paid on January 9, 2015.

On February 22,2017, the Company's Board of Directors approved payment of a cash dividend of $0.97 per share of
common stock, payable at the close of business on April 7, 2017 to the stockholders of record as of the close of business on
March 20, 2017.
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Treasury Stock

Repurchases of DineEquity common stock are included in treasury stock at the cost of shares repurchased plus any
transaction costs. Treasury stock may be re-issued when vested stock options are exercised, when restricted stock awards are
granted and when restricted stock units settle in stock upon vesting. The cost of treasury stock re-issued is determined on the
first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. The Company re-issued 136,818 shares, 356,930 shares and 359,528 shares, respectively,
during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 at a total FIFO cost of $4.9 million $12.9 million and $13.0 million
respectively.

12. Closure and Impairment Charges

Closure and impairment charges for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(In millions)
Kansas City 1€ase eXit COSES.....coeririmeririnerenienieieieeeieeeeeeeesenaens $ 29§ — § —
ClOSUIE CRATZES......cvieeieiieeieiieie ettt ese e sseennes 1.2 1.4 2.1
Long-lived tangible asset impairment ..............cccoeveeveeeevreeeenieeeenneenn. 1.0 1.2 1.6
Total closure and impairment charges...........cocceeveverieeiesieieieieeeeeenn $ 51 % 26 $ 3.7

Kansas City Lease Exit Costs

The Company incurred costs of $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 to exit a facility in connection with
the consolidation action discussed in Note 17. Approximately$2.5 million related to the outright termination of a lease
covering two floors of the facility and $0.4 million represents the present value of future lease payments, net of assumed
sublease rentals, of one floor of the facility.

Closure Charges

Approximately $0.7 million of closure charges for the year ended December 31, 2016 related to one IHOP franchise
restaurant closed during 2016, with the rest of the charges related to adjustments to the estimated reserve for IHOP and
Applebee's restaurants closed prior to 2016. Approximately $1.4 million of closure charges for the year ended December 31,
2015 related to two IHOP franchise restaurants closed during 2015, partially offset by minor adjustments to the estimated
reserve for IHOP and Applebee's restaurants closed prior to 2015. Approximately $1.0 million of the closure charges for the
year ended December 31, 2014 related to IHOP restaurants closed during 2014, with the remainder primarily related to
adjustments to the estimated reserve for IHOP and Applebee's restaurants closed prior to 2014.

Long-lived Tangible Asset Impairment

Long-lived tangible asset impairment charges for the year ended December 31, 2016 comprised a charge of $0.6 million
for one IHOP company-operated restaurant and charges totaling $0.4 million of individually insignificant charges at eight
IHOP company-operated restaurants. Long-lived tangible asset impairment charges for the year ended December 31, 2015
primarily related to $1.1 million of individually insignificant charges at eight IHOP company-operated restaurants and four
Applebee's company-operated restaurants. Long-lived tangible asset impairment charges for the year ended December 31,
2014 related primarily to two IHOP company-operated restaurants in the Cincinnati, Ohio area. The Company evaluated the
causal factors of all impairments of long-lived assets as they were recorded in each year and concluded they were based on
factors specific to each asset and not potential indicators of an impairment of other long-lived assets.

13. Stock-Based Incentive Plans
General Description

Currently, the Company is authorized to grant stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, cash-settled and
stock-settled restricted stock units and performance units to officers, other employees and non-employee directors under the
DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2016 Plan”). The 2016 Plan was approved by stockholders on May 17, 2016
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and permits the issuance of up to 3,750,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for incentive stock awards. The 2016 Plan
will expire in May 2026.

The DineEquity, Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2011 Plan”) was adopted in 2011 to permit the issuance of up to
1,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for incentive stock awards. The 2011 Plan was terminated upon adoption of
the 2016 Plan, but there are stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units issued under the 2011 Plan that are
outstanding as of December 31, 2016.

The IHOP Corp. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2001 Plan’) was adopted in 2001 and amended and restated in 2005 and
2008 to authorize the issuance of up to 4,200,000 shares of common stock. The 2001 Plan has expired but there are stock
options issued under the 2001 Plan outstanding as of December 31, 2016.

The 2016 Plan, the 2011 Plan and the 2001 Plan are collectively referred to as the “Plans.”
Stock-Based Compensation Expense

From time to time, the Company has granted nonqualified stock options, restricted stock, cash-settled and stock-settled
restricted stock units and performance units to officers, other employees and non-employee directors of the Company under the
Plans. The nonqualified stock options generally vest ratably over a three-year period in one-third increments and have a
maturity of ten years from the grant date. Options vest immediately upon a change in control of the Company, as defined in the
Plans. Option exercise prices equal the closing price of the Company's common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the
date of grant. Restricted stock and restricted stock units are issued at no cost to the holder and vest over terms determined by
the Compensation Committee of the Company's Board of Directors, generally three years from the date of grant or immediately
upon a change in control of the Company, as defined in the Plans. The Company either utilizes treasury stock or issues new
shares from its authorized but unissued share pool when vested stock options are exercised, when restricted stock awards are
granted and when restricted stock units settle in stock upon vesting.

The following table summarizes the Company's stock-based compensation expense included as a component of general
and administrative expenses in the consolidated financial statements:

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

(In millions)

Total stock-based compensation expense:

Equity classified awards €Xpense ...........cvvveuervererieeireeeireeereeeresereserenenes $ 11.0 $ 90 § 9.4

Liability classified awards (credit) €Xpense ........ccecvevereeecveneeceereenienneenn (0.5) (0.4) 2.4
Total pre-tax stock-based compensation eXpense..........cceeceerveervereeereeseeruennnns 10.5 8.6 11.8
Book income tax benefit...........ccoooiieiiiiiiiiieieccceeee e (3.9) (3.3) (4.5)
Total stock-based compensation expense, net of taX ........cceeeeveeereeereeenennen. $ 6.6 $ 53 8 7.3

As of December 31, 2016, total unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock and restricted stock units of
$12.8 million and $3.8 million related to stock options is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of
approximately 1.43 years for restricted stock and restricted stock units and 1.39 years for stock options.

Equity Classified Awards - Stock Options

The per share fair values of the stock options granted have been estimated as of the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The Black-Scholes model considers, among other factors, the expected life of the option and the
historical volatility of the Company's stock price. The Black-Scholes model meets the requirements of U.S. GAAP, but the fair
values generated by the model may not be indicative of the actual fair values of the Company's stock-based awards. The
following table summarizes the assumptions used to value options granted in the respective periods:

2016 2015 2014
RiSK free INtETeSt TALE .....cveveueeiiiiieiiriiriirieeiesteree ettt 1.1% 1.5% 1.6%
Weighted average historical volatility...........ccoovreieriireienieesieieeeeeee e 27.1% 36.8% 51.1%
Dividend Yield.....c.ccveoiiiieiieieieee e s 4.0% 3.2% 3.7%
Expected years Until €XEICISE......couvrieierierierierieeeesie et ee e 4.5 4.5 4.6
Weighted average fair value of options granted..............cccceveeerevereeereeenennnn. $ 1355  $ 2720 $ 26.87
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Stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is summarized as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average Aggregate
Number of Average Remaining Intrinsic
Shares Under Exercise Price Contractual Value
Option Per Share Term (in Years) (in Millions)
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 .......cccooiieieiiiieieeen 775,059 $ 42.09
Granted .......c.oeeeuiiieiiee e 120,932 81.53
EXETCISEA ..uvviiiieiie ettt (256,910) 31.95
Forfeited ......c.oooiiiieeeeee e (20,966) 69.18
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 ......c.ccocoviiiininininnens 618,115 53.10
Granted .......c.oeeeuiiieiiie e 133,814 111.54
EXEICISEd ..o (218,412) 43.66
FOIfeited ....ovviiiieiieiie e (29,055) 99.97
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 .....ccccoocininiininiinines 504,462 69.99
GIanted .....oooiieiieiiee e 255,825 90.90
EXEICISEd ..o (48,021) 29.33
Forfeited ......c.oooieiieee e (7,924) 94.30
EXPITed ..oveoiieeieeie ettt e (3,208) 89.17
Outstanding at December 31, 2016 ......ccccoceviiieniniencnnens 701,134 80.04 7.2 S 5.6
Vested and Expected to Vest at December 31, 2016........... 664,566 79.29 7.1 E 5.6
Exercisable at December 31, 2016 ..........ocovvvvvvieiiiiinnnnnnn. 346710 § 65.46 5.5 \ 5.6

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $2.7 million,
$12.6 million and $13.2 million, respectively.

Cash received from options exercised under all stock-based payment arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014 was $1.4 million, $9.5 million and $8.2 million, respectively. The actual tax benefit realized for the tax
deduction from option exercises under the stock-based payment arrangements totaled $1.0 million, $4.9 million and $4.3
million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.

Equity Classified Awards - Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

Activity in equity classified awards of restricted stock and restricted stock units for the years ended December 31,2016, 2015
and 2014 is as follows:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Grant-Date Per . Grant-Date
Shares of Share Restricted Per Share
Restricted Stock Fair Value Stock Units Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 .......ccooceviriiiieieees 266,252 $ 58.87 47230 $ 64.57
Granted ........ccveevvieiiiieieeeie et et 102,618 82.18 13,879 81.65
Released......oooviiiiiiieeieceeeeee e (94,798) 53.03 (19,487) 70.82
FOrfeited .....ocuveeieeeeeee e (40,254) 67.68 — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 .......cccoceviriiiieieeens 233,818 70.14 41,622 66.92
Granted ........coveeiieiiieieeeie ettt et 138,518 102.78 10,630 111.72
Released......ooovieiiiiieeiece e (77,042) 54.89 (16,567) 52.19
FOrfeited .....oooiieiiicieeece e (37,700) 86.77 (569) 101.55
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 ......cccoociviviiiiieeens 257,594 89.99 35,116 86.30
Granted ........coveeiieiiieieeeie ettt et 88,797 88.90 13,053 90.90
Released......ooovieiiiiieeiece e (77,712) 78.70 (14,027) 72.01
FOrfeited .....oooiieiiicieeece e (33,207) 92.82 (84) 101.25
Outstanding at December 31, 2016 .......ccccoevveieveenenennenn 235472 § 92.91 34,058 $ 86.30
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Liability Classified Awards

The Company has granted cash long-term incentive awards to certain employees (“LTIP awards”). Annual LTIP awards
vest over a three-year period and are determined using a multiplier from 0% to 200% of the target award based on the total
shareholder return of DineEquity, Inc. common stock compared to the total shareholder returns of a peer group of companies.
Though LTIP awards are only paid in cash, since the multiplier is based on the price of the Company's common stock, the
awards are considered stock-based compensation in accordance with U.S. GAAP and are classified as liabilities. For the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, credits of $0.5 million and $0.4 million and expenses of $2.4 million, respectively,
were included in stock-based compensation expense related to the LTIP awards. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, liabilities of
$1.2 million and $1.6 million, respectively, were included as accrued employee compensation and benefits in the consolidated
balance sheets.

14. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Savings and Investment Plan

Effective January 1, 2013, the Company amended the DineEquity, Inc. 401(k) Plan to (i) modify the Company matching
formula and (ii) eliminate the one-year completed service requirement that previously had to be met to become eligible for
Company matching contributions. As amended, the Company matches 100% of the first four percent of the employee's eligible
compensation deferral and 50% of the next two percent of the employee's eligible compensation deferral. All contributions
under this plan vest immediately. DineEquity common stock is not an investment option for employees in the 401(k) plan, other
than shares transferred from a prior employee stock ownership plan. Substantially all of the administrative cost of the 401(k)
plan is borne by the Company. The Company's matching contribution expense was $2.2 million, $2.4 million and $2.3 million
for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

15. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
(In millions)

Provision (benefit) for income taxes:

Current
FEAEIAl ..ottt $ 60.8 $ 673 $ 33.2
STALE ..ottt et ete ettt ettt et e ettt e ettt et e et e ete et e eaeerreereenneereens 6.4 8.0 3.6
FOT@IEN.....iiuiiiicieeieceete ettt b e rae s aeeseesaeesaeseeenaesenas 2.3 2.4 2.7
69.5 77.7 39.5
Deferred
FEAEIAl ..ottt ettt (10.6) (13.6) (22.1)
STALE ..ottt ettt et ettt e ete e ettt e et e ete et e ere et e et reereenreeneens (3.8) (0.4) (2.3)
(14.4) (14.0) (24.4)
Provision fOr iNCOME tAXES ........ccvevvieveeriereereeeeereeeeeteeeeereeee e eeve e eereeneas $ 551 § 63.7 $ 15.1

The provision (benefit) for income taxes differs from the expected federal income tax rates as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014

Statutory federal iINCOME tAX TALE ......coevververrerrerieneeeeieteieeeeeceeee e 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and other taxes, net of federal tax benefit.........c..ccooevvieviiiiiiiienns 2.7 2.8 2.4
Change in unrecognized tax benefits .........coevevevienienieieieinienencnceenene 0.5 0.8 2.4
Domestic production activity deduction ...........cccceceeverereneninenienenennennene (0.6) 0.7) (6.0)
Research and experimentation tax credit ..........coceeveverenenencnenieneneneennens 0.1) 0.1 (3.4)
State adjustments including audits and settlements ..............ceeerverererenen. (0.1) 0.2) (1.1)
Compensation related tax credits, net of deduction offsets...........ccccc........ (0.1) (0.2) (0.8)
Changes in tax rates and state tax 1aws .......c..cocevevenereieinininiencnceenene (1.9) — —
ONET .ttt ettt e 0.6 0.2 0.8
EffectiVe taX L€ ...ccveeieieieieeeieieeeeee ettt 36.0% 37.8% 29.3%
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The Company applied a lower state tax rate to the deferred tax balances during second quarter of 2016, a result of the
consolidating action discussed under “Events Impacting Comparability of Financial Information,” above. The change in the
state tax rates applied to the deferred tax balances lowered the 2016 effective tax rate by 1.9%.

In 2014, the Company retroactively adopted the domestic production activity deduction and the federal research and
experimentation tax credits. The total domestic production activity deduction lowered the 2014 effective tax rate by 6.0%.
Deductions related to 2014 domestic production activity lowered the 2014 tax rate by 2.3%, while deductions related to
domestic production activity in prior years lowered the 2014 tax rate by 3.7%. Similarly, total federal research and
experimentation tax credits lowered the 2014 effective tax rate by 3.4%. Tax credits related to 2014 research activity lowered
the 2014 tax rate by 0.5%, while tax credits related to research activity in prior years lowered the 2014 tax rate by 2.9%.

The Company files federal income tax returns and the Company or one of its subsidiaries file income tax returns in various
state and international jurisdictions. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to federal, state or non-United
States tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2011. During the third quarter of 2016, the Company resolved its
appeal regarding tax years 2008 to 2010. No additional deficiencies resulted. The Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”)
commenced examination of the Company’s U.S. federal income tax return for the tax years 2011 to 2013 during the year. The
examination is anticipated to continue throughout the entire fiscal year 2017. The Company continues to believe that adequate
reserves have been provided relating to all matters contained in the tax periods open to examination.

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) consisted of the following components:

2016 2015

(In millions)

Differences in capitalization and depreciation and amortization of reacquired franchises and

EQUIPIMENT ....oo.eceeece ettt e st st sa e s s e et st se s s s e s s st es st es e st en s e s s et s e s r e s enae s ranseen $ 47§ 4.8
Differences in acquisition fiINANCING COSTS ......evuiriirirriiriiieiieeeeeeeeete ettt 0.3 1.8
EMPlOyee COMPENSATION ....eouvitieniiitieiietieie ettt ettt sttt sttt sttt eat et et e saeeneeseeenees 12.6 13.0
Deferred gain on sale 0f @SSELS ......c.eeiiiiiiriiiiinieieee e 55 8.3
Book/tax difference in revenue reCOZNITION. ......eeveruieriirieriereee ettt 45.8 43.9
L0 11 1< GO OSSOSO SU USROS 35.4 35.4
DEfErTed TAX @SSEES ...eveiteitieteitieteet ettt ettt ettt et sb et sttt at ettt e bt et ebe s 104.3 107.2
Valuation AllOWANCE..........ceciiiiieiiieeie ettt ettt ae e e e ssae et eesabeesseessbeenseesssesnseenssesnsens (1.1) (1.1)
Total deferred tax assets after valuation allowance............cocoeceveerinienineniiececeeeee 103.2 106.1
Differences between financial and tax accounting in the recognition of franchise and

EQUIPINENE SALES ........voveeeeeeeeeeeeee et s e e e eene e eene s (39.1) (43.0)
Differences in capitalization and depreciation V... (281.3) (288.9)
Book/tax difference in revenue reCOZNITION. ......eeueruieriirierieriete ettt (7.8) (11.7)
Differences between book and tax basis of property and equipment ...........cccceeeeeeereenieneennenne. (14.6) (14.1)
ORET <.ttt a ettt e bt e bt s a e et e beeae et e be b e s et et et et e st eneeneeneeneene e (14.3) (17.8)
Deferred tax HabIlItIEs .....ccvieiiieiieeieeieeie ettt e et ste et e ssbeebeessaeenseessseeaseas (357.1) (375.6)
Net deferred tax HADIItIES ......cooveverieririeirieieieeseee ettt se e esens $ (253.9) $ (269.5)

) Primarily related to the Applebee's acquisition.

The valuation allowance of $1.1 million as of both December 31, 2016 and 2015 related to the Massachusetts enacted
legislation requiring unitary businesses to file combined reports. As of each reporting date, the Company’s management
considers new evidence, both positive and negative, that could impact management’s view with regards to future realization of
deferred tax assets. As of December 31, 2016, management determined that, based on available evidence, there was no change
to the valuation allowance.

The Company had gross operating loss carryforwards for state tax purposes of $10.7 million and $60.7 million as of

December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The net operating loss carryforwards may begin to expire between 2017 and 2034
for state tax purposes.
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The total gross unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $3.9 million and $3.9 million,
respectively, excluding interest, penalties and related income tax benefits. If recognized, these amounts would affect the
Company's effective income tax rates.

The Company estimates the unrecognized tax benefits may decrease over the upcoming 12 months by an amount up to
$1.7 million related to settlements with taxing authorities and the lapse of statutes of limitations. A reconciliation of the
beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
Unrecognized tax benefit as of January 1.........cccocoevveevevereneecieeieeereeenn $ 39 § 34§ 2.7
Changes for tax positions Of Prior YEars .......c.ccecerveiererrereeieneeeeseeieeieene 0.6 1.0 1.2
Increases for tax positions related to the current year...........ccccooeeeereecenne 0.1 0.1 0.1
Decreases relating to settlements and lapsing of statutes of limitations........ (0.7) (0.6) (0.6)
Unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31 .........ccccevvveveveeieiiiereiieieieeane $ 39 § 39 § 3.4

As of December 31, 2016, the accrued interest was $1.0 million and accrued penalties were less than $0.1 million,
excluding any related income tax benefits. As of December 31, 2015, the accrued interest and penalties were $4.9 million and
less than $0.1 million, respectively, excluding any related income tax benefits. The decrease of $3.9 million of accrued interest
is primarily related to resolution of recent audits by taxing authorities. The Company recognizes interest accrued related to
unrecognized tax benefits and penalties as a component of the income tax provision recognized in the Consolidated Statements
of Comprehensive Income.

16. Net Income Per Share
The computation of the Company's basic and diluted net income per share is as follows:
Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(In thousands, except per share data)

Numerator for basic and diluted income per common share:

NELINCOMIE ...ttt ettt e et e s et e e e enaeeesaeeesnaaeesnnnees $ 97,992 $ 104,923 $ 36,453
Less: Net income allocated to unvested participating restricted stock....... (1,387) (1,400) (521)

Net income available to common stockholders - basiC.......ccccuvvevvvvuveieiieninnnn. 96,605 103,523 35,932
Effect of unvested participating restricted stocK..........cceovrveririeneerinnnenne 2 4 —

Numerator - net income available to common shareholders - diluted ............ $ 96,607 $ 103,527 $ 35,932

Denominator:

Weighted average outstanding shares of common stock - basic..................... 18,030 18,637 18,753
Effect of dilutive securities:

StOCK OPHIONS ..ttt 95 131 203
Weighted average outstanding shares of common stock - diluted.................. 18.125 18.768 18.956
Net income per common share:

BaSIC .ttt ettt e ennes $ 5.36_ § 555 % 1.92
| D1 10T E ST $ 5.33 552§ 1.90
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17. Facility Exit Costs

In September 2015, the Company approved a plan to consolidate many core restaurant and franchisee support functions at
its headquarters in Glendale, California and communicated the plan to employees. In conjunction with this action, the Company
has exited a significant portion of the Applebee's restaurant support facility in Kansas City, Missouri.

During the year ended December 31, 2016 the Company incurred $1.6 million of employee termination costs, primarily
relocation costs associated with the consolidation. These charges were included in general and administrative expenses in the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. The Company also incurred $2.9 million of facility costs, of which $2.5
million related to the termination of the Company's involvement in a lease covering two floors of the facility; the remaining
$0.4 million represents the present value of future lease payments, net of assumed sublease rentals, of one floor of the facility.
These costs were included as closure and impairment charges in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company incurred $4.6 million of employee termination costs, primarily
severance and relocation costs associated with the consolidation. These charges were included in general and administrative
expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income.

Employee
Termination Facility Total Exit
Costs Costs Costs
(In millions )

Accrued exit costs at December 31, 2014 .......cooviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e $ — 3 — 3

CRATEES ...ovvevieiieeteeieete ettt ettt ettt e e et e b e e ta e b e eseesbeestesseessesreessessnessensnensens 4.6 — 4.6
PaAYIMENLS ...ttt ettt et sttt et eetaeeabeesnaeenbeens (1.1) — (1.1)
Accrued exit costs at December 31, 2015 . ..cooviiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 3.5 — 3.5
CRATEES ...ovvevieiieeteeieete ettt ettt ettt e e et e b e e ta e b e eseesbeestesseessesreessessnessensnensens 1.6 2.9 4.5
PAYIMNENLS ...ttt ettt st et et e st et e et enbeesnaeenreens (4.9) (2.5) (7.4)
Accrued exit costs at December 31, 2016.......cc.ooovvviiiviiiiiiiieeeeeceeeeeee e 0.2 04 $ 0.6

At December 31, 2016, the $0.2 million of employee termination costs was included in accrued employee compensation
and benefits and the $0.4 million of facility costs was included in other non-current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet. At December 31, 2015, $3.3 million of employee termination costs was included in accrued employee compensation and
benefits and $0.2 million was included in other accrued expenses in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

18. Segment Reporting

Information on segments and a reconciliation of gross profit to income before income tax provision is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2014
Revenues (In millions)
FranchiSe OPErations .........c.eceeveverieverierenieierieiesieesteeseesesseseese e ese e ese e ese e seseens $ 484.4 3§ 494.7 ' $ 456.1
Rental OPErations..........eieeuiriieiieieeeeee e 123.0 127.7 122.9
COMPANY TESTAUTANTS ......eeuteeieeieiierteeie ettt ettt et eeeseeeeeseeeeesaeas 17.4 47.9 62.5
FIinancing OPerations ...........ceeeruieierieeieneerie ettt 9.2 10.8 13.5
TOAL .ottt $ 634.0 3 681.1 3§ 655.0
Gross profit (loss), by segment
FranchiSe OPErations .........cceceeveveieveriererieieietesieeseeiestesesteeese e eseeese e eseseeseneens $ 339.7 $ 355.7 § 3343
Rental OPErations........c.eiueeiiriieriieieieeese e 31.5 33.1 28.3
COMPANY TESTAUTANTS ......eetieiietieiertieiesieete ettt ettt et eaeeneeeaeeseeenees (0.8) (0.1) (0.2)
FInancing OPerations ...........ceeeruieiereeienierie ettt 9.0 10.3 12.7
Total GroSS PIOTIL..c..eeuieiieiieiieieece e e e 379.4 399.0 375.1
Corporate and unallocated expenses, Net..........ceceveerierienierieneenieneenn (226.3) (230.4) (323.5)
Income before iNCOME taX ProViSION .......cccceerveuereereriererieirreeereeereeereneens $ 153.1 3§ 168.6 $ 51.6
Interest expense
Rental OPErations.........ccooveieveieieieieieteieeiete ettt eae e eens $ 11.8 § 135 § 14.7
COMPANY TESTAUTANTS ......eeutieientieiierteeie ettt sttt ettt e e st eseesbeeeeseeeeesaeas 0.4 0.4 0.4
COTPOTALE. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b et eb et s b et eae e et e st e nbeeneesbeeneesaean 61.5 63.3 96.6
TOAL ..ttt $ 737 § 772§ 111.7
Depreciation and amortization
FranchiSe OPErations .........c.cceeveveieverierenieieietesieesteseseesestee s e eseeese e eseseeseneens $ 106 § 104 $ 10.4
Rental OPErations........c.eoueeiirieriieieieeese e 12.4 12.8 13.2
COMPANY TESTAUTANTS ......eeuteeeietieiierteeie ettt sttt et e st eseesbeeeesbeeaesaeas 0.4 0.6 2.1
COTPOTALE. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b et sb et s ae et eae et eseesbeeneesbeeneesaean 7.2 9.0 9.0
TOAL ..ttt $ 306 § 328 § 347
Closure and impairment charges
COMPANY TESTAUTANES .......vevieerererieiiereteeeeeseteeeessesesesessesesssssesesesssesesesesessenes $ 22§ 26 $ 3.7
COTPOTALE. ...ttt ettt ettt sttt b et eb et s ae et eae et e eseenbeeneesbeeneesaean 2.9 —
TOLAL .ttt ettt aeeeea $ 51 § 26 3§ 3.7
Capital expenditures
COMPANY TESTAUTANES .......voveeeveverierieretieeeeseteseesesesesessesesssnsesesesssesesesesessenes $ 03 § 1.6 $ 1.5
COTPOTALE. ...ttt ettt ettt sttt b et eb et s ae et eae et e eseenbeeneesbeeneesaean 53 5.0 4.4
Total $ 56 § 6.6 $ 5.9
Goodwill (franchise SEZMENL) ............ceeveeviveieiiicieeeeeeee e $ 6975 § 6975 § 697.5
Total assets
FranchiSe OPErations .............ccceeveveueieieiereeiieiereieeseese et eseseseeseseseenss e seseas $ 1,608.7 $ 1,6439 $ 1,635.0
Rental OPErations..........eiueeruirieriieiee e 339.5 324.5 3443
COMPANY TESTAUTANTS ......eeutieeieiieiierteeie ettt ettt et et e st eseeseeeeeseeeaesaeas 126.8 166.1 177.7
FINancing OPerations ...........ceeeruieeerieeienienie ettt et 88.2 97.4 109.9
COTPOTALE. ...ttt ettt ettt et b et eb et s b et e et et e st e sbeeneesbeeneesaean 1154 100.0 126.8
TOAL ..ttt $ 2.278.6 3 23319 3§ 2,393.7
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DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

19. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Net Income Net Income
(Loss) (Loss)
Net Income Per Share— Per Share—
Revenues Gross Profit (Loss) Basic? Diluted®

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2016

15t QUAILET «.vveeeeeeeeeeee e $ 163,524 $ 99,424 $ 25543 $ 138§ 1.37
20d QUATTET .o eeeeeee 160,258 97,375 26,829 1.46 1.45
31d QUATLET ..o e eeeee e 156,017 91,684 24,273 1.33 1.33
At QUATLET oo 154,174 90,935 21,347 1.18 1.18
2015

15t QUATLET «.oveeeeeeeeeeeee e reee e eeeeees $ 175814 $ 100,286 $ 28412 $ 149 $ 1.47
20d QUATLET v eeeeeee 171,549 96,807 26,897 1.41 1.40
31d QUATLET ..o veeeveeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeee e 162,437 96,685 24,257 1.29 1.28
Ath QUATLET Voo 171,300 105,228 25,357 1.36 1.35

(" Fiscal 2015 consisted of 53 calendar weeks, with the 4th quarter containing 14 calendar weeks.

@ The quarterly amounts may not add to the full year amount as each quarterly calculation is discrete from the full-year calculation.

20. Subsequent Event

On February 17, 2017, the Company announced the resignation of its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQO”),
effective March 1, 2017. In accordance with the Separation Agreement and General Release filed as Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K
filed on February 17,2017, the CEO will receive a cash payment of approximately $5.8 million, primarily for severance and
separation pay. The CEO will also vest in all unvested stock options and restricted stock awards. The Company expects to
record a charge of approximately $2.9 million related to the accelerated vesting of the equity awards in the first quarter of 2017.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain “disclosure controls and procedures,” as such terms are defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgated
under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in SEC rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that disclosure controls and
procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the
objectives of the disclosure controls and procedures are met. Additionally, in designing disclosure controls and procedures, our
management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure
controls and procedures. The design of any disclosure controls and procedures also is based in part upon certain assumptions
about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals
under all potential future conditions.

Based on their assessment as of the end of the period covered by this report, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
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Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have
inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with
respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
January 1, 2017 based on the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Based on that evaluation, our management concluded that
our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of January 1, 2017.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2017 has been audited by Ernst &
Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report that appears herein.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries

We have audited DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2017, based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries’ management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of January 1, 2017, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of January 1, 2017 and January 3, 2016
and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended January 1, 2017 of DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries and our report dated March 1, 2017 expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 1, 2017
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2016
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this Item regarding our directors and executive officers is incorporated by reference to our
Proxy Statement for the 2017 Annual Meeting of Shareholders (“2017 Proxy Statement”) to be filed with the SEC within
120 days after the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2016.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item regarding executive compensation is incorporated by reference to the sections
entitled “Executive Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” and “Compensation
Committee Report” to be set forth in our 2017 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by Item 12 with respect to securities authorized for issuance under our equity compensation
plans is provided under the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information™ in Part II, Item 5 hereof.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item regarding certain relationships and related transactions is incorporated by reference
to the sections entitled “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Director Independence” to be set forth in our
2017 Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this Item regarding principal accountant fees and services is incorporated by reference to the
section entitled “Independent Auditor Fees” to be set forth in our 2017 Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a)(1) Consolidated Financial Statements

The following documents are contained in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2016.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2016.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2016.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the consolidated
financial statements or notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits

Exhibits that are not filed herewith have been previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are
incorporated herein by reference.

3.1
32

4.1

4.2

10.1
#10.2
10.3

10.4

110.5

110.6

#10.7

110.8

10.9

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of DineEquity, Inc. (Exhibit 99.3 to Registrant's Form 8-K filed on
December 18, 2012 is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended Bylaws of DineEquity, Inc. (Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant's Form 8-K filed on May 23, 2016 is
incorporated herein by reference).

Indenture, dated as of September 30, 2014, among Applebee’s Funding LLC and IHOP Funding LLC, each as
Co-Issuer, and Citibank, N.A., as Trustee and Securities Intermediary (Exhibit 4.1 to Registrant's Form 8-K filed
on October 3, 2014 is incorporated herein by reference).

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 30, 2014, among Applebee’s Funding LLC and IHOP Funding
LLC, each as Co-Issuer, and Citibank, N.A., as Trustee and Series 2014-1 Securities Intermediary (Exhibit 4.2
to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2014 is incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Agreement between DineEquity, Inc. and Julia A. Stewart dated November 1, 2008 (Exhibit 10.4
to Registrant's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008 is incorporated herein by reference).

Separation Agreement and General Release between DineEquity, Inc. and Julia A. Stewart dated February 16,
2017 (Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on February 17, 2017 is incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between DineEquity, Inc. and Thomas W. Emrey dated April 4,
2012 (Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Form 8-K filed on April 5, 2012 is incorporated by reference).

Employment Agreement between DineEquity, Inc. and Darren M. Rebelez dated April 22, 2015 (Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan (Appendix B to Registrant’s Proxy Statement filed on April 4, 2016
is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement One-Fourth Annual Vesting -
Employees (Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein
by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement One-Third Annual Vesting - Employees
(Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by
reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement 25/25/50% Annual Vesting -
Employees (Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein
by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement - Employees (Exhibit 10.5 to
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference)
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10.10
10.11
10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16

10.17

10.18
$10.19

10.20

10.21
10.22
10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

$10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Agreement - Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit
10.6 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Stock-Settled RSU Agreement -Employees (Exhibit 10.7 to
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Stock-Settled RSU Agreement - Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit
10.8 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Stock-Settled RSU Agreement - International Employees (Exhibit
10.9 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Cash-Settled RSU Agreement - Employees (Exhibit 10.10 to
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Cash-Settled RSU Agreement - Non-Employee Directors (Exhibit
10.11 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement - Employees (Exhibit 10.12
to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement - Non-Employee Directors
(Exhibit 10.13 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by
reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Performance Award Agreement - Employees (Exhibit 10.14 to
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Performance Shares Agreement - Employees (Exhibit 10.15 to
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan Performance Shares Agreement 50% stock / 50% cash - Employees
(Exhibit 10.16 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by
reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan SAR Agreement - Employees (Exhibit 10.17 to Registrant’s Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan (Annex A to Registrant's Proxy Statement, filed on April 13, 2011 is
incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (Employees) (Exhibit 10.10
to Registrant's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Non-Employee Directors)
(Exhibit 10.11 to Registrant's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 is incorporated herein by
reference).

DineEquity Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Employees) (Exhibit 10.12 to
Registrant's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (1/4™ Annual Vesting -
Employees) (Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2015 is incorporated herein
by reference).

DineEquity Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Employees) (Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2015 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Stock-Settled Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Employees)
(Exhibit 10.15 to Registrant's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 is incorporated herein by
reference).

DineEquity Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Stock-Settled Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (Non-
Employee Directors) (Exhibit 10.16 to Registrant's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 is
incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Ratable Vesting - Employees)
(Exhibit 10.19 to Registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 is incorporated herein by
reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan Stock-Settled Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (International
Employees) (Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2014 is incorporated
herein by reference).

THOP Corp. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan Non-qualified Stock Option Agreement (Exhibit 10.15 to Registrant's
2003 Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference).

THOP Corp 2001 Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated (Appendix A to Registrant's Proxy Statement,
filed on April 17, 2008 is incorporated herein by reference).

91



10.34
10.35
10.36
10.37
10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

*12.1

*21
*23.1
*31.1
*31.2
*32.1

*32.2

DineEquity, Inc. Senior Executive Incentive Plan as amended and restated (Annex A to Registrant's Proxy
Statement, filed on April 15, 2012 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. Amended and Restated Executive Severance and Change in Control Policy (Exhibit 10.26 to
Registrant's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 is incorporated herein by reference).

Form of DineEquity, Inc. Indemnification Agreement (Exhibit 10.27 to Registrant's Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2011 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2016 is incorporated herein by reference).

DineEquity, Inc. 2011 Cash Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for Company Officers (Exhibit 10.30 to
Registrant's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011 is incorporated herein by reference).

Purchase Agreement, dated August 13, 2014, among the Registrant, certain subsidiaries of the Registrant and
Guggenheim Securities, LLC (Exhibit 99.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on August 14, 2014 is incorporated
herein by reference).

Class A-1 Note Purchase Agreement, dated September 30, 2014, among Applebee’s Funding LLC and IHOP
Funding LLC, each as Co-Issuer, certain special-purpose, wholly-owned indirect subsidiaries of the Registrant,
each as a guarantor, the Registrant, as manager, certain conduit investors, financial institutions and funding
agents, Cooperatieve Centrale Raiffeisen-Boerenleenbank, B.A., as provider of letters of credit, as swingline
lender and as Administrative Agent (Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2014 is
incorporated herein by reference).

Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated September 30, 2014, among certain special-purpose, wholly-owned
indirect subsidiaries of the Registrant, each as guarantor, in favor of Citibank, N.A., as Trustee (Exhibit 10.2 to
Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2014 is incorporated herein by reference.)

Management Agreement, dated September 30, 2014, among Applebee’s Funding LLC and THOP Funding LLC,
each as a Co-Issuer, other securitization entities party thereto from time to time, the Registrant, Applebee’s
Services, Inc. and International House of Pancakes, LLC, as sub-managers, and Citibank, N.A., as Trustee
(Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2014 is incorporated herein by reference).

Computation of Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the Trailing Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2016 and
Leverage Ratio as of December 31, 2016.

Subsidiaries of DineEquity, Inc.

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of CEO pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
Certification of CFO pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Certification of CEO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of CFO pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Filed herewith.
T A contract, compensatory plan or arrangement in which directors or executive officers are eligible to participate.

Item 16. Form 10-K Summary

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this 1st day of March 2017.

DINEEQUITY, INC.
By: /s/ JULIA A. STEWART

Julia A. Stewart
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant, and in the capacities indicated, on this 1st day of March 2017.

Name

/s/ JULIA A. STEWART

Julia A. Stewart
/s THOMAS W. EMREY

Thomas W. Emrey
/s/ GREGGORY KALVIN

Greggory Kalvin
/s/ RICHARD J. DAHL

Richard J. Dahl
/s/ HOWARD M. BERK

Howard M. Berk
/s/ DANIEL J. BRESTLE

Daniel J. Brestle
/s/ STEPHEN P. JOYCE

Stephen P. Joyce
/s LARRY A. KAY

Larry A. Kay
/s/ CAROLINE W. NAHAS

Caroline W. Nahas
/s/ DOUGLAS M. PASQUALE

Douglas M. Pasquale
/s/ GILBERT T. RAY

Gilbert T. Ray
/s/ PATRICK W. ROSE

Patrick W. Rose
/s/ LILTAN TOMOVICH

Lilian Tomovich

Title

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Senior Vice President, Corporate Controller (Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit 12.1
DINEEQUITY, INC.
Computation of Leverage Ratio and Debt Service Coverage Ratio

for the Trailing Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2016

(In thousands, except ratios)

Leverage Ratio Calculation:

TRAEDEANESS, TIEE L) ..o e e seer e $ 1,272,241
Covenant Adjusted EBITDAW ... 275,289
LeVerage RAIO ....ccuiciiiiicieciieiieieet ettt ettt ettt ettt et e sbeetaesbeeseesseesaesseesaesaeeseesaeensenaeas 4.62
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) Calculation: -
Nt CaSH FLOW (oot e e e et et e e ee e e eeeees e s eeeeneees $ 290,045
DIEBt SEIVICE () oottt 56,691
DISCR ittt ettt ettt a b st b st ben e b st be e s et te et st eneebe st senene 5.12

" Definitions of all components used in calculating the above ratios are found in the Base Indenture and the related
Series 2014-1 Supplement to the Base Indenture, dated September 30, 2014, filed as Exhibits 4.1 and 4.2,
respectively, to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 3, 2014.



SUBSIDIARIES OF DINEEQUITY, INC.
As of December 31, 2016

Name of Entity

State or Other
Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or

Exhibit 21

DINCEQUILY, INC..iutiiiiiiiiiieiieiicieeie ettt ettt ettt ettt e sbeebeesseeseessesreesessaesesssesseessans DE
DineEquity International, INC. .........cooiiiiiiiiiiie e DE
International House of Pancakes, LLC .........ccc.ooooviiiiiieieieeceee e DE

IIT Industries of Canada, LTD..........ooouuiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e e enaaeesnaaee s Canada
THOP of Canada ULC..........oouiiiiiieieeee ettt sttt sae st sae e e nneeneens Canada
THOP TPGEC, LLC ...ttt ettt st sttt ettt eaes OH
THOP SPV Guarantor, LLC ..........cooouiiiiiieieie ettt eeeavee e e e e eaaaeeeeeeennns DE
THOP Funding, LLC .......cuoieieieieeeiieeee ettt ettt st se s s st e enseneeneeneenes DE
THOP Restaurants, LLC............ooooiiiiiiiiii ettt e et e e e e eevreeeeeeennes DE
THOP FranchiSOr, LLC ......cooouiiiiiie ettt ettt e e e eaae e s eaaeeeenaeeesnaneesnneean DE
THOP Property, LLC.... ..ottt ettt ettt saeenae st e nae st e naeeneens DE
THOP Leasing, LLC.......c.cecueiieieiieieeieie ettt sttt seae e esaesseessesseensesseensesseensesnsensenssens DE
ACM CardsS, INC...oeooeeie ittt et e et et e s et e e enae e e eaaeeseaaeeeeneeeesnnneesnnaeeas FL
Applebee's Brazil, LLC ......ooiuiiiiiieieeeee ettt ettt et KS
Applebee's Canada COrP.......cceeieruieiieniieieeieieeteteete st te e e ste e ebesseebesseenseeseenseeneenseensesseenses Canada
Applebee's International, INC. ......c.ccvieiieiiiieriiiieie ettt b e sre e saessaesaeesnens DE
Applebee's Investments, LLC.......c.oooiiiiiiiieiieiet ettt KS
Applebee's Restaurantes Brasil, LTDA. ........ccoecieriiriiinieeseee et Brazil
Applebee's Restaurantes De Mexico S.de R.L. de C.V.....ccoocviiieiieiiiieieiceee e Mexico
APPLEbEE'S UK, LLC .. .ottt ettt et ettt e e et e sae e KS
Applebee's Restaurant Holdings, LLC .........oooviviiiiiiiiiieeceee e DE
Applebee's Restaurants Kansas, LLC .........cccoivvieriiiiiiinieiicieeeeeeete et seesae e sae e esnens KS
Applebee's Restaurants Mid-Atlantic, LLC .......cooiiiiiiiiiiee e DE
Applebee's Restaurants North, LLC .......cc.ocieiiieiiniiiieieieseee e DE
Applebee's Restaurants Texas, LLC.......cocceviiiiieriiiieiiciesieeeesieeieee et see e sne e esnens X
Applebee's Restaurants Vermont, INC.........c.oeouirieiiiiiiiiiiiiee e VT
Applebee's Restaurants West, LLC .......ocoivieiieieiieieieeeseee et DE
Applebee's Restaurants, INC.........ccoecvieiiriiiieniiiieie ettt b e sreesse e saessaesseesnens KS
APPLEDEE'S SEIVICES, INC. ..iuiiiiiiiiieiet et ettt ettt KS
Applebee's SPV Guarantor, LLC.........coociiiieiieieiieiericeee ettt DE
Applebee's FUNding, LLC........ccooiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt te e e re s saeesae e saessaesseesnens DE
Applebee's Restaurants LLC ........c.ooouiiiiiiiiiieee et DE
Applebee's FranchiSor LLC .........coiiiiiiieiieieiieieie ettt sttt ae s ennesneennes DE
Gourmet Systems of Brazil, LLC ..........cccooviiiiiiiieniiiieieciesieetesteeeeete et se e see e ae e esnens KS
Gourmet Systems of Massachusetts, LLC.........ccooiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeee e MA
Gourmet Systems 0f NeW YOIk, INC.......ccoocieriiiiieniiieeeieeeeeeeeee e NY
Gourmet Systems Of Tennessee, INC..........ccvevuiiieriiiieiicieeee ettt aesaeesnens TN
Gourmet Systems USA, LLC .....ocuiiiiieiiiee ettt st KS
Neighborhood INSUranCe, INC. ......covveeviiierieiieieeeeeee ettt re e eee s VT
Shanghai Applebee's Restaurant Management Co. LTD.......ccoccoeeviviiviiiieciiiieiecieeceeeeen, Xuhui District, Puxi, China

DineEquity Foundation, Inc. (dba The Heidi Fund, INC.)......cccooiriiniiiiiiiiee e KS



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

*  Form S-8 No. 333-71768 pertaining to the [HOP Corp. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan of
DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries

*  Form S-8 No. 333-151682 pertaining to the DineEquity, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan
of DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries

*  Form S-8 No. 333-174847 pertaining to the DineEquity, Inc. 2011 Stock Incentive Plan

*  Form S-8 No. 333- 211429 pertaining to DineEquity, Inc. 2016 Stock Incentive Plan

of our reports dated March 1, 2017, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of
DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
of DineEquity, Inc. and Subsidiaries, included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year
ended January 1, 2017.

/s/ Ermst & Young LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 1, 2017



Exhibit 31.1

Certification Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, As Amended

I, Julia A. Stewart, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of DineEquity, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared,

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(©) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 2017 /s/ JULIA A. STEWART

Julia A. Stewart
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, As Amended

I, Thomas W. Emrey, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of DineEquity, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and
for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared,

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 2017 /s/ THOMAS W. EMREY

Thomas W. Emrey
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of DineEquity, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended
December 31, 2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Julia A.
Stewart, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 1, 2017
/s/ JULIA A. STEWART

Julia A. Stewart
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not,
except to the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.



Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of DineEquity, Inc. (the “Company”) for the year ended
December 31, 2016, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), I, Thomas W.
Emrey, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 1, 2017
/s THOMAS W. EMREY

Thomas W. Emrey
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not,
except to the extent required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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